The Bank

of Princeton

Corporate HQ
Bayard Lane
183 Bayard Lane
Princeton, NJ 08540
609.874.7033

www.thebankofprinceton.com

Main: 609.921.1700

Operations Center
403 Wall Street
Princeton, NJ 08540

New Jersey

Bordentown

335 Farnsworth Avenue
Bordentown, NJ 08505
609.291.8200

Browns Mills

101 Pemberton

Browns Mills Road
Browns Mills, NJ 08015
609.893.5540

Chambers St.
21 Chambers Street

Princeton, NJ 08542

609.921.6800

Chesterfield

305 Bordentown—
Chesterfield Road
Chesterfield, NJ 08515
609.324.1256

Cream Ridge
403 Route 539

Cream Ridge, NJ 08514
609.757.1120

Deptford

1895 Hurffville Road
Sewell, NJ 08080
856.227.9440

Hamilton

339 Route 33
Hamilton, NJ 08619
609.584.0011

Lakewood

12 America Avenue, 7B
Lakewood, NJ 08701
732.835.7320

Lambertville

10 Bridge Street
Lambertville, NJ 08530
609.397.0333

Lawrenceville
2999 Princeton Pike
Lawrenceville, NJ 08648
609.882.0500

241

Monroe

1 Rossmoor Drive, Ste 120
Monroe Twp, NJ 08831
609.655.7790

Montgomery
1185 Route 206 North
Princeton, NJ 08540
609.497.0500

Nassau St.
194 Nassau Street
Princeton, NJ 08542
609.921.3311

New Brunswick
1 Spring Street, Ste 102
New Brunswick, NJ 08901
732.993.0066

Pennington

2 Route 31 South
Pennington, NJ 08534
609.730.8500

Piscataway

1642 Stelton Road, Ste 410
Piscataway, NJ 08854
732.743.3500

Princeton Jct.

11 Cranbury Road

Princeton Junction, NJ 08550

609.759.8100

1S ACIOSS

-

Quakerbridge Rd.
3745 Quakerbridge Road
Hamilton, NJ 08619
609.981.8900

Sicklerville

483 Cross Keys Road
Sicklerville, NJ 08081
856.728.0343

Pennsylvania

Cheltenham

470 W. Cheltenham Avenue
Philadelphia, PA 19126
215.224.6400

Chestnut St.
1839 Chestnut Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103
215.996.7380

Chinatown

921 Arch Street
Philadelphia, PA 19107
215.923.6200

North Wales
1222 Welsh Road
North Wales, PA 19454
215.631.9911

The Bank
of Princeton

2020 ANNUAL REPORT




-

;|
Table of Contents .

Letter to the Shareholders................... i =i
2020 Form 10-K 1
Who We Are

b
ot r
w ‘.'\: .
- B
L
rceful - R 1 i
L
! nt ok i
Resilient AT - _
%, \ \ k I
o
. i
d "
! LN
N

Steadfast

Co

Provid: Ng
to Customers W
and HowiBhe Need

M



Dear Fellow Shareholders,

Despite the economic and social challenges that occurred during 2020 caused - For the year, the Bank reduced its cost of funds (including non-interest
by the COVID-19 pandemic, our top priorities during this year were to keep our deposits) by 62 basis points to 0.98%, compared to 2019.

staff safe, continue to assist our customers with their financial needs, and look ) )
- The Bank reduced the ratio of nonperforming loans to total loans to

for opportunities to enhance the value to you, our shareholders.

below 0.12% as of December 31, 2020.
The Bank of Princeton completed a successful year with earnings of $13.8 million,
Although 2020 was a difficult year for the banking industry, the Bank took
steps to transition its funding structure and decrease its cost of funds by 176%,
going from a 4th Quarter 2019 run rate of 1.57% to 0.68% for the 4th Quarter
2020. This transformational effort increased our net interest margin to 3.63%

from 3.10% for the same comparative period. To help achieve this result, we

or $2.01 per diluted commmon share, representing a 36.1% increase over 2019. Total
assets grew to $1.6 billion, a 10.2% increase from the year prior. These results and
increasing the cash dividend were a part of the Bank's strategic initiative of
increasing shareholder value along with controlled prudent growth of the Bank’s
loan portfolio, which grew $177.0 million during 2020. Total deposits increased

$129.0 million during the same period repositioned our funding mix by decreasing our time deposits, which

represented 40% of 4th Quarter 2019 funding, to 29% for the 4th Quarter -
The Bank continued with its branch expansion by the addition of three new 2020, and for the same period took non-interest-bearing checking from )

g mug E:%%_ branches during 2020, expanding our territory into Lakewood and Piscataway, and 12% of deposits to 17%. @Zy\j ){7 .
increasing our presence within the Center City Philadelphia area with our Chestnut b%;fﬁd—«

Street branch. With these additions, the Bank's franchise expanded to twenty-four The uncertainty in credit quality caused by the COVID-19 pandemic made for a

E?(;Ziiir:njt. Dietzler branches. Management's focus is developing and expanding its market footprint challenging time. Management took various actions to help insulate the Bank Ef;?r:?a::w. Gillespie
Chiof Executive Officer through growth of new banking relationships. from the harm caused by a downturn in the economy. The Bank first slowed our of the Board
traditional commercial production to hold our loans outstanding flat year over
The Bank is approaching its 14th year of operation and continues its success by year, and allowed PPP loans (which are loans guaranteed by the Small Business
staying the course with its original core mission of targeting the commercial Administration) to grow to $175.9 million at year-end. In addition, the Bank worked
real estate and small business communities for their lending needs, and staying St ; atr . L.
The Bank e . . . ' . > with its current customers to modify payment terms on $263 million of loans Malntalnlng
significantly involved in the community. The Bank's strong capital position during the year, of which $218 million returned to their original payments )
had a very provides the opportunity for future organic growth, as well as the ability to take bringing the total at year-end down to $45 million. Finally, we recorded a $5.2 focus on serving
strong year advantage of acquisition opportunities when they present themselves. million credit provision, bringing our credit allowance to $16 million, or 1.35% of our customers
despite Notable Highlights for 2020 period end loans excluding PPP product. Non-performing loans actually declined th roug hout
tendi during 2020 to $1.7 million at year-end 2020. Management is very pleased with the th d .
contending - Net loans increased $178.3 million to nearly $1.37 billion at year-end 2020 overall result of our credit initiatives. € panaemic
with the and reflected a 15% increase year over year. remained vital.
andemic The Bank continues to make significant investments in digital technologies
P ’ + The efficiency ratio for 2020 declined to 52.6%, a significant improvement which allows our clients to remotely access the many Bank products and services.
from the same period in 2019 ratio of 59.77%. In addition, while our existing clients can benefit from this convenience, this

Participation in the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) provided over technology also allows the Bank to recruit new consumer and business

1,500 loans to business and non-profit organizations totaling $183.5 million, customers within our footprint and surrounding market areas.

and provided an increase in business checking accounts. Continuing its The Board and Management of the Bank remain committed to providing
support of the community, the Bank is currently participating in the second the highest level of customer service along with being a strong partner in the
phase of PPP loans, which commenced in January 2021, and already has over communities we serve. We are extremely proud of our employees for their

$80.0 million in 2021 commitments in this program. response to the challenges of COVID-19.

- The Bank successfully opened three new full-service branch locations:
Lakewood in the 2nd Quarter 2020, and Chestnut Street in Center City
Philadelphia and Piscataway, both in the 3rd Quarter 2020.
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Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: None

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: Common stock, par value $5.00 per share

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is 2 well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. [ | YES [X] NO
Indicate by check mark il the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d)of the Act. [ JYES [X] NO

Indicate by cheek mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. [X] YES [ | NO

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically every Interactive Data File required to be submitted pursuant to Rule
405 of Regulation 5-1 during the preceding 12 months (or such shorter period that the regisirant was required to submit such files).

[X]IYES [ |NO

Indicate by check mark whether the regisirant is a large accelerated filer. an aceelerated filer, o non-accelerated filer, a smaller reporting
company, or emerging growth company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer.” “smaller reporting company.” and
“emerging growth company™ in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

ILarge accelerated filer O Accelerated filer O
Nom-accelerated filer Smaller reporting company
Emerging growth company O

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying
with any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) the Exchange Act. O
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant 15 a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). [ | YES [X] NO

The aggregate market value of the voting common stock held by non-affiliates at June 30, 2020 was $107.1 million.

As of March 09, 2021, there were 6,794,779 shares of common stock outstanding.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Bank's deflinitive proxy statement to be filed with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation no later than 120 days after
December 31, 2020 in connection with its 2021 Amual Meeting of Stockholders 1o be held April 27, 2021 is incorporated by reference into
Part III of this annual report on Form 10-K.
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The Bank of Princeton

Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

The Bank of Princeton (the “Bank™) may from time to time make written or oral “forward-looking statemenis.” including
statemenis contained in the Bank's filings with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC™) (including this Annual Report
on Form 10-K and the exhibiis thereto), in its reports to stockholders and in other communications by the Bank, which are made in good
faith by the Bank pursuant to the “safe harbor™ provisions of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (referred
to as the “Exchange Act™).

These forward-looking statements involve nsks and uncertainties, such as statements of the Bank’s plans, objectives,
expectations, estimates and mtentions that are subject to change based on vanous important factors (some of which are beyond the
Bank’s control). The following factors, among others, could cause the Bank's financial performance to differ materially from the plans,
objectives, expectations, estimates and intentions expressed in such forward-looking statements: those listed in this report under the
heading “Risk Factors”, health emergencies, the spread of infectious diseases or pandemics; the strength of the United States economy
in general and the sirength of the local economics in which the Bank conducis operations; the effects of, and changes in monetary and
Niscal policies and laws, including interest rate policies of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System; imllation; interest rale;
markel and monetary Mucuations; market volanhity; the value of our products and services as perceived by actual and prospective
customers, including the Features, pricing and quality compared 1o competitors” products and services; loss ol management and key
personnel; atlure of our controls and procedures; inability o close loans in our pipeline; operational nisks, including the nsk of fraud
by employees, customers or oulsiders; our borroswers” ability 1o repay their loans; changes in the real estate market that can alTeet real
estate that serves as collateral for some of our loans; the adequacy ol our allowance lor loan losses and our methodology for determining
such allowance; the willingness of customers 1o substilute competitors” products and services for the Bank’s products and services; the
mmpact of changes in apphicable laws and regulations; changes in technology or interruptions and breaches in security of our information
syslems; acquisitions; changes i consumer spending and saving habits, Although management has taken certain steps o miligale any
negative effect of the aforementioned items, significant unlfavorable changes could severely impact the assumptions used and have an
adverse effect on profitability. Such risks and other aspects ol our business and operations are deseribed in Item 1. *Business,” llem 1A
“Risk Factors™ and ltem 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resulis of Operations™ of this report.

The Bank cautions that the lforegoing list of important [actors 15 not exclusive. The Bank does not undertake to update any
forward-looking statement, whether written or oral, that may be made from time to time by or on behalt of the Bank, except as required
by applicable law or regulation.

Thronghout this document, references to “we,” “us,” or “our” refer to the Bank and 115 consolidated subsidiaries.

PART 1
Item 1. Business
General

The Bank of Princeton was incorporated on March 5, 2007 under the laws of the State of New Jersey as a New Jersey state-
chartered bank. We commenced operations on April 23, 2007. We are a full service bank providing personal and business lending and
deposit services. As a state-chartered bank, we are regulated by the New Jersey Department of Banking and Insurance and the FDIC.
Owur market area, which we serve through our 21 branches, 1s generally an area within an approximate 100 mile radius of Princeton, N1,
including parts of Mercer, Somerset, Hunterdon, Monmouth, Middlesex, Ocean, Gloucester, Camden and Burlington Counties in New
Jersey, and additional arcas i portions of Philadelphia, Montgomery and Bucks Counties in Pennsylvania, The Bank also conducts
loan ongmation activities in select arcas of New York.

Smee we commenced operations, we have grown through both de novoe branching and acquisitions. In 20010, we acquired three
Pennsylvania branches through a merger with MoreBank. In March 2019, the Bank converted the former MoreBank branches Lo operate
under The Bank ol Princeton name, In December 2018, the Bank opened a new branch in Cream Ridge, New Jersey. In Apnl 2009, the
Bank opened a new branch in Quakerbridge, New Jersey and another branch in September 20019, located in Princeton Junction, New
Jersey,

On May 17, 2019, the Bank successlully completed acquisition of [ive WSFS Bank branches located in Bordentown, Browns
Mills, Chesterfield, Depiford and Sicklerville, in New Jersey.

The Bank of Princeton

Onr headquarters and one of our branches are located at 183 Bayard Lane, Princeton, New Jersey 08340, Our telephone number
is (6089) 921-1700 and our website address 15 www . thebankofprinecton. com.

The Bank has elected to prepare this Annual Report on Form 10- K and other annual and periodic reports as a “smaller reporting
company” consistent with the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC™).

Competition

We have substantial competition in originating commercial and consumer loans in our market area. This competition comes
principally from other banks, savings mshtutions, morigage banking companies and other lenders. Many of our compelilors enjoy
advantages over us, including greater financial resources and higher lending limits, a wider geographic presence, more accessible branch
office locations, the ability to offer a wider array of services or more favorable pricing alternatives, as well as lower origination and
operating costs. Among other things, this competition could reduce our interest income and net income by decreasing the number and
size of loans that we originate and the mterest rates we may charge on these loans.,

In attracting business and consumer deposits, we face substantial competition from other insured depository instimitions such
as banks, savings institutions and credit unions, as well as msttutions offering unimsured investment alternatives, meluding money
market funds. Many of our competitors enjoy advantages over us, mcluding greater financial resources, more aggressive marketing
campaigns, better brand recognition and more branch locations. These competitors may offer higher interest rates on deposits, which
could decrease the deposits that we attract, or require us to increase the rates we pay to retain existing deposits or atiract new deposits,
Deposit competition could adversely affect our net interest income and net income, and our ability to generate the funds we require for
our lending or other operations. As a result, we may need to seek other sources of funds that may be more expensive to obtain and could
inerease our cost of funds,

Lending Activities

Owr loan portfolio consists of vanable-rate and lixed-rate loans with a sigmilicant concentration in commercial real estate
lending. While most loans and other credit facilities are appropniately collateralized, major emphasis is placed upon the financial
condition of the borrower and the borrower’s cash flow versus debt service requirements.

Loan growth 1s drven by customer demand, which i tum s mfluenced by mdividual and business mdebledness and consumer
demand for goods. Loaning money will always entail some risk. Without loaning money, however, a bank cannot generate enough net
interest income to be profitable. The risk involved in each loan must be carefully evaluated before the loan is made. The interest rate
at which the loan is made should always refleet the risk factors involved, including the term of the loan, the value of collateral, if any,
the reliability of the projected source of repayment, and the amount of the loan requested. Credit quality and repavment capacity are
generally the most important factors in evaluating loan applications.

Loan Portfolio Composition. The following table presenis our loan portfolio by segment at December 31, (Dollars in
thousands):

2020 o1e 2018 7 06
Amonmnt % Ao %4 ATt %4 Amount % Aot %

Commercial real estate’ f812.043 523 %% SRS3AETS 7L8 % 8729336 673 *a 634,768 653 %% 3554.050 642 %
Commercial and imdus trial 40,397 30 43504 37 T1.838 6.6 59.636 6.1 G0.8EG 7.1
Constrsction 263,032 19.2 189,789 159 161.275 149 183.375 18.9 166,719 193
Residential first-Heu b6 5T 4.9 B oeT 1.5 L (0 A T3.505 TG 56,712 6.6
] e
Home Equity 9,929 0.7 13,753 1.2 19,035 1.8 20,998 2.2 24,762 29
Paycheck Protection 175,578 179 . N . - - - - -
Progam ("PPP™)

Tatal Loans 1,368,336 10000 2% L 1ES 989 1000 =a 1083 492 100 24 972,282 100D % B3, 1249 1000 %
Daferred fees and costs (4.850) (3.419) (2.313) (2.335) (2,803)
Allowance for loan losses (16.027) (12.557) (11.944) (11.591) (10.822)

Lo, mvel

! Includes multi-family real estate secured loans.

$1.347.459

PLIT4003

31062235

$058.356

$840.504



The Bank of Princeton

The majority ol our loans are 1o borrowers in our immediate markets, We believe that no single homrower or group of
borrowers presents a credit concentration whereby the borrowers’ loan default would have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition or results of operations.

Commercial Real Estate and Mulii-family. At December 31, 2020, commereial real estate and multi-thmily loans amounted
in the aggregate 1o $812.0 million, or 59.3% of the 1otal loan portfolio. Our commercial real estate portfolio has increased $258 .0 million
of 46.6% since December 31, 2016, when commercial real estate and multi-family loans amounted to 5554.1 million, or 64.2%, of our
total portiolio.

The commercial real estate and multi-family loan portfolio consists pnmanly of loans secured by small office buildings, stnp
shopping centers, small apartment buildings and other properties used for commercial and multi-family purposes located in the Bank’s
market arca. At December 31, 2020, the average commercial and mulu-family real estate loan size was approximately $1.4 nullion.

Although terms for commercial real estate and multi-family loans vary, our underwriting standards generally allow for terms
up to 7 years with loan-to-value ratios of not more than 75%. Most of the loans are structured with balloon payments of 5 years or less
and amortization periods of up to 25 vears. Interest rates are either fixed or adjustable, based upon designated market indices such as
the Wall Street Journal prime rate plus a margin.

Commercial real estate and mulu-family real estate lending involves different risks from single-family residential lending.
These risks include larger loans to individual borrowers and loan payments that are dependent upon the successful operations of the
project or the borrower's business. These risks can be affected by supply and demand conditions in the project’s market area of rental
housing units, office and retail space and other commercial space. We attempl lo rmnimize these risks by limiting loans 1o proven
businesses, only considering properties with existing operating performance which can be analyzed, using conservative debt coverage
ratios in our underwriting, and periodically monitoring the operation of the business or project and the physical condition of the property.

Various aspects of commercial and mult-family loan transactions are evaluated i an ellort o mingate the additonal rnisk
these types of leans. In our underwriting procedures, consideration is given to the stability of the property’s cash flow history, future
operating projections, current and projected occupancy levels, location and physical condition. Generally, we impose a debt service ratio
(the ratio of net cash Nows from operations before the payment of debt service to debt serviee) ol not less than 1.23 X, We also evaluate
the credit and financial condition of the borrower, and if applicable, the guarantor. With respect to loan participation imteresls we
purchase, we underwrite the loans as 1f we were the originating lender. Appraisal reports prepared by independent appraisers are
reviewed by an outside third party prior to closing.

Set forth below is a brief description of our three largest commercial real estate or mulii-family loans:

- The largest commercial real estate loan is a $20.0 million loan, The proceeds were used to purchase a 32-unit office
building located in Hamilton, NJ.

- Thesecond largest commercial real estate loan is an $18.0 million loan. The proceeds were used to refinance a Construction
line of credit (“LOC™) in the amount of 512.9 million and the remaining balance was advanced as cash out to the borrower
for future real estate investment purchases. The funds were used to finance the construction of a shopping center located

in Lakewood, NJ with 14 retail units.

- The third largest commercial real estate loan 1s an 513.0 million loan. The proceeds were used to refinance an existing
mortzage of $3.4 million, fund property repairs and upgrades of $2.7 million, and the balance of $6.9 million was advanced
as cash out to the borrower for tuture real estate investment purchases.

Commercial and Industrial Loans. At December 31, 2020, commercial and industrial loans amounted in the aggregate to
$40.6 milhon, or 3.0%, of the total loan portfolio. Our comumercial and industrial portfolio has deereased $20.3 mullion, or 33.3%, since
December 31, 2016, when commercial and indusinal loans amounted (o 360.9 million, or 7.1%, ol our total loan portiolio,

Commercial business loans are made to small to mid-sized businesses in our market area primarily to provide working capital.
Small business loans may have adjustable or fixed rates of interest and generally have terms of three vears or less, but may be as long
as 15 years. Our commercial business loans have historically been underwritien based on the ereditworthiness of the borrower and
generally require a debt service coverage ratio of at least 120%. In addition, we generally obtain personal guarantees from the principals
of the borrower with respect to commercial business loans and frequently obtain real estate as additional collateral.

The Bank of Princeton

Construction Loans. We origimate vanous types ol commereial loans, including construction loans, secured by collateral such
as real estate, business assets and personal guarantees. The loans are solicited on a direct basis and through various professionals with
whom we maintain contacts and by referral from our directors, stockholders and customers. At December 31, 2020, our construction
loans amounied to $263.0 million, or 19.2% of our total portfolio.  The average size of a construction loan was approximately $3.8
million at December 31, 2020, Our construction loans portfolio has increased substantially sinee December 31, 2016, when construction
loan amounted to 5166.7 million, or 19.3% of our total loan portfolio, an increase of $96.3 million or 57.8%. Construction lending
represents a segment of our loan portfolio and is driven primarily by market conditions. Loans to finance construction of condominium
projects or single-family homes and subdivisions are generally offered to expenienced builders in our primary market area with whom
we have an established relationship. The maximum loan-to-value limit applicable to these loans is 75% of the appraised post construction
value and does not require amortization of the principal during the term of the loan. We often establish interest reserves and obtain
personal and corporate guarantees as additional security on the construction loans. Interest reserves are used o pay monthly payments
during the construction phases of the loan and are treated as an addition to the loan balance. Interest reserves pose an additional risk to
the Bank if it does not become aware of deterioration in the borrower’s financial condition before the interest reserve is fully utilized.
In order to nutigate risk, financial statements and tax returns are obtained from borrowers on an annual basis. Construction loan proceeds
are disbursed periodically in increments as construction progresses and as inspection by approved appraisers or loan inspectors warrants.
Construction loans are negotiated on an individual basis but typically have floating rates of interest based on a common index plus a
stipulated margin. Additional fees may be charged as funds are disbursed. As units are completed and sold, we require that payments
to reduce principal outstanding be made prior to them being released. We may permii a pre-determined limited number of model homes
1o be constructed on an unsold or “speculative”™ basis. Construction loans also include loans 1o acquire land and loans 1o develop the
basic infrastructure, such as roads and sewers. The majority of the construction loans are secured by properties located in our primary
arcas.

Sel forth below 1s a briel deseription of our three largest construction loans or loan relationships:

- The largest construction loan is a 5326.0 million loan. The proceeds were used to finance Phase | of a four-phase project
located in Town of Palm Tree, NY. The combined projects consist of 1,951 residential condo units situated on
approximately 69 acres of land. Phase | alone will consist of 456 residential condominium units. The Bank participated
in this loan and holds 19.053% interest. The project i1s approximately 5% complete.

- The second largest construction loan is § 20.0 million. The proceeds were used to construct a 14 story mixed use building
including 68 residential and 2 retail units. The project is located Brooklyn WNY. The project is approximately 50%
complete.

- The third largest construction loan is an $18.1 million loan. The proceeds were used for a three-phase site construction
and site development for residential houses. The project is located in Middletown, PA. The project is approximately 40%
complete.

Residential First-Lien Morigage Loans. We otfer a narrow range of prime residential first-lien mortgage loans at competitive
rates. Our customers, stockholders and local real estate brokers are a significant source of these loans. We sirive to process, approve
and fund loans in a timeframe that meets the needs of our borrowers, Generally, we originate and retain non-conforming residential
first-lien mortgage loans and refer conforming residential first-lien mortgage loans to a third party, whereby we may earn a fee. At
December 31, 2020, our residential first-lien loans amounted to 566.9 millhion, or 4.9%%, of our total portfolio. Our residential first-lien
loan portfolio has mereased 510,01 million, or 17.9%, since December 31, 2016, when residential first-lien loans amounted to 3567
million, or 6.6%, of our total loan portfolio.

Home Equity Loans and Consumer Loans. We generate these loans and lines of credit primarily through direct marketing at
our branch locations, referrals from local real estate brokers and, to a lesser extent, by targeted direct marketing programs such as mail
and electronic mail. Consumer loans are solicited on a direct basis and upon referrals from our directors, stockholder and existing
customers.

Paycheck Protection Program Leans. The Coronavirus Aid, Rehel, and Economie Security Act ("CARES Act™) was passed
by Congress and signed into law on March 27, 2020, The CARES Act authonized the Small Business Admimstrabon (“SBA™) to
temporarily guarantee loans under a new 7(a) loan program called the Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP™). PPP loans are forgivable,
in whole or in part, if the proceeds are used for payroll and other permitted purposes in aceordance with the requirements of the
PPP. These loans carry a fixed rate of 1.00% and generally a term of two years, il not forgiven, in whole or in part. Payvments were
deferred for the first six months of the loan. The loans are 100% guaranteed by the SBA. The SBA pays the originating bank a processing

fee ranging from 1% to 5%, based on the size of the loan. During 2020 the Bank originated $185.6 million of PP'P loans of which 59.7
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million have been forgiven by the SBA as of December 31, 2020. At December 31, 2020, our PPP* loans amounted to $175.9 million,
or 12.9% of our total porttolio. These loans are fullv guaranteed by the SBA.

Loans Receivable, Net. Loans recervable, net inereased from $1.19 billion at December 31, 20019 to $1.37 halhon at December
31, 2020, an increase of 51783 mullion, or 15.0%. The increase was attributable to our efforts to grow our loan portfolio through
existing relationships and new business. This growth was largely funded by increases in deposits and a decrease in our investment
securities.

The following table details our loan maturities by loan segment and interest rate type:

December 31, 2020
Due after one

Duein one year  through five Due after five
{Dollars i thousands) or less years vears Total
Commercial real estate b 29831 5 100,049 § 682163 5 812,043
Commercial and mdustrial 20,947 9,032 10618 40,597
Construction 127,828 135,204 - 263,032
Residential first-lien mortgage - - 66,857 66,857
Home equity / Consumer - 193 9.736 9,929
Payvcheck Protection Program 21 175,857 - 175,878
Total loans b 178.627 5 420335 % THW3T4 5 1,368,336
Type:
Fixed rate loans b 92442 % 229041 % 121,103 % 442 586
Floating rate loans 86183 191,294 648,271 925750
Total loans b 178,627 5 420335 % 769374 5 1,368,336

The acerual of interest is discontinued when the contractual payment of principal or interest is 90 days past due or management
has serious doubts about further collectability of the principal or interest, even if the loan is currently performing.

The following table sets forth certain informarion regarding our nonacerual loans, troubled debi restructurings, aceruing loans
90 days or more past-due, and other real estale owned.

December 31,
(Dollars m thousands) 2020 L) ) M8 m7 2016
Monacemal lnans:
Conmnercial real estate % 1,030 % 24071 3 2968 5 7.589 b3 1,389
Conmercial and widus inal 132 0 2196 18 188
Constmction 370 im 487 1592 1649
Residential fust-hen montgage 144 - 0 - -
Houe equuty/Consuies - - 48 - 145
Pavcheck Protection Program - - - - -
Total nonaccmal loans Lo76 2442 30049 91% 3371
Trombled debt restructurings (TDRs) — performing BT 9293 1.286 4.7% 4,943
Acciumg loans % days or nore past due - - - - 1.820
Total nonperforming loans and performing TDRs 10,380 11,735 6985 13995 10,134
Other real estate ovwned - - 4 BO2 -
Total nonperforming assets and performing TR b 101,380 3 11,735 5 7029 5 14,797 5 10,134

The Bank of Princeton

See Note 4 - “Loans Receivable”™ in the Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements within this Form 10-K for additional
information regarding our loans not classified as nonperforming assets as of December 31, 2020 and for other information on our loan
ratings of special mention, substandard and doubtful, all of which contain varving degrees of potential credit problems that could result
in the loans being classified as nonaccrual, past-due 90 or more days or troubled debt restructurings in a future period.

Analysis of Allowance for Loan Losses. Our allowance for loan losses (the “allowanece™) 15 based on a documented
methodology, which includes an ongoing evaluation of the loan portfolio, and reflects management’s best estimate of probable losses
in the loan portfolio as of the reporting date. The determination of the allowance for loan losses nvolves a high degree of judgment and
complexity. In evaluating the adequacy of the allowanee for loan losses, management gives consideration to current economic
conditions, statutory examinations of the loan porifolio by regulatory agencies, loan reviews performed periodically by independent
third parties, delinquency information, management’s internal review of the loan portfolio, and other relevant factors. In determining
and maintaining our allowance for loan losses, we comply with the Federal I'inancial Institutions Examination Council (“FFIEC™)
Inieragency Policy Statements on the Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses and on Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses Methodologies
and Documentation for Banks and Savings Associaiions.

Our allowance for loan losses 1s maintained at a level considered adequate to provide for probable losses. We perform, at least
quarterly, an evaluation of the adequacy of the allowanee. The allowance 15 based on our past loan loss experience (which is bound by
our limited operating history), known and mherent risks m the portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower’s ability o
repay, the estimated value of any underlving collateral, the composition of the loan portfolio, current economic conditions and other
relevant factors. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires material estimates that may be susceptible to significant revision
as more information becomes available.

The allowance consists of specific, general, and unallocated components, The specific component relates to loans that are
classified as impaired. For loans that are classified as impaired, an allowance is established when the collateral value or observable
market price (or discounted cash flows) of the impaired loan is lower than the carrying value of that loan. At December 31, 2020, all
impaired loans value was based on the value of their collateral. The general component covers pools of loans by loan segment including
loans not considered impaired, as well as smaller balance homogeneous loans, such as residential mortgage and other consumer
loans. These pools of loans are evaluated for loss exposure based upon historical loss rates for each of these categories of loans, adjusted
for qualitative factors.

As of December 31, 2020, the allowance for loan losses was 516.0 million as compared to 312.6 million as of December 31,
2019, The provision for loan losses for the vear ended December 31, 2020 increased 5425000 over the provision of 54.8 million for
the year ended December 31, 2019, which was primarily due to $1.8 million in net charge-ofts recorded in 2020 and increases in the
qualitative factors used in estimating the provision. The ratio of allowance for loan losses to total loans as of December 31, 2020 was
1.17% (includes PPP loans) compared to 1.06% as of December 31, 2019,
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The following table presents a summary of changes in our allowsanee [or loan losses and includes information regarding charge-
offs, recoveries, and net charge-offs to average loans outstanding:

Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars w thousamds) 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Balance at begmnmg of year § 12,557 £ 1L P15 £ 10522 $ 10851
Charge offs:

Comerercial real estate (T16) 2 597) (216) (23100 -
Comerercial and mdustrial (188) (1.895) (300 (7300 -
Consiuction (8845) (225)

Residentul fst-ben mogage - - - - -
Houne equity/Consuner - - (3 - N

Pavcheck Protection Program - - - - -

Total charge offs (1, 7900 (4,492) [474) (3,0:400 -
Recovenss:
Commercial real estate 35 m 28 - -
Comerercial and mdustrial - 3 134 40 12
Constmction - - - 4 -

Residential first-ben mottgage - - - - -
Home equity'Consumer - - - - -

Pavcheck Protection Program - - - - .

Total recovenes 35 305 162 44 12

MNet charge-o s (1,755 (4,187) (312) (2.996) 12
Additions (reductions) charged to the provision (credin)

for loan kosses 5225 4,500 GhA 3765 41

Balance at end of year § 16,027 5 12557 P19 $ 11591 $ 10522

Met charge offs 1o average loans outstanding 014% 037 0.03% 0.33% (0"

Our allowanee for loan losses is allocated to the various segments of our portiolio identified above. The unallocaied component
of the allowance lor loan losses 1s maintained o cover uncertainties that could alfect our estimate of probable losses. The unallocated
component reflects the margin of imprecision inherent in the underlying assumptions used in the methodologies for estimating specific
and general losses in the portfolio. Reductions or additions to the allowance charged to operations are the result of applying our
allowance methodology to the existing loan portfolio.
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The following table presents the allocation of the allowance tfor loan losses by portfolio segment for the vears ended. The

allocation of a portion of the allowance for loan losses to one category of loans does not preclude its availability to absorb losses in other
calegories,

December 31,
2020 2019 2018
Allocation Allocation Allpcation
as a %ol as a %ol as 1 % of
Loan Loan Loan
(Dollars m thousands) Aamount Category Amount  Catepory Amount  Catepory
Cormmereial real estate b 9,635 50.3% 5 RI72 7. 7% 5 7208 67.3%
Conmercial and mdustral 1,015 30% 973 i 1396 6.6%
Construetion 4,069 19.2% 2258 15.9%% 1,859 14.9%
Residential first-lien mongage 324 4.9% 353 7.5% 368 9.4%
Home equity/Consumer [ 0.7% 6 1. 2% 106 1.8%
Paycheck Protection Program - 12.9% - 0.0%% - 0.0%
Unallocated 923 0.0%: 726 0.0P% 807 0.0%
Total 5 16,027 100.0% £ 12558 100,07 S 11,944 100.0%
December 31,
2017 2016
Allocation Allocation
as a % of as a % ol
Loan Loan
(Dollars in thousands) Amount Categorv Amount Category
Commercial real estate 5 6,240 65.3% % 5330 4. 7%
Conmrercial and industrial 957 6.1% 974 7.0°%
Conslruetion 3077 18.9% 3159 19.3%
Residential first-lien mongage 461 T.6% 404 6.6%
Home equity/Consumer 147 2.1% 158 2. 9%
Paycheck Protection Program - 0.10%% - 0.0
Unallocated 09 0.0% 77 L
Total b 11,59 1000 5 10,822 100.0°

See Note 4 — “Loans Recervable™ in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements within this Form 10-K for additional
inlormation regarding our allowance for loan losses,

Investment Securities (available-Tor-sale and held-to-maturity)

We hold securities that are available 1o fund increased loan demand or deposit withdrawals and other liquidity needs, and
which provide an additonal source of interest meome. Secunties are classified as held-to-matunty ("HTM™) or available-for-sale
(“AFS™ at the time of purchase. Secunties are classified as HTM 1l we have the ability and intent to hold them until matunty. HTM
securities are carried at cost, adjusted for unamortized purchase premiums and discounts. Securities that are classified as AI'S are carried
at fair value with unrealized gains and losses, net of income taxes, reported as a component of equity within accumulated other
comprehensive meome (loss).
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The following table presents a summary of the amortized cost and fair valvue of our securities available-for-sale.

Drzccmber 31,
2020 2019 2018

(Dollars in thousands) Ao peed - . :Ik.lli.."l:l:i..'tl.l. . . J‘I:II..'FI'.H'H] . )

- Lost Fam Waloe Cast Far  Vahie Lost Fair \ale
Mongage-backed Secunties-US, Govemment-sponsored

Emerprses (GSEs) % 24 487 £ 25,112 5 55,677 L1 55,051 i 46,954 5 46,472
Obbgations of state and pobitical subdivisions A8, T28 50,5140 55,977 546,361 15387 A5.209
Tatal % T3.215 % 15628 5 1144 S 112312 i 92341 5 91,651

Securities available-for-sale, which are carried at fair value, decreased $36.7 million, or 32.7%, to $75.¢ million at December
31,2020 from December 31, 2019. The Bank utilized a portion of excess cash on hand to fund loan growth, primarily PP loans.

The following table presents a summary of the amortized cost and fair value of our HI'M securities.

Diacember 31,
2020 2009 2018
. Amortized Amortired Amortized
(Doliars in thonsands ) Cost Fair  Wilue Cost Fair Vahie Cost Fair Vahe
Morgage-backed Securites-US, Govemment-s ponsored
Enterprses (G5Es ) 3 215 $ 237 5 22 5 230 13 228 b3 236

HTM securities decreased 3.2% from December 31, 2019 to December 31, 2020, The decline in HTM securities is the result
of normal principal prepayments and our strategy 1o not purchase additional securities for the HTM portfolio as we manage our
investment portfolio to allow for greater flexibility as our liquidity needs change.

The following table summarizes the maturity distribution schedule of the amortized cost of debt securities with comresponding
weighted-average vields at December 31, 2020. Interest income presented in this Form 10-K for tax-advantaged obligations of state
and political subdivisions has not been adjusted to refleet fully taxable-cquivalent interest income. Weighted-average vields presented
below have also nol been computed on a [ully taxable-equivalent basis. Expected maturities may difler [rom contractual maturities
because the securities may be called without any penalties.

After one Afber five
Ome year or thuongh fve thoough ten Adber ten
less VEArs YEArs VEArs Total
(Delars m thousands)
Morigage-backed Secuntes-US, Govemuenl-s ponsored
Enterpriacs (GSFa) 5 - 5 o7 5 LG43 5 21477 § 24487
Obligations of state and political subdivisions 290 5,770 12462 300G A8 TZR
Total 3 290 $ 6687 £ 14,155 § 51083 £ T35
Weighted average yvield 2T 3.93% 4. 0% 2.79% 3.26%

At December 31, 2020, there were no security holdings of any one issuer in an amount greater than 10.0% of our total
stockholders” equity. See Note 3 “Invesiment Securilies”™ m the Notes 1w Consolidated Finaneial Statements within this Form 10-K
for additional information regarding debt securities.
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Cash and Due From Banks

Cash and due from banks increased from $72.6 million at December 31, 2019 to 577.4 million at December 31, 2020, an
increase of 548 million, or 6.7%. The inercase in cash and due from banks was primarily attribuiable o an inerease in deposits that is
being held to fund future loan growth.

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment, net increased $1.9 million from December 31, 2019 to December 31, 2020 resulting from the addition
of three new branches opened during 2020, certain leasehold improvements with its existing branch network and $S683,000 in additional
purchases in computers and equipment, offset by $1.2 million in depreciation expense that oceurred during the year.

Goodwill and Core Depaosit Intangible

At December 31, 2020, the Bank had §8.9 nullion of goodwill and $3.0 million in core deposit intangible asset derived from
five branches purchased in May 2019,

Accrued Interest Receivable amnd (ther Assets

Accrued interest receivable increased 51.3 million from December 31, 2019 to December 31, 2020, primarily due to an increase
in the outstanding principal balance of loans at December 31, 2020, Deferred taxes increased $533,000 from December 31, 2019 1o
December 31, 2020, pnmarnly due (o the merease i deflerred tax associated with the allowance for loan losses, addition of delerred ax
asset associated to PPP loans and the net-deferred tax asset associated with core deposit intangible . Bank owned life insurance increased
$1.2 million from December 31, 2019 to December 31, 2020, primarily due to the camings recorded from the existing policies. Other
assets decreased $1.8 million from December 31, 2020 to December 31, 20, primarily due to a reduction of income tax recervable,

Deposits

Our deposit services are generally compnsed of a tradibonal range of deposit products, including checking accounts, savings
accounts, attorney trust accounts, money market accounts, and certificates of deposit.

We offer our customers access to automated teller machines (“ATMs") and other services which increase customer convenience
and encourage continued and additional banking relaiionships.

We endeavor to maintain competitive rates on deposit accounts, and actual rates are established at the time that they are offered,
and subsequently, based on contractual terms, take into consideration competitor offerings. Although from time to time we advertise in
local newspapers, our pnmary source ol deposit relationships 1s satisfied customers. We ofler a range ol direct deposit products ranging
from social secunty and disability payments to direct deposit of payroll checks.

During normal business practices the Dank will utilize deposits originated by brokers for short term funding needs. At
December 31, 2020 the balance of brokered deposits was 396.1 million, an increase of $60.5 million from the $35.6 million outstanding
al December 31, 2019,

At December 31, 2020, there were no customers whose deposit balances individually exceeded 3% of total deposits.
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The following table presents our time deposit maturities,

(Dallars in thousands)

Time deposius of 100,000 or more
Time deposis of kess than S100.000

Towal

December 31, 2020

Over six
Three Oner three through Oner
manths or through six twelwe twelwe
less munths moaihs months Total
3 42465 5 3927 5 49285 5 56,267 517994
20,653 20,556 26.201 131540 198,950
5 63118 5 32443 5 ThAE0 5 157807 5 378,804

The following table presents the average balance of our deposit accounts and the average cost of funds for each category of

our deposits,

2020 e L E
% of %% of %% af
A, Awrage Avg, Awverage Ang, Average
(Dralkars in thousaxds) Anerage Haite Tatal Awerage Hate Tatal Average Hate Tatal
Amouni Fald Depansdis At Paid Do posits Amouni FPald Dieposiis
D, non-ineresi-bearimg
checking 514208 LU e 16.5% §o1maE D00 110 5 100078 L p b
Demmnd Interesi-hearin g 224678 6% 17.5% 205,528 1.15% 18.3% 215379 0 REY 21.P%
Maney market 281421 B 71% 21" 254151 1.6T% i 2737 142% 2660
Savings deposits 171119 058% 13.1% 132,027 L.30% 11.8% 102215 LIT% 10
Tine deposits of
S250,000 o7 more B A7 218% 6.9 114,048 238% 10.2% ET.ITE LE3% B3
Oither tone deposns 320056 200 247 292,360 | 2. 1% 247,005 1.79% 4.1%
Toral 5 1300909 095 10007 £ 122738 1.58% 1000 £ 1025829 1.26% 100.0°%

See the liquidity discussion within Item 7 Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations within this Form 10-K for more information regarding our available funds.

Total deposits increased from $1.24 ballion at December 31, 2019 10 $1.37 billion at December 31, 2020, an increase of $129 .4
million, or 10.5%. Non-interest-bearing deposits increased $74.0 million, or 52.4%, to $215.4 million at December 31, 2020. Interest-
bearing deposits increased $53.3 million, or 5.0%, to $1.15 billion at December 31, 2020,

Borrowings

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Bank had no borrowings outstanding.

Accrued Interest Payable and Other Liabilities

Acerued interest payable and other habilities imereased 557 million to 326.8 million as compared to 321.1 million in the prior

year. This increase is primarily due to a 5.8 million lease liability recorded in connection with right-of-use asset from the application
of ASU No. 2016, “Leases”™ (Topic 842).

Stockholders® Equity

Total stockholders” equity increased 512.9 million to 3208.8 million at December 31, 2020, an increase of approximately 6.6%.
This increase 1s primarily attributable to net income, net of cash dividends paid of 511.1 million, 287,000 received from the exercise
of stock options and a 1.2 mullion imerease in the fur value of the available-for-sale investment securities.
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Other Services

To further attract and retain customer relationships, we provide a standard array of additional community banking services,
which include the following:

Money orders Automated teller machines

Direct deposit
Cashier’s checks

Wire transfers

Sale deposit boxes Un-line banking
Night depository
Bank-by-mail

Mobile Banking

Remote deposit capiure
EE and 1 U.S. savings bonds redemption
Debit cards

Automated telephone banking

Electronic funds transfer (Zelle)

We also offer. on a limited basis. payroll-related services and credit card and merchant credit card processing through third
parties herchby we do not undertake credit or tfrand risk.

Internet Banking

We advertise but do not actively solicit new deposits or loans through our website. We utlize a qualified and experienced
nternet service provider o fumish the following types of customer account services:

Transaction histories
Transaction details

Full on-line statements
On-line bill payment

Account mguiries Account-to-account transfers

Fee Income

Tee income is a component of our non-interest income. DBy charging non-customers fees for using our ATMs and charging
customers for banking services such as money orders, cashier’s checks. wire transters and check orders, as well as other deposit and
loan-related fees, we earn fee mcome. Prudent fee income opportunities are sought to supplement net interest mcome, but may be
limited by our efforts to remain competitive and by regulatory constraints.

Staffing
As ol December 31, 2020, we had approximalely 176 [ull-time equivalent employvees,
Supervision and Regulation

General. We are extensively regulated under both federal and state law. These laws restrict permissible activities and
investments and require compliance with vanous consumer prolection provisions applicable o lending, deposit, brokerage and hdueiary
activities, They also impose capital adequacy requirements and conditions to our ability to repurchase stock or to pay dividends, We
are also subject to comprehensive examination and supervision by the New Jersey Department of Banking and Insurance (the
“Department™) and the FDIC. The Department and the FDIC have broad discretion to impose restrictions and limitations on our
operations. This supervisory framework could materially impact the conduet and profitability of our activities.

To the extent that the following information describes statutory and regulatory provisions, it is qualified in its entirety by
reference to the particular statutory and regulatory provisions. Proposals to change the laws and regulations governing the banking
industry are frequently raised at both the state and federal levels. The likelihood and timing of any changes in these laws and regulations,
and the impact such changes may have on us, are difficult 10 ascertain. Changes in applicable laws and regulations, or in the manner
such laws or regulations are interpreted by regulatory agencies or courts, may have a material effect on our business, financial condition
and results of operations.

We are subject to various requirements and resirictions under federal and state law, including requirements 1o maintain reserves
against deposits, restrictions on the types, amount and terms and conditions of loans that may be originated, and limits on the type of
other activities in which we may engage and the investments we may make. DBanking regulations permit us to engage in certain
additional activities, such as insurance sales and securities underwriting. through the formation of'a “financial subsidiary.” In order to
be eligible 1o establish or acquire a financial subsidiary, we must be “well capitalized™ and “well managed™ and may not have less than
a “satisfactory” CRA mating. Al this time, we do not engage in any activity which would require us o maintain a fnancial subsidiary.
We are also subject to federal laws that limit the amount of transactions between us and any nonbank affiliates. Under these provisions,
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transactions, such as a loan or investment, by us with any nonbank affiliate are generally limited to 10% of our capital and surplus for
all covered transactions with such affiliate or 20% percent of capital and surplus for all covered transactions with all affiliates. Any
extensions of eredit, with hmited exceptions, must be secured by ehgble collateral in specified amounts. We are also prohibited from
purchasing any “low quality™ assets from an affiliate. The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act {the “Dodd-
Frank Act™) significantly expands the coverage and scope of the limitations on affiliate transactions within a banking organization.

Monetary Policy. Our business, financial condition and results of operations are and will be affected by domestic economic
conditions and the monetary and fiscal policies of the United States government and its agencies. The monetary policies of the Federal
Reserve Svstem, (“Federal Reserve™) have a significant effect upon the operating results of commercial banks such as ours, The Federal
Reserve has a major effect upon the levels of bank loans. investments and deposits through its open market operations in United States
government securities transactions and through its regulation of, among other things. the discount rate on borrowings of member banks
and the reserve requirements against member banks’™ deposits, 1 1s not possible Lo predict the nature and impaet ol future changes in
monetary and fiscal policies,

Deposit Insurance. The Bank’s deposits are insured up to applicable limits by the Deposit Insurance Fund of the FDIC (“DII™).
No institution may pay a dividend if in default of the federal deposit insurance assessment.

The DIF has a mumimum designated reserve ratio ("DRR™) of 1.35% ol the estimated msured deposits, The FDIC has adopted
a restoration plan should the DRR fall below 1.35%, and dividends are required to be paid to the industry should the DER exceed 1.50%,
The assessment base for msured depository institutions 1s the average consolidated total assets during an assessment period less average
tangible equity capital during that assessment period.

The limit for federal deposit insurance is 3250,000 and the cash limit of Securities Investor Protection Corporation proteciion
15 also 5250000,

In addition to the assessment for deposit insurance, institutions are required to make payments on bonds issued in the late 19805
by the Financing Corporation to recapitahize a predecessor deposit mmsurance fund. In September 2019, the Bank was notfied by the
FDIC that the Deposit Insurance Fund Reserve Ratio exceeded 1.35% and that the Bank would receive a one-time credit in the amount
of $270,000, which would offset the Bank’s quarterly deposit insurance premium payment.

The FDIC has authority to increase insurance assessments. A significant increase in insurance assessments would likely have
an adverse efllect on our operating expenses and resulls of operations. Managemen! cannol predict what insurance assessment rates will
be in the future,

Deposit insurance may be terminated by the FDIC upon a finding that the institution has engaged in unsafe or unsound practices,
15 in an unsafe or unsound condition w continue operations or has violated any applicable law, regulation, rule, order or condition

imposed by the FDIC.

Dividend Restrictions. Under the New Jersey Banking Act of 1948, as amended (the “Banking Act™), a bank may declare and
pay cash dividends only 1f, after payment of the dividend, the capital stock of the bank will be unimpaired and either the bank will have
a surplus of not less than 50% of its capital stock or the payment of the dividend will not reduce the bank’s surplus. The FDIC prohibits
pavment ol cash dividends if, as a result, the msttution would be undercapitalized, or the mstitution 15 in default with respect Lo any
assessment due to the FDIC.

Regulatory Capital Requirements. Federally insured, state-chartered non-member banks are required to maintain minimum
levels of regulatory capital. Current FDIC capital standards require these institutions to satisfy a common equity Tier | capital
requirement, a leverage capital requirement and a risk-based capital requirement.

The common equity Tier | capital component generally consists of retained earnings and common stock instruments and must
equal at least 4.5% of risk-weighted assets.

Leverage capital, also known as “core™ capital, must equal at least 3.0% of adjusted total assets for the most highly rated state-
chartered non-member banks. Core capital generally consists of common stockholders’ equity (including retained earnings). An
additional cushion of at least 100 basis points is required for all other banking associations, which effectively increases their minimum
Ther 1 leverage ratio to 4.0% or more. Under the FDICs regulations, the most highly-rated banks are those that the FDIC determines
are sirong banking organizations and are rated composite | under the Uniform Financial Institutions Rating System.
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Under the risk-based capital requirements, “total” capital (a combination of core and “supplementary™ capital) must equal at
least 8.0% of “risk-weighted™ assets. The FDIC also is authorized to impose capital requirements in excess of these standards on
individual institutions on a case-by-case basis.

Capital rules that became effective on January 1, 2015 introduced a requirement for a common equity Tier | capital
conservation buffer of 2.5% of risk-weighted assets, which is in addition to the other minimum risk-based capital standards described
above. Instituiions that do not maintain this required capital butfer become subject o progressively more siringent limitations on the
percentage of earnings that can be paid out in dividends or used for stock repurchases and on the payment of discretionary bonuses 1o
senior executive management. The capital butfer requirement was phased in over four vears and became fully phased-in on January 1,
2019. At December 31, 2020, the Bank met all capital adequacy requirements on a fully phased-in basis.

For capltal wmlequacy purpos es To be well capitallzed under promygs
Actmal (mehding capital buffer requirerment} corrective acilon provsions

(Drollars i (xusads ) Amsount Ratio Amount Ratlo Amsount Ratlao
December 31, 2020

Total capital (to rsk-weighted assets) $ 211165 16.03% £ 13835 = 10.50°% £ 131762 = 10,0085
Tier 1 capital (to nsk-weighted assets) $ 195138 14.81% § 11158 = 3.5, £ 105410 = BNPs
Commnon equity tier 1 capital (1o nsk-weighted assets)  § 0 195138 14.81% £ 922y = TPy £ 8Sad6 = 6.5
Tier 1 keverage capital (1o avemge assels) £ 195138 12.48% £ 101600 > 6,507 £ 786l = 500
December 31, 2019

Total capital (to risk-weighted assets) T 1675 15.11% £ I35 = 10,507 £ 128852 = 1000
Tier 1 eapital (to nsk-weighted assets) $ 182118 14.153% £ s = B3P £ 103082 = BiNPs
Comnnon equity tier 1 capital (lo nsk-weighted assets)  § 182,118 14.153% £ o0l% = 7.0 £ 8BTM = 6.5Fs
Tier 1 leverage capital (1o average assets) § 18218 128025 £  9LElD 2 6,500 £ 70523 2 S0

In determining compliance with the risk-based capital requirement, a banking organization is allowed to include both core
capital and supplementary capital in its total capital, provided that the amount of supplementary capital included does not exceed the
bank’s core capital. Supplementary capital generally consists of general allowances [or loan losses up 1o a maximum ol 1.25% ol nsk-
weighted assets, together with certain other items. In determining the required amount of risk-based capital, total assets, including certain
off-balance sheet items, are multiplied by a risk-weight based on the risks inherent in the type of assets. At December 31, 2020, the
Bank exceeded all its regulatory capital requirements.

Any banking orgamzation that fails any of the capital requirements is subject to possible enforcement action by the FI)IC. Such
action could include a capital directive, a cease and desist order, civil money penalties, the establishment of restrictions on the
institution’s operations, termination of federal deposit insurance and the appointment of a conservator or receiver. The FDIC"s capital
regulations provide that such actions, through enlorcement proceedings or otherwise, could require one or more ol a vanely ol commective
actions.

Prompr Corrective Action. In addition to the required minimum capital levels described above, federal law establishes a system
of “prompt corrective actions”™ that federal banking agencies are required to take, or have discretion to take, based upon the capital
category o which a federally-regulated depository mshiution falls.  Regulations set forth detailed procedures and ertenia for
implementing prompt corrective action in the case of any institution which is not adequately capitalized. The following table shows the
amount of capital associated with the different capital categories set forth in the prompt corrective action regulations.

Total Tier 1 Common Equity Tier 1
Risk-Based Risk-Based Tier 1 Leverage
Capital Category Capital Capital Capital Capital
Well capitalized 105 or more &% or more 6.3% or more 3% or more
Adequately capitalized %% or more 6% or more 4.5% or more 4% or more
Undercapitalized Less than 8% Less than 6% Less than 4.5% Less than 4%
Significantly undercapialized Less than 6% Less than 4% Less than 3% Less than 3%

In addition, a banking organization is “critically undercapitalized™ if it has a ratio of tangible equity to total assets that s equal
to or less than 2.0%. Under specified circumstances, a federal banking agency may reclassify a well-capitalized institution as adequately
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capitalized and may require an adequately capitalized institution or an undercapitalized institution to comply with supervisory actions
as if it were in the next lower category (except that the FDIC may not reclassify a significantly undercapitalized institution as critically
undercapitalized).

A banking organization generally mwust file a written capital restoration plan which meets specified requirements within 435
days of the date that the institlution receives notice or 1s deemed to have notice that it 15 undercapitahzed, sigmihcantly undercapitahzed
or critically undercapitalized. A federal banking agency must provide the institution with written notice of approval or disapproval
within 60 days after receiving a capital restoration plan, subject to extensions by the agency. A banking organization which is required
to submut a capital restoration plan must concurrently submit a performance guaranty by each company that controls the mstitution. In
addition, undercapitalized organizations are subject to various regulatory restrictions, and the appropriate federal banking agency also
may take any number of discretionary supervisory actions. At December 31, 2020, the Bank was not subject to the above mentioned
restrictions.

Community Reinvestment Act. The Community Remvestment Act (“CRA™) requires that banks meet the credit needs of all
of their assessment area, as established for these purposes in accordance with applicable regulations based principally on the location of
branch offices, including those of low-income arcas and borrowers. The CRA also requires that the FIDIC assess all finanecial instinutions
that 1t regulates to determmne whether these institutions are meeting the credit needs of the community they serve. Under the CRA,
institutions are assigned a rating of “outstanding,” “satisfactory,” “needs to improve™ or “unsatistactory.” Our record in meeting the
requirements of the CRA is made publicly available and is taken into consideration in connection with any applications with federal
regulators to engage in certam activities, including approval of a branch or other deposit facility, mergers and acquisitions, office
relocations, or expansions into non-banking activities. As of December 31, 2020, we maintained a “satisfactory” CRA rating. The
federal banking regulators recently announced extensive proposed changes to the regulations under CRA, but no final rules have vet
been adopted. We have not vet exanuned the proposed changes, but we do not beheve that they will matenally aflect the operation of
the Bank if they are adopted.

o

Dodd-Frank Act. The Dodd-Frank Act became law on July 21, 2010, The Dodd-Frank Act implemented far-reaching changes
across the financial regulatory landscape. Among other things. the Dodd-Frank Act ereated the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau
(the “CFPE™), which is an independent bureau within the Federal Reserve System with broad authority to regulate the consumer finance
industry, including regulated financial institutions such as us, as well as non-banks and others who are involved in the consumer finance
industry. The CTPDB has exclusive authority through formal rulemaking, as well as through the issuance of orders, policy statements,
guidance and enforcement actions to administer and enforce federal consumer financial protection laws, to oversee non-federally
regulated entities, to prevent practices that the CFPB deems unfair, deceptive or abusive. While the CFPE has these extensive powers
to interpret, administer and enforce federal consumer financial protection laws, the Dodd-Irank Act provides that the FDIC continues
to have examination and enforeement powers over us on matters otherwise following within the CFPB’s jurisdiction beeause we have
less than $10 billion in assets. The Dodd-Frank Act also gives slate attorneys general the ability 1o enloree federal consumer protection
laws,

Federal Home Loan Bank Membership. We are a member of the FHLB-NY. Each member of the FHLB-NY is required to
maintain a minimum investment in capital stock of the FHLB-NY. The Board of Directors of the FHLB-NY can increase the minimum
mvestment requirements in the event it has concluded that additonal capital 1s required 1o allow it o meet its own regulatory capiial
requirements. Any increase in the minimum investment requirements outside of specified ranges requires the approval of the Federal
Housing Finance Agency. Because the extent of any obligation to increase our investment in the FHLB-NY depends entirely upon the
oceurrence of a future event, potential payments to the FHLB-NY are not determinable.

Additionally, in the event that we fail, the right of the FIILB-NY to seek repavment of funds loaned to us will take priority
over certain other creditors.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Aer. Asa public company, the Bank is subject to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 which addresses, among
other issues, corporate governance, auditing and accounting, executive compensation, and enhanced and timely disclosure of corporate
information. As directed by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer are required to certify
that our quarterly and annual reports do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact. The rules adopted by the SEC under the
Sarbanes-Cxley Act require these officers to cerlify that they are responsible for establishing, maintaining and regularly evaluating the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting; they have made certain disclosures to our auditors and the audit committee
of the Board of Directors about our internal control over financial reporting; and they have included information in our quarterly and
annual reports about their evaluanon and whether there have been changes in our mternal control over financial reporting or in other
factors that could matenally affect internal control over financial reporting.
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Loans to One Borrower. New Jersev banking law limits the total loans and extensions of credit by a bank to one borrower at
one time to 13% of the capital funds of the bank, or up to 25% of the capital funds of the bank if the additional 10% is fully secured by
eollateral having a market value (as determined by reliable and continuously available price quotations) at least equal to the amount of
the loans and extensions of credit over the 15% limit. At December 31, 2020, the Bank’s lending limit to one borrower under regulatory
guidelines was 53 1.7 million, but our Board of Directors has set an internal lending limit of approximately 75.0% of legal lending limit
or $23 8 million.

Concentrafion and Risk Guidance. The lederal banking regulatory agencies promulgated joimni interagency guidance regarding
material direct and indirect asset and funding concentrations. The guidance defines a concentration as any of the following: (i) asset
concentrations of 25% or more of Total Capital (loan related) or Tier 1 Capital (non-loan related) by individual borrower, small
interrelated group of individuals, single repayment source or individual project; (ii) asset concentrations of 100% or more of Total
Capital (loan related) or Tier | Capital (non-loan related) by industry, product line, type of collateral, or short-term obligations of one
financial institution or affiliated group; (iii) funding concentrations from a single source representing 10% or more of Total Assets: or
(1v) potentially volatile funding sources that when combined represent 253% or more of Total Assets (these sources may include brokered,
large, gh-rate, uninsured, mtemel-hsting-service deposits, Federal [unds purchased or other potentially volatle deposits or
borrowings). If a concentration is present, management must employ heightened risk management practices including board and
management oversight and strategic planning, development of underwriting standards, risk assessment and monitoring through market
analysis and stress testing, third party review and increasing capital requirements. The Bank adheres 1o the practices recommended in
this guidance,

Economic Growth, Regulatory Relief, and Consumer Protection Act. The Economic Growth, Regulatory Relief., and
Consumer Protection Act (the “EGRR&CPA™), which was designed to ease certain restrictions imposed by the Dodd-Frank Act, was
enacled into law on May 24, 2015, Most of the changes made by the EGRR&CPA can be grouped nlo [ive general areas; morigage
lending; certain regulatory relief for “community™ banks; enhanced consumer protections in specific areas, including subjecting credit
reporting agencies to additional requirements; certain regulatory relief for large financial institutions, including increasing the threshold
at which institutions are classified systemically important financial institutions (from $30 billion to 3230 billion) and therefore subject
Lo stricter oversight, and revising the rules [or larger mstitution siress lesting; and certain changes o [ederal securihies regulations
designed to promote capital formation. Some of the key provisions of the EGRR&CPA as it relates to community banks include, but
are not limited to: (1) designating mortgages held in portfolio as “qualified mortgages™ for banks with less than $10 billion in assets,
subject o certain documentation and product limitations; (11) exempting banks with less than $10 billion in assets from Volcker Rule
requirements relating o proprietary trading: (1) simplifying capital caleulations for banks with less than 510 billion i assets by
requiring federal banking agencies to establish a community bank leverage ratio of tangible equity to average consolidated assets not
less than &% or more than 10% and provide that banks that maintain tangible equity in excess of such ratio will be deemed to be in
compliance with risk-based capital and leverage requirements; (1v) assisting smaller banks with obitaining stable funding by providing
an exceplion for reciprocal deposits from FIDNC restrictions on acceplance of brokered deposiis; (v) rasing the eligibility for use of
short-form Call Reports from $1 billion to $5 billion in assets; and (vi) clarifying definitions pertaining to high volatility commercial
real estate loans (HVCRE). which require higher capital allocations, so that only loans with increased risk are subject to higher risk
weightings.

Section 201 of the EGRR&CPA directed the federal banking agencies to develop a community bank leverage ratio (“CBLR™)
of not less than 8% and not more than 10% for qualifying community banks and bank holding companies with total consolidated assets
of less than 3510 billion. Qualitying community banking organizations that exceed the CBLR level established by the agencies, and that
elect to be covered by the CBLR framework, will be considered 1o have met: (i) the generally applicable leverage and risk-based capital
requirements under the banking agencies” capital rules; (i1) the capital ratio requirements necessary to be considered “well capitalized”
under the banking agencies” prompt corrective action framework in the case of insured depository institutions; and (iii) any other
applicable capital or leverage requirements.

On September 17, 2019, the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency, the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve Board,
and the FDIC adopted a rule to implement the provisions of Section 201 of the EGRR&CPA. Under the rule, a qualifying conununity
banking organization would be defined as a deposit institution or depository institution holding company with less than 510 billion in
assels and specified limited amounts of off-balance sheet exposures, trading assets and liabilities, mortgage servicing assets, and certain
temporary difference deferred tax assets. A qualifying community banking organization would be permitied 1o elect the CBLR
framework if its CBLR is greater than 9%. The rule also addresses opting in and opting out of the CBLR framework by a community
banking organization, the treatment of a community banking organization that falls below the CBLR requirements, and the effect of
vanous CBLR levels for purposes of the prompt comrective action categones applicable to insured depository institubions.  Advanced
approaches banking organizations (generally, mstitutions with 5250 billion or more in consolidated assets) are not eligible to use the
CBLR framework. The Bank did not opt in to the CBLR framework.
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The Bank continues to analvze the changes implemented by the EGRR&CPA, including the CBLER. framework included in the
recenily adopied rule, and further rulemaking from federal banking regulators, but, at this time, does not believe that such changes will
malterially impact the Bank’s business, operations, or financial results.

Changes in New Jersey Tax Laws. On September 29, 2020, New Jersey Governor Phil Murphy signed mto law A 4721,
extending through December 31, 2023, the 2.5% surtax currently imposed on Corporation Busmess Tax (CBT) hlers with allocated
taxable net ncome over $1 million. As originally enacted, the surtax rate was scheduled to decrease from 2.5% to 1.5% for privilege
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2021 and expire for privilege periods beginning on or after January
1. 2022, The change made by A.4721 takes effect immediately and applies retroactively to privilege periods beginning on or atter
January 1, 2020,

On July 1, 2018, New Jersey Governor Phil Murphy signed into law changes to the corporate business tax laws. This legislation
required a combined group to file combined returns for tax vears beginning in 2019 and thereafier. Ilowever, due to technical issues
and inconsistencies with exasting lax law, 1t was determined that the ax law change did not have an impact on delerred taxes, In
December 2019, the State of New Jersey issued a clanfving techmeal bulletin related to the impact of the 2018 tax legislation. This
technical bulletin provided clarification to the combined income tax reporting for certain members of a unitary business
group. Accordingly, this required a revaluation of some of the Bank’s deferred tax assets. In the dth quarter of 2019, the Bank recorded
a state deferred tax benefit i the amount of approximately 5117 000,

Other Laws and Regulations. We are subject to a variety of laws and regulations which are not limited to banking
organizations. For example, in lending to commercial and consumer borrowers, and in owning and operating our own property, we are
subject to regulations and potential liabilities under state and federal environmental laws.

We are heavily regulated by regulatory agencies at the federal and state levels. As a result of events in the financial markets
and the economy in recent vears, we, like most of our competitors, have faced and expect to continue to face increased regulation and
regulatory and political serutiny, which ercates significant uncertainty for us and the financial services industry n general.

Future Legisiation and Regulation. Regulators have increased their focus on the regulation of the financial services industry
in recent years. Proposals that could substantially intensify the regulation of the financial services industry have been and are expected
to continue to be introduced in the U.S. Congress, in state legislamres and by applicable regulatory authorities. These proposals mav
change banking statules and regulation and our operating environment in substanial and unpredictable ways, [lenacted, these proposals
could increase or decrease the cost of doing business, limit or expand permissible activities or affect the competitive balance among
banks, savings associations, credit unions, and other financial mstitutions. We cannot prediet whether any of these proposals will be
enacted and, if enacted, the effects that such laws or any implementing regulations would have on our business, financial condition and
resulls of operalions,

Item 1A. Risk Factors

In analvzing whether fo make or fo confinue an invesiment in our common stack, investors should consider, amang other factors, the
Jallowing risk factors.

RISKS RETATED TO OUR BUSINESS

The COVID-19 pandemic is adversely affecting, and will likely confinue to adversely affect, our business, financial condition,
liguidiry, and results of operations.

The COVID-19 pandemic has negatively impacted the 1.8, and global economy; disrupted U5, and global supply chains; created
significant volatility and disruption in financial markets; contributed to a decrease in the rates and yields on U.S. Treasury securities;
resulted in ratings downgrades, eredit deterioration, and defaulis in many industries; inereased demands on capital and liqudity; and
increased unemployment levels and decreased consumer confidence. In addition, the pandemic has resulted in temporary and
permanent closures of many businesses and the institution of social distancing and other requirements in many states and
communities, including those in our footprint. The pandemic will likely cause us to recognize credit losses in our loan portfolio and
increases in our allowance for loan losses. Sustained adverse effects may also increase our cost of capital, prevent us from satisfying
our minimum regulatory capital ratios and other supervisory requirements, or result in downgrades in our credit raings. The extent (o
which the COVID-19 pandemic impacts our business, financial condition, liquidity, and results of operations will depend on future
developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted. including the scope and duration of the pandemic, the continued
elTectiveness ol our Pandermic Action Plan, the direet and indirect impaet of the pandemic on our cuslomers, colleagues,
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counterparties and service providers, and actions taken by governmental authorities and other third parties in response 1o the
pandemic.

Governmental authorities have taken significant measures to provide economic assistance to individual households and businesses,
stabilize the markets, and support economic growth., The success of these measures is unknown, and they may not be sufficient to
fully nutigate the negative impact of the pandemie, Addionally, some measures, such as a suspension ol consumer and commereial
loan payments and the reduction in interest rates to near zero, may have a negative impact on our business, financial condition,
liquidity, and results of operations. We also face an increased risk of litigation and governmental and regulatory scrutiny as a result of
the effects of the pandemic on market and economic conditions and actions governmental authorities take in response to those
conditions.

The length of the pandemic and the effectiveness of the measures being put in place to address it are unknown. Until the effects of the
pandemic subside, we expect continued draws on lines of credit, reduced revenues in our businesses, and increased customer defaulis.
Furthermore, the ULS. economy has experienced a recession as a result of the pandemic, and our business could be materially and
adversely affected by a prolonged recession. Therefore, given the ongoing and dynamic nature of the COVID-19 outbreak, it is
difficult to predict the full impact on our business. The extent of such impact will depend on future developments, which are highly
uncertain, including when the coronavirus can be controlled and abated and when and how the economy may be tully reopened and
remain open. As the resull of the COVID-19 pandemic and the related adverse local and national economie consequences, the Bank
could be subject to any of the following risks which could have a material, adverse effect on its business, financial condition, liquidity,
and results of operations:

. demand lor products and services may decline, making it difficull to grow assets and mcome;

. if the economy is unable to substantially reopen or remain open, and high levels of unemployment continue for an
extended period of ume, loan delinquencies, problem assets, and foreclosures may increase, resulting in increased
charges and reduced income;

. collateral for loans, especially real estate, may decline i value, which could cause loan losses 1o increase;

. the allowance for loan losses may have to be increased 1f borrowers experience financial difficulties, which will
adversely affect our net income:

. the net worth and liquidity of loan guarantors may decline, impairing their ability to honor commitments;

. as the result of the decline in the Federal Reserve Board’s target federal funds rate to near (%o, the vield on assetls may

decline to a greater extent than the decline in the cost of interest-bearing liabilities, reducing net interest margin and
spread, and reducing net income;

. a material decrease in nel mcome or a net loss over several quarters could resull in a decrease m the rate of, or [ull
suspension of, quarterly cash dividends;

. cvber security risks are increased as the result of an increase in the number of employees working a portion of their work
hours remotely;

. civil unrest could occur in the communities that the Bank serves:

. we rely on third party vendors [or certain services, and the unavailability of eritical service due 1o COVID-19 outbreak
could have an adverse effect on us: and

. FDIC premiums may increase if the agencv experiences additional resolution costs.

To the extent the pandemic adversely alTects our business, linancial condition, liquidity, or results of operations, it may also have the
effect of heightening many of the other risks described elsewhere in this “Risk Factors™ section.

Our participation in the SBA PPP loan program exposes us to risks related to noncomplianee wich the PPP, as well as litigation
risk related to our administration of the PPP loan program, which could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial
condition and results of operations

The Bank 15 a participating lender in the PPP, a loan program administered through the SBA, that was created 1o help ehgible
businesses, organizations and self-employed persons fund their operational costs during the COVID-19 pandemic. Under this
program, the SBA guarantees 100% of the amounts loaned under the PPP. The PPP opened on April 3, 2020; however, because of the
short window between the passing of the CARES Act and the opening of the PPP, there was some ambiguity in the laws, rules and
euidance regarding the operation of the PPP, which exposes the Bank 1o risks relating to noncompliance with the PPP. For instance,
other financial institutions have experienced litigation related to their process and procedures used in processing applications for the
PPP. Any financial liability, litigation costs or reputational damage caused by PPP related litigation could have a material adverse
impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations. In addition, the Bank may be exposed to credit risk on PPP loans
il a determunation is made by the SBA that there is a deficiency in the manner in which the loan was originated. [unded, or serviced. 1f
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a deliciency 1s identified, the SBA may deny ils hability under the guaranty, reduce the amount of the guaranty, or, 10711 has already
paid under the guaranty, seek recovery of any loss related to the deficiency from the Bank.

Competition from other financial institutiions in originating loans and attracting deposits may adversely affect our profitabiliny.

We face substantial competition in originating loans. This competition comes principally from other banks, savings mstitutions,
mortgage banking companies, eredit unions and other lenders in our market area, which is generally an arca within an approximate 100
mile radius of Princeton and dominated by large statewide, regional and mierstate banking institutions. Many of our compelitors enjoy
advantages, such as greater financial resources and higher lending limits, a wider geographic presence, more accessible branch office
locations, the ability to offer a wider array of services or more favorable pricing alternatives, as well as lower origination and operating
costs. This competition could reduce our net income by decreasing the number and size of loans that we originaie and the interest rates
we may charge on these loans.

These competitors may ofter higher interest rates on deposits than we do, which could decrease the deposits that we attract or
require us to increase our inferest rates on deposit accounts to refain existing deposits or attract new deposits. Increased deposit
competition could adversely affect our ability to generate the funds necessary for lending operations and may increase our cost of funds.
Additionally, these competitors may offer lower interest rates on loans than we do, which could decrease the amount of loans that we
allract or require us o decrease our inlerest rates on loans o altract new loans. Increased loan compettion could adversely allect our
net interest margin.

We also compete with non-bank providers of financial services, such as brokerage fimms, consumer finance companies,
insurance companies and zovernmental organizations which may offer more favorable terms. Some of our non-bank competitors are
not subject to the same extensive regulations that govern our operations. As a result, such non-bank competitors may have advantages
over us in providing certain products and services. This competition may reduee or limit our margins on banking serviees, reduce our
market share and adversely allect our resulls ol operations and [nmancial condition,

ir growth has substantially increased our expenses and impacted our results of operations.

Although we believe that our growih-orented business strategy will support our long-term profitability and franchise value,
the expense associated with our growth, including compensation expense for the emplovees needed to support this growth and leasehold
and other expenses associated with our locations, has and may continue to negatively atfect our results. In addition, in order for our
existing branches to contribute to our long-term profitability, we will need to be successful in attracting and maimtaining cost-efficient
deposits at these locations. In order to successfully manage our prowth, we need to effectively execute policies, procedures and controls
to maintain our credit quality and oversee our operations. We can provide no assurance that we will be successtul in this strategy.

hr growth-oriented business strategy could be adversely affected if we are not able to attract and retain skilled employees.

We may not be able to successfully manage our business as a result of the strain on our management and operations that may
resull [rom growth, Our ability 1o manage growth will depend upon our ability o continue to attract, hire and retain skilled employees,
and we may need to adopt additional equity plans in order to do so. Our success will also depend on the ability of our officers and key
emplovees to continue to implement and improve our operational and other systems, 1o manage multiple, concurrent customer
relationships and to hire, train and manage our employees.

If deposit levels are not sufficient, it may be more expensive to fund loan originations.

Our deposits have been our primary funding source. In current market conditions, depositors may choose to redeploy their
funds into the stock market or other investment alternatives, regardless of our effort to retain such depositors. If this oceurs, it would
hamper our ability to grow deposits and could result in a net outflow of deposits. We will continue to focus on deposit growth, which
we use o fund loan originations. However, if we are unable to suflicienily inerease our deposit balances, we may be required to increase
our use of alternative sources of funding, including Federal Home Loan Bank advances, or to increase our deposit rates in order to attract
additional deposits, each of which would increase our cost of funds.

There is no guarantee that the Bank will be able to continne to pay a dividend or, if continued, will be able to pay a dividend af the
current rafe,

The Board ol Directors ol the Bank determunes at its discretion if, when and the amount of dividends that may be paid on the

commeon stock. In making such determination, the Board of Directors takes into account various factors inchuding economic conditions,
earnings, liquidity needs, the financial condition of the Bank, applicable state law, regulatory requirements and other factors deemed

22

The Bank of Princeton

relevant by the Board of Directors. Although the Bank just recently commenced paying a quarterly dividend on its common stock in
MNovember 2018, there is no guarantee that such dividends will continue to be paid in the future or at what rate.

Our lean porifolio has a significant concentration in commercial real estate and commercial consiruction leans.

Our loan portfolio 1s made up largely of commercial real estate loans and commercial construction loans. At December 31,
2020, we had approximately S812.0 malhon of commercial real estate loans, which represented 59.3% ol our (otal loan portfolio, Our
commercial real estate loans include loans secured by owner-occupied and non-owner-occupied tenanted properties for commercial uses
and multi-family loans. The portfolio also consists of construction loans of approximately $263.0 million, or 19.2%, of our total loan
portfolio as of December 31, 2020, In addition, we make both secured and unsecured commercial and industrial loans. At December
31, 2020, we had $40.6 million of commercial and mdustrial loans, which represented 3.0% of our total loan portfolio.

Commercial real estate loans generally expose a lender to a higher degree of credit risk of nonpayment and loss than other
loans because of several factors, including dependence on the suceessful operation of' a business or a project for repayment, the collateral
securing these loans may not be sold as easily as for other loans, and loan terms may include a balloon payment rather than full
ameortization over the loan term. In addition, commercial real estate loans typically involve larger loan balances to single borrowers or
groups of related borrowers. Underwriting and portfolio management activities cannot completely eliminate all risks related to these
loans., Any significant failure to pay on time by our customers or a significant default by our customers could materially and adversely
affect us,

Loans secured by owner-occupied real estate are reliant on the underlying operating businesses to provide cash flow to meet
debt service obligations, and as a result they are more susceptible to the general impact on the economic environment affecting those
operating companies as well as the real estate market. In general, construction and land lending involves additional risks because of the
inherent difficulty m estimating a property’s value both before and at completion of the project as well as the estimated cost of the
project and the time needed to sell the property at completion. Construction costs may exceed ongmal esiimates as a result of ncreased
materials, labor or other costs. Decause of the uncertainties inherent in estimating construction costs, as well as the market value of the
completed project and the effects of governmental regulation on real property, it is relatively difficult to evaluate accurately the total
lunds required 10 complete a project and the related loan-to-value ratio. Changes i the demand, such as for new housing and higher
than anticipated building costs may cause actual results to vary significantly from those estimated. For these reasons, this type of lending
also typically involves higher loan principal amounts and is often concentrated with a small number of builders. A downwimn in housing,
or the real estate market, including the downmim caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. could increase loan delinquencies, defaults and
foreclosures, and sigmficantly impair the value of our collateral and our ability to sell the collateral upon foreclosure. Some of our
builders have more than one loan outstanding with us and also have residential mortgage loans for rental properties with us,
Consequently. an adverse development with respect to one loan or one credit relationship can expose us to a significantly greater risk of
loss,

In addition. no payment from the borrower is required during the term of most of our construetion loans since the aceumulared
nterest 15 added to the principal of the loan through an interest reserve, As a resull, construction loans often involve the disbursement
of substantial funds with repayment dependent on the success of the ultimate project and the ability of the borrower to sell or lease the
property or refinance the indebtedness, rather than the ability of the borrower or guarantor o repay principal and interest. If the appraisal
of the value of the completed projeet proves to be overstated, we may have madequate security for the repayment of the loan upon
completion of construchon of the project and may incur a loss. Because construction loans require active monitoring of the building
process, including cost comparisons and on-site inspections, these loans are more difficult and costlier to monitor. Increases in market
rates of mterest may have a more pronounced effect on construction loans by rapidly increasing the end-purchasers’ borrowing costs,
thereby reducing the overall demand for the project. Properties under consiruction are often difficult io sell and typically must be
completed m order 1o be suceessfully sold which also complicates the process of working outl problem construction loans. This may
require us to advance additional funds and‘or contract with another builder to complete construction. Further, in the case of speculative
construction loans, there is added risk associated with identifying an end-purchaser for the finished project which poses a greater
potential risk to us than construction loans to individuals on their personal residences. Loans on land under development or held for
future construction as well as lot loans made to individuals for the future construction of a residence also pose additional risk because
of the lack of income being produced by the property and the potential illiquid nature of the collateral. These risks can also be
significantly impacted by supply and demand conditions.

The COVID-19 pandemic has caused a recession in our local economy and commercial real estate market. Accordingly. it may
be more difficult for commercial real estate borrowers to repay their loans in a timely manner in the current cconomic climate, as
commercial real estate borrowers” ability 1o repay their loans [requently depends on the suceessiul development of ther properties. The
deterioration of one or a few of our commercial real estate loans could cause a material increase in our level of nonperforming loans,
which would result in a loss of revenue from these loans and could result in an increase in the provision for loan losses and/or an increase
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in charge offs, all of which could have a material adverse impact on our net income. We also may incur losses on commercial real estate
loans due to declines in occupancy rates and rental rates, which could occur as a result of less need for office space due to more people
working from home due to COVID-19 or other factors. This would decrease property values and may decrease the hkelihood that a
borrower may find permanent financing alternatives. The weakening in the commercial real estate market due to COVID-19 will increase
the likelihood of default on these loans, which could negatively impact our loan portfolio’s performance and asset quality. If we are
required o ligquidate the eollateral securing a loan to satisfy the debt during a peniod of reduced real estate values, we could meur material
losses, Any of these events could increase our cosls, require management time and attention, and matenally and adversely alTect us.

Federal banking agencies have issued guidanee regarding high concentrations of commercial real estate loans within bank loan
portiolios. The guidance requires financial institutions that exceed certain levels of commercial real esiate lending compared with their
total capilal to maintain heightened risk management practices that address the following key elements: board and management oversight
and strategic planning, portfolio management, development of underwriting standards, risk assessment and monitoring through market
analysis and stress testing, and maintenance of increased capital levels as needed to support the level of commercial real estate lending.
It there is any deterioraiion in our commercial real estate portfolio or if our regulators conclude that we have not implemented appropriate
risk management practices, it could adversely affect our business, and could result in the requirement to maintain increased capital levels
or restrict our ability to originate new loans secured by commercial real estate. We can provide no assurance that capital would be
available at that time.

The nature of our commercial loan porifolio may expose us to increased lending risks,

Crven the recent growth m our loan portfolio, a portion of our commercial loans are unseasoned, meaning that they were
origimated relatively recently. Our limited time with these loans does not provide us with a signilicant payment history pattern with
which to judge future collectability. As a result, it may be difficult to predict the future performance of our loan portfolio. These loans
may have delinquency or charge off levels above our expectations, which could negatively affect our performance.

The small to mid-sized businesses that we lend to may have fewer resources fo weather a downturn in the economy, such as the one
cause by the COVID-19 pandemic, which may impair a borrower’s ability to repay a loan to us that could materially harm our
operating results.

We target our business development and marketing strategy primarily to serve the banking and financial services needs of small
to mid-sized businesses. These small to mid-sized businesses frequently have smaller market share than their competition, may be more
vulnerable to economic downturns such as the one caused by the COVID-19 pandemie, often need substantial addinonal eapital to
expand or compete and may experience significant volatility in operating results. In addition, if such business has been forced to either
close or substantially modify its business activity due to the orders issued by states fighting the COVID-19 pandemic, any one or more
of these factors is likely to impair the borrower’s ability to repay a loan. In addition, the success of a small to midsized business often
depends on the management talents and efforts of one or two persons or a small group of persons, and the death, disability or resignation
of one or more of these persons could have a material adverse impact on the business and its ability to repay a loan. The COVID-19
economic downturns and other events that negatively impact our market areas could cause us to incur substantial credit losses that could
negatively affect our results of operations and financial condition.

Our lending limit may restrict our growth.

We are limited in the amount we can loan to a single borrower by the amount of our capital. Generally. under current law, we
may lend up to 15% of our unimpaired capital and surplus, including capital notes, to any one borrower. Based upon our current capital
levels, the amount we may lend is less than that of many of our larger competitors and may discourage potential borrowers who have
credit needs in excess of our lending limit from doing business with us. We may accommodate larger loans by selling participations in
those loans 1o other financial institutions, but this ability may not always be available.

We must maintain and follow high underwriting standards to grow safely.

Our abihty to grow our assets safely depends on mamtaiming disciplined and prudent underwriting standards and ensuring that
our relationship managers and lending personnel follow those standards. The weakening of these standards for any reason, such as to
seek higher vielding loans, or a lack of discipline or diligence by our employees in underwriting and monitoring loans, may result in
loan defaults, foreclosures and additional charge offs and may necessitate that we significantly inerease our allowance for loan losses.
As a result, our business, resulis of operations, financial condition or prospects could be adversely affected.
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Our allowance for loan losses may not be adequare ro cover aciual losses,

Like all financial institutions, we maintain an allowance for loan losses to provide for loan defaults and nonperformance. The
process for determining the amount of the allowance is critical to our financial results and condition. It requires difficult, subjective and
complex judgments about external factors, meluding the impact of national and regional economic conditions on the ability of our
borrowers to repay their loans. If our judgment proves to be incorrect, our allowance for loan losses may not be sufficient to cover losses
inherent in our loan portfolio. Further, state and federal regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, review our
loans and allowanee for loan losses and may require an mcrease m our allowanee for loan losses, Although we believe that our allowance
for loan losses at December 31, 2020 is adequate to cover known and probable incurred losses included in the portfolio, we cannot
provide assurances that we will not further increase the allowance for loan losses or that our regulators will not require us W increase
this allowance. Either of these oceurrences could adversely aftect our camings.

We are a community bank and our ability to maintain our reputation is critical to the success of our business and the failure to do
so may materially adversely affect our performance.

We are a community bank, and our reputation is one of the most valiable components of our business. As such, we strive to
conduct our business in a manner that enhances our reputation. This is done, in part, by recruiting. hiring and retaining emplovees who
share our core values of being an integral part of the communities we serve, delivering superior service to our customers and caring
about our customers and associates. 16 our reputation is negatively affected, by the actions of our employees or otherwise, our business
and, therefore, our operating results may be materially adversely affected. Additionally, damage to our reputation could wndermine the
confidence of our current and potential clients in our ability to provide financial services. Such damage could also impair the contidence
of our counterparties and business partners, and ultimately atfect our ability to effect ransactions. Maintenanee of our reputation depends
not only on our success in maintaining our service-focused culture and controlling and mitigating the various risks described herein, but
also on our success in identifying and appropriately addressing issues that may arise in areas such as potential conflicts of interest, anti-
money laundering, client personal mformanon and privacy issues, record-keeping, regulatory mvestigations and any hitigation that may
anse from the fallure or perceived failure of us to comply with legal and regulatory requirements. Mamtaining our reputation also
depends on our ability to successfully prevent third-parties from infringing on the “The Bank of Princeton™ brand and associated
trademarks. Defense of our reputation, including through hitigation, could result in costs adversely affecting our business, results of
operations, hnancial condition or prospects.

Our internal control systems could fail to detect certain events.

We are subject to certain operational risks, including but not hmited 1o data processing system fatlures and errors and customer
or employee frand. We maintain a system of internal controls to mitigate such occurrences which system recently had to be modified to
cover the additional risks caused by the increase level of employees working remotely due to COVID-19 pandemic and we also maintain
insurance coverage for such risks. However, should such an event oceur that is not prevented or detected by our intemal controls, is
uninsured or in excess of applicable insurance limits, it could have a significant adverse effect on our business, results of operations,
financial condition or prospects.

If we cannot faverably assess the effectiveness of our internal controls ever financial reporting or if our independent registered
public accounting firm is unable to provide an unqualified aftestation report on our imternal controls, we may be subject to
additional regulatory scrutiny.

Since January 1, 2016, our total assets have exceeded 51.0 billion. Therefore, we are subject to further reporting requirements
under the rules of the FDIC as of and for the fiscal vear ended December 31, 2020, Pursuant to these rules, management 1s required to
prepare a report that contains an assessment by management of the eflectiveness of our mternal control structure and procedures for
financial reporting (including the Call Report that is submitted to the FIDIC) as of the end of such fiscal year. Our independent registered
public accounting firm is also required to examine, attest to and report on the assessment of our management concerning the effectiveness
of our internal control structure and procedures for financial reporting. The rules that must be met for management 1o assess our internal
controls over lnancial reporting are complex and require significant documentation and testing and possible remediation of mternal
control weaknesses. The effort to comply with regulatory requirements relating to internal controls will likely cause us to incur increased
expenses and will cause a diversion of management'’s time and other intemal resources. We also may encounter problems or delays in
completing the implementation of any changes necessary 1o make a favorable assessment ol our internal conirol over finaneial reporting.
In addition, in comnection with the attestation process, we may encounter problems or delays in completing the implementation of any
requested improvements or receiving a favorable attestation from our independent registered public accounting firm. If we cannot
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favorably assess the effectiveness of our internal control over hinancial reporting, or if our independent registered public accounting firm
is unable to provide an unqualified attestation report on our internal controls, investor confidence and the price of our common stock
could be adversely affected and we may be subject 1o additional regulatory scrutiny.

We rely on third parties to provide key components af our business infrastructure, and a failure of these parties to perform due to
COVID-19-related restrictions and disruptions or for any other reason could disrupt our operations.

Third parties provide key componenis of our business infrastruciure such as data processing, Intemet connections, network
access, core application processing, statement production and account analysis. Our business depends on the successful and
uninterrupted functioning of our information technology and telecommunications svstems and third- party servicers. The failure of these
svstems due to COVID-19-related restrictions and disruptions or otherwise, or the termination of a third-party sottware license or service
agreement on which any ol these systems 15 based, could mierrupt our operations. Because our information technology and
telecommunications systems interface with and depend on third-party systems, we could experience service denials if demand for such
services exceeds capacity or such third-party systems tail or experience interruptions. Replacing vendors or addressing other issues with
our third-party service providers could entail significant delay and expense. I we are unable to efficiently replace meffective service
providers, or if we experience a significant, sustained or repeated, system failure or service demal, it could compromise our ability to
operate effectively, damage our reputation, result in a loss of customer business, and subject us to additional regulatory scrutiny and
possible financial liability, any of which could have a matenal adverse effect on our business, financial conditon, results of operations
and future prospects,

RISK RELATED TO THE BANKING INDUSTRY GENERALLY

The FASB has recently issued an accounting standard update that will result in a significant change in how we recognize credit
losses and may have a material impact on our financial condition or results of operations.

In June 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued an accounting standard update, “Financial
Instruments-Credit Losses (Topic 326), Measurement of Credit Losses on I'inancial Instruments,” which replaces the current “incurred
loss™ model for recognizing credit losses with an “expected loss™ model referred to as the Current Expected Credit Loss (“CECL™)
maodel. Under the CECL model, banks will be required to present certain linancial assets carried al amortized cost, such as loans held
for investment and held-to-maturity debt securities, at the net amount expected to be collected. The measurement of expected credit
losses is 1o be based on information about past events, including historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable
forecasts that allect the collectability of the reported amount. This measurement will take place at the tme the Onancial assel 1s Oirst
added to the balance sheet and periodically thereafter. This differs significantly from the “incurred loss™ model required under current
generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP™), which delavs recognition unuil it 15 probable a loss has been incurred. Accordingly,
we expect that the adoption of the CECL model will matenially afTect how we determine our allowance for loan losses, and could require
us to significantly increase our allowance. Moreover, the CECL model may create more volatility in the level of the allowance for loan
losses. If we are required to materially increase the level of its allowance for loan losses for any reason, such increase could adversely
affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The new CECL standard will become effective for the Bank for fiscal years beginming after December 13, 2022 and for interim
periods within those fiscal vears. We are evaluating the impact the CECL model will have on our accounting, but we expect 1o recognize
a one-time cumulative-eftect adjustment to the allowance for loan losses as of the beginning of the first reporting period in which the
new standard 15 effective, comsistent with regulatory expectations set forth in interagency guidance issued at the end of 2016. We canno
vet determine the magnitude of any such one-time cumulative adjustment or of the overall impact of the new standard on its financial
condition or results of operations.

The financial services industry is undergoing a period of great volatility and disraption.

Changes in interest rates, in the shape of the yield curve, or in valuations in the debt or equity markets or disruptions in the
Liguidity or other functoning of fmancial markets, most ol which have occurred, could directly impact us in one or more of the [ollowing
Wiays:

e Net interest income, the difference between interest earned on interest earning assets and interest paid on interest- bearing
liabilities, represents a significant portion of our carnings. Both increases and deercases in the interest rate environment may
reduce our profits. We expect that we will continue o realize income from the spread between the interest we eam on loans,
securities and other interest eaming assets, and the interest we pay on deposits, borrowings and other interest-bearing liabilities.
The net interest spread is affected by the differences between the maturity and repricing characteristics of our interest earning
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assets and interest-bearing liabilities. Our interest earning assets may not reprice as slowly or rapidly as our interest-bearing
linbilities.

#  The market value of our secunties portfolio may decline and result in other than temporary impairment charges. The value of
the securities in our portfolio is affected by factors that impact the U.S. securities markets in general as well as specific financial
sector factors and entities. Uncertainty in the market regarding the financial sector has at times negatively impacted the value
ol secunties within our portfolio. Further declhines m these sectors may result in [uture other than temporary impairment charges.

o Assel quality may deteriorate as borrowers become unable o repay their loans.
Changes in interest rates may adversely affect our earnings and financial condition.

Owr net income depends primarily upon our net interest income. The level ol net interest income is primarily a function of the
average balance of our interest earning assets, the average balance of our interest-bearing liabilities, and the spread between the vield
on such assets and the cost of such liabilities. These factors are influenced by both the pricing and mix of our interest carning assets and
our interesi-bearing liabilities which, in turn, are impacied by such exiernal factors as the local economy, competition for loans and
deposits, the monetary policy of the Federal Open Market Committee of the Federal Reserve, and market interest rates.

A sustained increase in market interest rates could adversely aftect our eamings if our cost of funds increases more rapidly than
our yield on our interest eaming assels and compresses our net inlerest margin. In addition, the economic value ol equity could decline
if interest rates increase. Dhifferent types of assets and liabilities may react differently, and at different times. to changes in market interest
rates. We expect that we will periodically experience gaps in the interest rate sensitivities of our assets and liabilities. That means either
our mterest-bearing liabilities will be more sensitive to changes in market interest rates than our interest caming assels, or vice versa,
When mterest-bearing habilities mature or re-price more quickly than inlerest earming assels, an increase i market rates ol mnterest could
reduce our net interest income.

Likewise, when interest carning assels maiure or re-price more quickly than interest bearing liabilities, falling interest raies
could reduce our net mterest income. We are unable 1o predict changes m market interest rates, which are alfected by many factors
beyvond our control, including inflation, deflation, recession, unemployment, money supply, domestic and international events and
changes in the United States and other financial markets.

We also attempt to manage risk from changes in market interest rates, in part, by controlling the mix of interest rate sensitive
assets and liabilities. However. interest rate risk management techniques are not exact. A rapid increase or decrease in interest rates
could adversely affect our results of operations and financial performance.

We are suliject to significant govermment regulation, which could affect owr business, financial condition and results of
operations.

We are subject to extensive governmental supervision, regulation and control. These laws and regulations are subject to change
and may require substantial modifications to our operations or may cause us to incur substantial additional compliance costs. In addition,
future legislation and government policy could adversely affect the commercial banking industry and our operations. Such goveming
laws can be anticipated to continue to be the subject of future modification. Cur management cannot predict what effect any such future
maodifications will have on our operations.

Changes to laws and regulation applicable to the financial industry, may impact the profitability of our business activities and
may change certain of our business practices, including the ability to offer new products, obtain financing, attract deposits, make loans,
and achieve satisfactory interest spreads, and could expose us to additional costs, including increased compliance costs, These changes
also may require us to invest significant management attention and resources to make any necessary changes to operations in order to
comply and could therefore also materially and adversely affeet our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The federal and state laws and regulations applicable to our operations give regulatory authorities extensive discretion in
connection with their supervisory and enforcement responsibilities, and generally have been promulgated to protect depositors and the
Deposit Insurance Fund and not for the purpose of protecting stockholders. Laws and regulations now affecting us may be changed at
any time, and the interpretation of such laws and regulations by bank regulatory authoriiies 1s also subject to change.

We can give no assurance that future changes in laws and regulations or changes in their interpretation will not adversely affect

our business. Legislative and regulatory changes may increase our cost of doing business or otherwise adversely atfect us and create
competitive advantage for non-bank competitors.
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We cannot predict row clhanges in technology will impact our business; increased use of technology may expose us to service
interruptions.

The financial services market, including banking services, is increasingly affected by advances in technology, including
developments in:

telecommunications;

data processing;

automation;

Internet banking, including mobile banking:
social media;

debit cards and so-called “smart cards™; and
remote deposit capture,

Our ability to compete successfully in the future will depend, to a certain extent, on whether we can anticipate and respond to
technological changes, We oller electronic banking services [or our consumer and business customers ineludimg Intemel banking, mohile
banking and electronic bill payment, as well as banking by phone. We also offer ATM and debit cards, wire transfers, and ACII transfers.
The successful operation and further development of these and other new technologies will likely require additional capital investment
in the future. In addition, increased use of electronic banking creates opportunities for interruptions in service which could expose us 1o
claims by customers or other third parties. We can provide no assurance that we will have sufficient resources or access to the necessary
technology to remain competitive in the future.

We may be vulnerable to cyberatiacks or other security breaches affecting our electronic data and product delivery systems.

The financial services industry has experienced an increase in both the number and severity of reported cyberattacks aimed at
gamning unauthorized syslems access as a way o misappropriale assels and sensitve imlormation, corrupl and destroy data, or cause
operational disruptions. Recently, cybersecunity threats have increased even more, primanily through COVID-19 themed phishing
campaigns. We are increasingly dependent on technology systems to run our core operations and to be a delivery channel to provide
products and services to our customers. We also rely on the integrity and secunity of a variety of third-party processors, payment, clearing
and settlement systems, as well as the varous participants involved in these systems, many of which have no direct relationship with
us. Failure by these participants or their systems to protect our customers’ transaction data may put us at risk for possible losses due to
fraud or operational disruption. In many cases, in order for these systems to function, they must be connected to the Internet, directly or
indirectly. These connections open our systems to potential artacks by third parties seeking to steal our data, our customers’ information
or 1o disable our systems. A successful attack on our systems could adversely affect our resulis of operations by, among other things,
harming our reputation among current and potential customers if their information is stolen, disrupting our operations if our systems are
impaired, the loss of assets which could be stolen in an attack and the costs of remediating our systems after an attack. Although we
have security safeguards and take numerous sieps (o proteet our sysiems from a potential attack, we can provide no assurance that these
measures will be successful in preventing intrusions inlo our systems. A portion of our workforce (which changes based on
management’s discretion) are working a portion of their work hours remotely due to the COVID-19 pandemic which has only increased
our risk in this area. Therefore, the Bank's intormation technology department has instituted additional security measures with the use
of lap op compuiers at home, such as specially loaded sofiware providing more aceessibility, inereased monitoring of access logs, and
the requirement for emplovees to bring their lap top computer into the office when working there. In addition, files and documents are
only allowed to be transferred via the issued lap top computer; no personal emails can be used. The oceurrence of a breach of security
nvolving our customers could damage our reputation and resull ina loss of customers and business, subject us o addinonal regulatory
scrutiny and could expose us to htigation and possible linancial hability, Any of these events could have a matenial adverse effect on
our financial condition and results of operations.

The increasing use of soctal media plaiforms presents new risks and chalfenges and the inability or failure to recognize, respond io,
and effectively manage the accelerated impact of social media could materially adversely impact the Bank's business.

There has been a marked increase in the use of social media platforms, including weblogs (blogs), social media websites, and
other forms of Intermet-based communications which allow individuals™ access to a broad audience of consumers and other interested
persons. Social media practices in the banking industry are evolving, which creates uncertainty and risk of noncompliance with
regulations applicable to the Bank’s business. Consumers value readily available information concerning businesses and their goods and
services and otten act on such information without further investigation and without regard to its accuracy. Many social media platforms
immediately publish the content their subscribers and participants’ post, often without filters or checks on accuracy of the content posted.
Information posted on such platforms at any time may be adverse to the Bank’s interests and‘or may be inaccurate. The dissemination

28

The Bank of Princeton

of information online could harm the Bank's business, prospects, financial condition, and results of operations, regardless of the
imformation’s accuracy. The harm may be immediate without alfording the Bank an opportunity for redress or correction.

Other risks associated with the use of social media include improper disclosure of proprietary information, negative comments
about the Bank's business, exposure of personally identifiable information, frand, out-of-date information. and improper use by
employees, directors and customers. The inappropriate use of social media by the Bank's customers, directors or employees could result
in negative consequences such as remediation costs including training for employees, additional regulatory scrutiny and possible
regulatory penalties, itigation, or negative publicity that could damage the Bank's reputation adversely aflecting customer or investor
confidence,

Uncertainty about the future of the London Interbank Offer Rate (LIBOR) may adversely affect our business and financial resulss,

LIBOR meamngfully miluences market interest rates around the globe, In July 2007, the Chiel Executive of the Umted
Kingdom Financial Conduct Authority, which regulates LIBOR, announced its intent to stop persuading or compelling banks to submit
rates for the calculation of LIBOR to the administrator of LIBOR after 2021. This announcement indicates that the continuation of
LIBOR as currently constructed 1s not guaranteed after 2021, It 1s impossible to prediet whether and to what extent banks will continue
to provide LIBOR submissions to the admimistrator of LIBOR, whether any additional reforms to LIBOR may be enacted in the United
Kingdom or elsewhere, and whether other rate or rate may become accepted alternatives to LIBOR.

In 2014, the FEB and the Federal Reserve Bank of New York convened the Alternative Reference Rates Commuttee (“ARRC™)
to identify best prachices for altermative reference rates, 1dentify best practices for contract robustness, develop an adoption plan, and
create an implementation plan with metrics of success and a timeline. The ARRC accomplished its first set of objectives and has
identified the Secured Ovemnight Financing Rate (“SOFR™) as the rate that represents best practice for use in certain new US. dollar
derivatives and other nancial contracts. The ARRC also published it Paced Transition Plan, with specilic steps and timelines designed
to encourage adoption of the SOFR. The ARRC was reconstituted in 2018 to help to ensure successful implementation of the Paced
Transition Plan and serve as a forum to coordinate and track planning across cash and derivatives products and market participants
currently using LIBOR.

Mo assurance can be provided that the uncertainties around LIBOR or their resolution will not adversely affiect the use, level
and volatility of LIBOR or other interest rates or the value of LIBOR-based securities or other securities or financial arrangements.
Further, the viability of SOFR as an aliernative reference rate and the availability and acceptance of other alternative reference rates are
unclear and also may have adverse effects on market rates ol interest and the values of securities and other linancial arrangements.
These uncertainties, proposals and actions to resolve them, and their ultimate resolution also could negatively impact our funding costs,
loan and other asset values, asset-liability management strategies, and other aspects of our business and financial resulis.

We face risks related to health epidemics and other ouibreaks, severe weather, power or felecommunications loss, and ferrorism
which conld significantly disrupt our operations.

Business disruptions can occur due to forces beyond the Bank's control such as severe weather, power or telecommunications loss,
accidents, tlooding. terrorism, health emergencies. the spread of infectious diseases or pandemics. Our business could be adversely
impacted by the effects of any of these events to the extent that they harm the local or national economy. Any of these events mayv also
mmpact our branches, our operations, our customers and / or our vendors, which may matenally and adversely allect our business,
tinancial condition and results of operations. These business disruptions may include temporary closure of our branches and/or the
facilities of our customers or vendors and suspension of services, which may materially and adversely affect our business, financial
condition and results of operanons.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Mot applicable.

Item 2. Properties

We conduet our operations from our headquarters and branch located at 183 Bavard Lane, Princeton, New Jersey, an operations
center at 403 Wall Street, Pninceton, New Jersey, and from 24 other branch locations in New Jersey and Pennsvlvania. The following
table sets forth certain information regarding the Bank's properties as of December 31, 2020;
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Leased or Date of Lease Browns Mills Branch Orwned N/A
_Location Owned Expiration’ 101 Pemberton Browns Mills Road
Browns Mills, NI
Corporate Headguariers and Branch [eased October 31, 2023
183 Bayard Lane Depriord Branch Owned MN/A
Princeton, NJ 12493 Hurllville Road
Deptford, NJ
Operations Center Leased February 28 2026
403 Wall Street Steklerville Branch Leased February 1, 2026
Princeton, NJ 483 Cross Key Road
Sicklerville, NI
Hamifton Branch Leased October 30, 2025
339 Route 33 Princeron Junction Branch Leased September 1. 2022
Hamilton, MJ 11 Cranbury Road
Princeton Junction, NJ
Pennington Branch Leased April 30, 2022
2 Route 31 Chiakerbridge Branch Leased Apnl 1, 2024
Pennington, NJ 3745 Quakerbridge Road
IHamilton, NJ
Chambers Sireet Branch’ Leased December 31, 2021
21 Chambers Street Lakewood Branch Leased August 20, 2025
Princeton, NJ 12 American Avenue, 7B
Lakewood, NI
Mantgamery Branch Leased April 30, 2025
1185 Route 206 North Piscataway Branch Leased March 31, 2027
Princeton, NJ 1642 Stelton Road, Suite 410
Piscataway, NJ
Manrae Branch Leased July 31, 2030
| Rossmoor Drive Norith Wafes Branch Leased Seprember 30, 2021
Monroe Township, NJ 1222 Welsh Road
North Wales, PA
Lambertvilfe Branch Owned NiA
10-12 Bridge Street Cheltenham Branch Leased January 25, 2021
Lambertville, NI 470 West Cheltenham Avenue
Philadelphia, PA
Lawrenceville Branch [ eased October 30, 2025
2099 Princeton Pike Chiatown Branch Leased Seplember 30, 2022
Lawrenceville, N1 921 Arch Street
Philadelphia. PA
Nassau Street Branch [eased November 30, 2021
194 Nassau Street Chesimit Street Branch Leased February 28, 2027
Princelon, NJ 1839 Chestnut Street
Philadelphia. PA
New Brunswick Branch Leased March 31, 2022
1 Spring Street, Suite 102
New Brunswick, NI ! The expiration date is based on the next upcoming maturity date and does not take into consideration any renewal/extensions dates.
? Branch has been temporary closed due to the COVID-19 Pandemic.
Cream Ridge Branch Leased October 28, 2023
403 Rt 539 Item 3. Legal Proceedings
Cream Ridge, NJ
Chesterfield Branch Owned NA From time to time the Bank is a defendant in various legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of our business. However,

305 Hun_lenum*n-{fhe.qlerﬁelr.l Road in the opimon ol management ol the Bank, there are no proceedings pending to which the Bank is a party or to which 115 property is
Chesterfield, NJ subject, which, if determined adversely to the Bank, would be material in relation to the Bank's profits or financial condition, nor are
there any proceedings pending other than ordinary routine litigation incident to the business of the Bank. In addition, no material

Bordentown Branch Owned N/A proceedings are pending or are known 1o be threatened or contemplated against the Bank by government authorities or others.

335 Famswaorth Avenue
Bordentown, NJ
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Ttem 4. Mine Safety Disclosures Performance Graph

Not applicable. The following graph demonstrates comparison of the cummlative total returns for the common stock of the Bank, NASDAG
Composite Index, SNL Mid-Atlantic Bank Index, and Peer Group made up of banks and thrifts with total assets between $750.0 million
and $1.25 billion [or the periods indicated. The graph below represents 5100 invested in our common stock at its closing price on
Aungust 4, 2017, the date the common stock commenced trading on the NASDAQ Global Select Market.

PART I
Bank of Princeton
Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equitv, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Market Information Total Return Performance
The Bank’s common stock trades on the “NASDAQ Global Select Market™ under the tcker symbol “BPRN." As of March 250
12, 2021, there were approximately 683 holders of our common stock.
——Bank of Princeton
I'he following table shows the quarterly high and low closing prices of our common stock traded on NASDAQ). —&— NASDAQ Composite Index
—i— SNL Mid-Atlantic Bank Index
Stock Price Cash 200 —&— Peer Group
Dividend
Quarter ended: 1ligh Low Per Share
Decentber 31, 2020 526,44 318.12 s0.12 ﬁ
September 30, 2020 $20.45 $17.40 010 3
June 30,2020 $2470 51751 S0.10 P
March 31, 2020 £32.25 $19.07 S0.10 E
December 31, 2019 $32.12 $27.34 S0.10
September 30, 2019 $30.20 $25.92 S0.10
June 30, 2019 53275 527.42 S0.03
March 31, 2019 £3333 $27.58 S0.03
S0 t T ¥
08/0417 123117 12/3118 12131118 12/31/20
Period Ending
Index 0B/04/17 1213117  12/3118 12131119 12/31/20
Bank of Princeton 100.00 107.31 87.28 99.15 75.08
NASDAQ Composite Index 100.00 108.19 106.09 145.02 21018
SNL Mid-Atlantic Bank Index 100.00 110.06 94.04 133.74 119.03
Peer Group 100.00 108.44 106.63 120.52 104.58

Peer group includes Banks and Thrifts with total assets between 57500 — 51,258

Source: S5&P Global Market Intelligence
© 2021
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Securitics Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table summarizes our equity compensation plan information as of December 31, 2020, See Note 15 “Siock-
Based Compensation™ in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for a description
of the material features of each plan.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Number of
shares of
Number of common stock
shares of remaining
common stock Weighted- available for
to be issued average future issuance
upon exercise exercise price under
of outstanding of outstanding compensation
Plan Category options options plans
Eguiy  Compensation Plans  approved by security 439,434 $19.40 377919
holders
Equitvy Compensation Plans nof approved by securiny -- -- -
fialders
Total 439,434 £19.40 377919
34

Set forth below is selected financial and other data of the Bank. Reference 1s made to the consolidated financial statements
and related notes contained in liem & — “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data”™ which provide additional information.

(Dollars m thousands)

SEFLECTED FINANCIAL AND OTHER DATA:
Total assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Investment securiries
Held-to-mmaturity
Avalable-for-sale

Loans recevable, net

Deposita

FHILE advances

Total stockhioklers' equity

Won-performmg loans

Non-perfommg assets

Banking and operations offices

(Mollars i thousands)

SELECTED OPERATING DATA:

Total mtersst meome

T'otal mierest expense

Met mterest meome

Provision for loan losses

Wet miterest meone afier provision for loan losses
Total non-mrerest meome

l'otal non-mterest expenses

Income before income taxes

Income: taxes

Net Income

Basis camings per share
Dilited eamings per share

Dividends pad per conenon share

The Bank of Princeton

At December 31,

2020 2019 2018 217 Hils

1602 838 3 A5, 894 3 1,251,564 5 1,200, 55] 1,025,996
TrA2 T2.598 26,384 §2822 19,605
215 22 228 264 340
75,628 112312 91681 100,744 113.034
1,347,459 1 174,013 1,069,235 958,356 849 504
1,367 266 1,237 89 1,007 247 1,028 668 862 521
- - 35,400 - 56,100
208818 195,925 184318 168295 103,462
1,676 2442 5654 9199 3371

1,676 2442 3743 1.001 -
25 2 15 14 14

Year end Decender 31,

2020 2019 2008 2007 A6
61,676 3 9,717 3 54,365 s 47972 45433
12,826 18,266 13,356 5840 7.763
48850 41,451 41,004 39,132 37670

5,225 4,800 (55 3.765 (41}
43,625 36651 40,344 35367 37,711
4 806 3385 2662 2830 2354
3l.141 27,732 25,298 23334 23,7061
17,290 12,304 17.708 14,863 16,304
3484 2162 3,000 3849 4451
13,806 10,142 14,708 11014 11,843
204 5 1.51 5 222 5 200 2.52
2 3 1.47 3 214 5 150 236
040 5 026 5 003 5 - -
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Year end December 31,

(Dollars w thousands) 2020 2019 2018 2007 2016

SELECTHD OPERATING BRATIOS:

Average vield on cammg assets 431% 1.72% A4.66% A.66% A.66%%
Average mte paxd on nterest-beammg habihtes 1.18% 1,805 1.42% 1.06%% 0.97%%
Average rate s pread 3.13% 2.92% 3.25% RECL 3.69%%
Net uiterest wegm 342% 3.27% 352% 3800 3.80%
Avermge interesi-caming assets (o avernge

mterest-beammg habibties 1.31% 1.24% 1.24% 1.23% 1.21%

MNet mterest income after provison for loan

losses to non-mieresi expense 1400 1.32% 1.59%% 1.52% 15390
Total non-mterest expense 1o AVEMEE AS80TS 2.03% 2.05% 207 2.1 M 2.3%%
Elficiency ratio' 37250 39.38% ST0M% 35.63% 3.5
Femm on avemge assels 01541 0.75%% 1.22% 1.02%% 117%%
Betum on avemge equity 6,82% 5.33% 83000 8.30FG 12.05%
Average equily [0 average assels 14.16% 14.07% 14.3T%% 12.35% 9.7 %%
RBook vale pershare % 3075 5 2898 5 2768 b 2569 % el ]|
Tangible book virlue” b X1 5 n 5 2768 b 25.69 b 2200

Lo » - . . . .

The efficiency muon 5 a non-GAAP measure that represents the ranoe of non-mterest expense divided by the net-mterest meome and non-mterest expense.
:

Fangible book value per coumnon share = a non=GAAP meas ure that represents book value per conmon share which excludes goodwill and core deposit

mtangible.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analvsis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Our Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finaneial Condition and Resulis of Operations is presenied in sections as
follows:

= (Owverview and Strategy

*  Comparison of Financial Condition at December 31. 2020 and December 31, 2019

*  Comparison of Operating Results for the Years Ended December 3 1. 2020, 2019 and 2018
*  Rate/Volume Analysis

*  Liquidity. Commitments and Capital Resources

»  Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

* Impact of Inflation

=  Reum on Equity and Assets

= (Cntical Accounting Policies and Estimates

= Recently Issued Accounting Standards

Overview and Strategy

We remain focused on establishing and retaining customer relationships by offering a broad range of traditional financial
services and products, competitively-priced and delivered in a responsive manner to small businesses, to professionals and individuals
in our market area. As a locally-operated community bank, we seck to provide superior customer service that is highly personalized.
efficient and responsive o local needs. To better serve our customers, we endeavor o provide state-ol-the-art delivery systems with
ATMs, current operating software, timely reporting. online bill pay and other similar up-to-date products and services. We seek 1o
deliver these products and services with the care and professionalism expected of a community bank and with a special dedication to
personalized customer service.
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Our primary business ohjecthives are:

e 1o provide local businesses, professionals and individuals with banking services responsive to and determined by their
needs and local market conditions;

e to attract deposits and loans through competitive pricing, responsiveness and service, and

e 1o provide a reasonable retum 1o stockholders on capital invested.

We strive to serve the financial needs of our customers while providing an appropriate return to our stockholders, consistent
with safe and sound banking practices. We expect that a financial strategy that unlizes variable rates and marching assets and habilities
will enable us to inerease our net mterest margin, while managing interest rate nsk. We also seek to generate fee imcome from vanous
sources, subject to our desire to maintain competitive pricing within our market area.

Our recognition of, and commitment to, the needs of the local communiry, combined with highlv personalized and responsive
customer serviee, differentiates us from our competition. We continue to capitalize upon the personal contacts and relationships of our
organizers, directors, stockholders and officers 1o establish and grow our customer base.

Comparison of Financial Condition at December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019

Greneral. Total assets were $1.60 billion at December 31, 2020, an increase of $147.9 million, or 10.2%, when compared 1o
51.45 billion at the end of 2019, The primary reason for the increase in total assets was due to an increase in net loans of approximately
5176.9 million, primarily consisting of PPP! loans guaranteed by the U.S. government. Net loans also increased S173.4 million from
$1.17 billion at December 31, 2019, Cash and cash equivalents mereased $4.8 nmullion, or 6.7%, 1o $77.4 millhon as of December 31,
2020. Investment securities classified available-for-sale decreased $36.7 milhon from the S112.3 muillion as of December 31, 2019,

Total liabilities increased by $135.1 million to $1.39 billion at December 31, 2020 from $1.26 billion at December 31, 2019,
Total deposits at December 31, 2020 mereased by $129 4 million, or 10.5%, when compared to December 31, 2019, primarily due to
loan proceeds mamtained i non-mterest demand accounts from customers who received PPP loans as well as growth from new branches
added since December 31, 2019. When comparing December 31, 2020 to balances at December 31, 2019, interest checking increased
$76.2 million, non-interest checking increased $74.0 million, savings accounts increased $24.2 mullion, and money market accounts
mereased 5104 mullion, partially offset by a decrease in tume deposits of 5354 million. In addition, the Bank did not have any
outstanding balance in FHLB short-term advances for both periods ended December 31, 2020 and 2019,

Total stockholders” equity at December 31, 2020 increased $12.9 million, or 6.6%, when compared to the end of 2019, This
merease was primarily due to earmings recorded duning the twelve months of 2020 minus the cash dividend paid during the pernod, and
an increase of $1.2 million in the fair-value of the available-for-sale investment portfolio.  The ratio of equity to total assets at December
31,2020 was 13.0% compared to 13.5% at December 31, 2019, as the current period ratio was impacted by the 10.25% growth in assets.

We manage our balance sheet based on a number ol interrelated entena, such as changes in interest rates, [uetuations in certamn
asset and liability categories whose changes are not totally controlled by us, such as swings in deposit account balances driven by
depositors’ needs, prepayments and issuer call options exercised on securities available for sale, early payoffs on loans, investment
opporiunities presented by market conditions, lending originations, capital provided by earnings, and active management of our overall
liquidity positions.  The management of these dynamic and interrelated elements of our balance sheet results in fuetuations in balance
sheet items throughout the vear.

Comparison of Operating Results for the Years Ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018

Greneral.

2020 vs 2019. Net income for the vear ended December 31, 2020 was 513.8 million, an increase of approximately $3.7 million,
or 36.1%, as compared to the vear ended December 31, 2019, This increase over 2019s results was primanly due to a 874 mullion
increase in net-interest income and a $1.4 million increase in non-interest income, partially offset by a 53.4 million increase in non-
interest expenses, a $1.3 million inerease in income tax expense and a $425 thousand increase in the provision for loan losses.

2019 vs 2008, Net income for the vear ended December 31, 2019 was 510.1 million, a decrease of approximately 5.6 million,

or 31.0%, as compared to the year ended December 31, 2018, The decline in earnings was primarily due to an increase in the Bank’s
provision for loan losses of $4.1 million of which $3.9 million was recorded in the first quarter of 2019,

37



The Bank of Princeton

Net interest income.

2020 vs 2019. Net interest income for the twelve month period ended December 31, 2020 was $48.9 million, an increase of
574 million, or 17.8%, over the same period in 2019, This increase was due a $2.0 million increase in interest income and a $5.4 million
decline in interest expense. For the twelve month peniod ended December 31, 2020, the average outstanding balance of caming assels
mereased by $163.9 million and average outstanding balance of interest-bearing liabilities increased $71.8 million. The total rate on
liabilities, which includes non-interest-bearing deposits, for the twelve month periods ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 was 0.98%
and 1.60%, respectively. For the twelve month periods ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 the total rate on interest-bearing liabilities,
which includes non-interest bearing deposits, was 0.98% and 1.60%, respectively.

2019 vs 2018. Net interest income for the twelve months of 2019 was 541.5 million, an increase of 5442,000, or 1.1%, when
compared to the twelve months of 2018, The increase was due to significant growth of average earning assets of $100.5 million, while
maintaining an average yvield of 4.72% for the twelve months ended December 31, 2019, an increase of & basis points over the same
period in 2018, generating an increase in interest income of 55.4 million. This increase was partially offset by an increase in interest
expense of approximately $4.9 mullion resulting from a $74.4 million increase of the average outstanding balance of interest-bearing
habihities, along with a 32 hasis point increase in the average rate paid on mterest-bearing habihties.

Total interest and dividend fncome.

2020 vs 2019 Total interest and dividend income increased $2.0 million, or 3.3%, to $61.7 million for the year ended December
31, 2020, compared to $39.7 million for the prior vear. The improvement in interest income resulted from a $163.9 million increase in
the average balance of interest-carning assets, partially offset by a deercase in the vield on eaming assets of 41 basis points to 4.3 1% for
the twelve month period ended December 31, 2020

Interest income and fees on loans increased 53.1 million, or 5.4%, to $39.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2020,
compared to $36.3 million for the prior year. The increase was atiributable to an increase in the average balance of loans receivable of
5166.7 million from 51.12 billion in 2009 1o $1.29 bilhon in 2020, This mcrease was ofTset by a 41 basis point decrease m the year-
over-year average yield on loans, associated with the reduction of market rates and loan composition influenced by the PPP loan
porttolio.

Interest income on securities decreased approximately $367,000, or 14.8%, for the vear ended December 31, 2020 compared
to the prior year. This decrease was primarily atiributable to a $4.2 mullion decrease i average balances and a 29 basis point reduction
mn the vield earned on the securities portlolio. Average balances decreased due o 519.2 mulhon ol secunities sold, and because cash
received from principal repayments and matunties/calls was utilized to fund the growth in our loan portfolio.

Orher interest and dividends decreased $724,000, or 73.1%, o $267,000 for the year ended December 31, 2020, compared 1o
S991.,000 for the prior vear. This decrease was primarily due to a 168 basis point reduction in the yield earmng on other investments,
caused by two Federal Open Market Committee rate reductions in March of 2020 totaling 1350 basis points and the three 25 basis points
reductions during 2019,

2019 ws 2018, Total interest and dividend income inereased $5 4 million, or 9.8%, 10 $59.7 million lor the year ended December
31, 2019, compared to 5344 million for the prior vear. The improvement in interest income resulted from a $100.5 million increase in
the average balance of interest-carning assets. The yield on earning assets remained flat for both periods at 4.72%.

Interest income and fees on loans increased 55.2 million, or 10.1%, to $56.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2019,
compared to 551.1 million for the prior year. The increase was attributable to an increase in the average balance of loans receivable of
597.2 million from $1.03 billion in 2018 to $1.12 billion in 2019. This increase was aided by a three basis point increase in the year-
over-year average vield on loans.

Interest income on securities decreased approximately 520,000, or 0.8%, for the vear ended December 31, 2019 compared 1o
the prior year. This decrease was primarily attributable to a 51,1 mullion decrease in average balances. Average balances decreased due
to cash received from principal repayments and maturities/calls being utilized to fund the growth in our lean portfolio,

Other interest and dividends inereased $206,000, or 26.2%, to 3991 000 for the year ended December 31, 2019, compared 1o

STR3.000 for the prior year. This increase was primarily due to an approximately $4.5 million increase in the average outstanding
balances and a higher vield of approximately 27 basis points carned.
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Interest Expense.

2020 vs 2019, Total inlerest expense decreased 354 million, or 29.8%, [or the yvear ended December 31, 2020 compared o the
prior yvear, This decrease was the result of a 61 basis point decrease in the cost of interest-bearing habilities, partially offset by an increase
of 571.8 million in average interest-bearing liabilities.

Interest expense on deposits decreased 35.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 compared to the prior vear due to a
decrease in the cost of interest-bearing deposits of 61 basis points during 2019, partially offset by a decrease in average interest-bearing
deposits of $88.8 million.

Interest expense on borrowings decreased approximately 5473000, or 98.1%, for the year ended December 31, 2020 compared
to the prior year. This decrease was primarily attributable to a $17.0 million decrease in the average balances and an increase of 196
basis points in the cost of borrowings.

2019 vs 2018, Total interest expense increased 54.9 million, or 36.8%, for the vear ended December 31, 2019 compared to the
prior year. This increase was the result of'a 38 basis point increase in the cost of interest-bearing liabilities, coupled with a $74.3 million
increase in average interest-bearing liabilities.

Interest expense on deposits increased $4.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2019 compared to the prior vear due to an
ncrease n the cost of interest-hearing deposits of 38 basis points during 2018, coupled with an increase in average mterest-heanng
deposits of $73.2 million.

Interest expense on borrowings inercased approximately $85.000, or 22 3%, for the year ended December 31, 2019 compared
1o the prior vear. This decrease was primarily attributable 1o a $1.1 million decrease in the average balances and an increase ol 34 basis
points in the cost of borrowings.

Provision for Loan Losses.

2020 vs 2019, The provision for credit losses for the twelve months ended December 31, 2020 was 352 million compared with
a provision of $4.8 million for the 2019 period. The current level of general reserves was impacted by increases in qualitative factors
due to growth within the Bank’s loan portfolio mainly in the construction and development loans, continued uncertainties of the
economic impact from the COVID-19 pandemic and an increase in the historical loss factor resulting from increased levels of prior
period charge-offs. As of December 31, 2020, the Bank did not apply any qualitative factors to the loans originated from PPP, based
on the U.S government’s guarantee and the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Securities Act requirement to classify these loans at
0% n determining nisk-based capital ratio, The rate of allowance for credit losses to period end loans was 1.18% (excluding PPP loans,
the coverage ratio was 1.35%) at December 31, 2020, compared to 1.06% at December 31, 2019, which reflects management’s
assessment of the credit quality n the loan portfolio. See the section above titled “Finaneial Condition -Allowance for Loan Losses™
for a discussion of our allowance [or loan losses methodology, including additional information regarding the determination ol the
provision for loan losses.

2019 vs 2018. The provision for eredit losses for the twelve months ended December 31, 2019 was 548 million compared with
a provision of $6635 000 for the 2018 period. The merease in the provision was due to a 4.2 million provision recorded in the first
quarter of 2019 resulting from 54.3 million in charge-offs recorded against three separate borrower relationships. The ratio of allowance
for loan losses 1o total loans decreased from 1.20% 1o 1.06% for the period ended December 31, 2019, primarily due 1o a decrease in
commercial and indusirial loans as a percentage of total porifolio which have a higher risk profile and a decrease in impaired loans and
related specific reserves. See the section above titled “Financial Condition -Allowance for Loan Losses™ for a discussion of our
allowance for loan losses methodology, including additional imformation regarding the determination of the provision for loan losses.

Non-Interest Income.

2020 vs 2019, Total non-interest income for the twelve month period ended December 31, 2020 increased 51.4 million, or
41.7%, primarily due to increases of $540 thousand from the gains recorded from the sale of invesiment securities available-for-sale,
5431 thousand in service charges collected and 5391 thousand in loan fees.

2019 vs 2018, Total non-interest income for the twelve months ended December 31, 2019 increased $723,000, or 27.2%, when
compared to the same period in 2015, This increase was primanly due to an amount of services charges collected on deposits resulting
from the branch acquisition in May 2019. In addition, fees collected from the loan portfolio increased 5224000, or 29.7%, in 2019
when compared to 2018,
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Non-Interest Expense.

2020 vs 2019. Tor the twelve month period ended December 31, 2020, non-interest expense was 531.1 million, compared to
$27.7 million for the same period in 2019. The increase was due to an increase in additional operating cost associated with the Bank’s
branch expansion sirategy.

2019 vs 2018. For the twelve month period ended December 31, 2019, non-interest expense was 327.7 million, compared to
$25.3 million for the same period in 2018, The $2.4 million increase was attributed to expenses recorded relating to the branch
acquisition and its impact on other operaling expenses along with expenses associated with new branch expansion.

Income Tax Expense.

2020 vs 2019. For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Bank recorded income tax expense of $3.5 million resulting in an
effective tax rate of 20.2%, compared to a 32.2 million expense resulting m an effective tlax rate of 17.6% for the same period m 2019
The current effective tax rate was impacted by decreased level of tax-free income against taxable earnings. In addition to, during the
third quarter of 2020, the New Jersey Governor signed a law extending and retroactively increasing New Jersev's corporation business
tax surtax by 1.0% 1o 2.5%.

2619 vs 2008. For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Bank recorded income tax expense of $2.2 million resulting in an
effective tax rate of 17.6%, compared to a 53.0 million expense resulting in an effective tax rate of 16.9% for the same period in 2018,
The current effective tax yields for the twelve months ended December 31, 2019, were mereased, in part, by the recording of a $117,000
income tax expense as a result of the New Jersey [hvision of Taxation issuing THB-86(R) on December 16, 2019, which provided clanty
for Business Entities in a Combined Group.
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Average Balance Sheers. The average vields and costs of funds shown in the following table are derived by dividing income
or expense by the daily average balance of assets or liabilities, respectively, for the periods presented. Nonacerual loans are included in

the average balance of loans receivable, net for all periods presented. No tax-equivalent adjustments have heen made,

For the Year Enced December 31,

(Dollars m thousands) 2020 2019
Awverage Awrage Awverage Awverage
alance Interest Yield' Cost Balance Interest Yield'Cost
Inlerest-carning assels:
Lovam receivable, net $ 0 1.2991534 § 59301 459 5 1,124.8565 § 56251 5.0
Tnvestnent securies
Available-for-sake 93483 287 224% ¥7.653 2463 25
Held-to-umtunty 219 11 5.20% s 12 520%
Other mierest-Saming assels 45,052 267 0,595 43603 w1 227
Total mterest-eammg assets 1,430,288 61,676 4.31% 1 216,436 59717 4.7
Non-inferest-eaming assefs _ lo0ss2 M -
Total assets 3 LE0.E40 5 1351072

Interest-earning liabilities:

Interest-hearing demand and savings depositz 5 395,797 2410 0.61% 5 337855 4090 1.21%
Money markets 281421 2003 0.71% 254,151 4.250 L6
T deposus A10A53 B0 2.05% Al 908 @A 23
Total mterest-bearmg deposits 3 1087, 701 12817 1.158% 5 G914 17,784 1.75%
THLE advances 1,345 @ 0.6T% 18,326 482 263%
Total interest-bearng liabilities 1 085 (46 12826 1.18% 1,017,240 18.266 1B
Non-mterest-bearmg liabilites 239239 123821
Total Eablaes 1,328,385 1,141,061
Stockholders' equity 22555 190,111
Total Babilities and stockholders' equity 1,530,840 1,331,172
Interest rate ,-,:|:nrv.=.a|:l:I 313 207
et mierest Bicone £ 4885 § 41451
Net viekd on mterest-cammg assets” 342% 327
Ratio of average inferest cammg assets to
average mterest-hearing Babilities 1.30% 1 2

1 . .
Interest rate spread represents the difference between the average vield on mierest-sammg assets and the avemge cost
of mierest-bearing Labilities,

2
" Met Yield on micrest-caming assefs represents net micrest meome as A pereentage of aver nferest-caming assefs
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{Dollars m thousands )

Interestearning assels:

Losan recenvable, net

Inves ment securnties
Avalable-for-sale
Held-to-maturity

Other mlerest-eammg assels
Total mterest-caming assets

Non-interest-cammg assets
Total assets

Interest-carning linbilitics
Interest-bearng dennond and savings deposits
Meney markets
Time deposits
Total mteresi-bearing deposits
FHLE advances
Total mterest-bearing labalsties
Non-interest-bearmg liabilities
Total habalitees
Stockholders' equity
Total babilites and stockbolders’ equity

1
Interest rate s pread
Net mierest meone

) . ]
Met vield on interes [-earming assels

Rt of average mierest eammg assels 10

average mtepest-beanng habilitses

- Interest rane spread represents the difference between the average vield on mterest-cammg assets and the average cost

of mterest-bearmg habilitwes.

3
" Mt Yiekl on mierest-cammg assels represents net mierest moone as a percentage of aver mieresi-eammg assels,
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1018
Awrage Awerage
Balance Interest Yield'Cost
5 Laiol 0 5L0Es 497
08,727 2482 2351%
51 13 5.18%
32 785 200t
L165,593 54,305 4.60%
ITAM
5 1223348
b 317,598 3,051 0.56%
273,373 3888 1.42%
334,780 6,023 18R
5 925,751 12,962 LAy
17,196 3 2.20%
942,947 13,356 1.42%
104,611
1,047 558
175,791
1,223,340
3.23%
§ 4100
3520
1.24x
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Rate/Volume Analysis

The following table reflects the sensitivity of our interest income and interest expense to changes in volume and in yields on
interest-earning assets and costs of interest-bearing liabilities during the periods indicated.

Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
2020 vs, 2019 20019 . 2018
(Dollars i thousands) Increase (Decrease) Due to Increase (Decrease) Due to
Vohne Rate Het Vohume Hate Met
Interest and divide nd income:;
Loan recevable, net 3 (4,631) b3 T.681 3 3,050 5 4859 % 7 5 5,166
Tnvestment secities
Avatlable-for-sale (315) (50} (3663 (18) (1) (1%
Feld-to-usiurity - () (1) (1 - (n
Other mterst-caming as sels (733) g (724) 102 1M 2006
Total interest-cammeg assets $ (567 % 7638 3 1,959 5 4,942 5 410 5 5352
Interest expense:
Interest-bearing demand and savings deposits 3 {2,032) b3 352 3 (1,6800 5 245 13 T4 5 L0349
Money markets (2.446) 194 2,247 (321) (&3 362
Tmne depasits {1,065) 55 (1,040 1,674 1,747 3421
FHLE advances (360) (113) (173) 30 58 BE
Total mterest-bearmg labdities 3 (5,933) b3 493 3 (5,4400 5 1628 3 3,282 5 4910
Change m net interest ncome 5 254 5 7.145 ] 7,300 5 3314 § (287D 5 442

Liquidity, Commitments and Capital Resources

Liguidity. Our liquidity, represented by cash and due from banks, is a product of our operating, investing and financing
activities. Our primary sources of funds are deposits, principal repayments of securities and outstanding loans, and funds provided from
operations. In addition. we invest excess funds in shori-term interest-earnings assets such as overnight deposiis or U8, agency securities,
which provide liquidity to meet lending requirements. While scheduled payments from the amortization of loans and securities and
short-term investments are relatively predictable sources of funds, general interest rates, economic conditions and competition greatly
mnfluence deposit flows and repayments on loans and mortgage-backed securities.

We strive to maintain sufficient liquidity to fund operations, loan demand and to satisfy fluctuations in deposit levels. We are
required to have enough investments that qualify as liquid assets in order to mamtaim sufficient iquidity to ensure safe and sound banking
operaions. Ligqudity may merease or decrease dependmg upon the avalability of funds and comparative yvields on mvestments in
relation to the retun on loans. We attempt to maintain adequate but not excessive liquidity, and liguidity management is both a daily
and long-term function of our business management. We manage our liquidity in accordance with a board of directors-approved asset-
liability policy, which i1s administered by our asset-liability committee (“ALCO™). ALCO reports interest rate sensitivity, liquidity,
capital and investmeni-related matters on a quarierly basis o our board of directors.

We review cash flow projections regularly and vpdate them in order to maintain liquid assets at levels believed to meet the
requirements of normal operations, including loan commitments and potential deposit outflows from maturing certificates ol deposii
and savings withdrawals.

While deposits are our primary source of funds, when needed we are also able to generate cash through borrowings from the
FHLB-NY. At December 31, 2020, we had remaining available capacity with FHLB-NY, subject to certain collateral restrictions, of
5192.5 million.

Additionally, we are a sharcholder of Atlantie Community Baneshares, Ine., and as such, as ol December 31, 2020, we had
available capacity with its subsidiarv, Atlantic Community Bankers Bank of 310.0 million to provide short-term liquidity generally for
a period of not more than fourteen days.
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Contractual Obligarons. We have non-cancelable operating leases [or branch ollices and our operations center. The [ollowing
table is a schedule of future paymenis under operating leases with imitial terms longer than 12 months at December 31, 2020:

Years Ended December 31: (in thousands)
2021 % 24453
2022 2.106
2023 2024
2024 1,758
2025 1.731
Thereafter 13.593
Total minimum payments required 23695

Ihe following table summanzes our contractual cash obligatons relating to certificates of deposits:

Years Ended December 31: {m thousands)
2021 b3 191,087
2022 61,382
2023 3T 03
2024 56,764
2025 and over 31978
Total b3 378,894

Capital Resoarces. Consistent with our goals to operate as a sound and profitable lnancial institution, we actively seek o
maintain our status as a well-capitalized institution in accordance with regulatory standards. As of December 31, 2020, we met the
capital requirements to be considered “well capitalized.” See Note 16 — “Regulatory Matters™ in the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements included within this Form 10-K for more information regarding our capital resources.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We are a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of our business of investing in loans
and securities as well as in the normal course of mamtaining and improving our facilities. These financial instruments include significant
purchase commitments, such as commitments related to capital expenditure plans and commitments to purchase investment securities
or mortgage-backed securities, and commitments 1o extend credit to meet the financial needs of our customers.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there 1s no violation of any condition established
in the loan contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee
by our customers. Our exposure to eredit loss in the event of non-performance by the counterparty to the financial instrument for
commitments to extend credit 1s represented by the contractual notional amount of those mstruments. We use the same credit policies
i making commitments and conditional obligations as we do for on-balance-sheet instruments. Since many of the commitments are
expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements.

We had the following off-balance sheet financial instruments whose contract amounts represent credit risk at December 31:

{in thousands) 2020 2019
Performance and standby letters of eredit g 2,165 g 2.353
Undisbursed loans-in-process 116,877 99,764
Commitments to fund loans 39 868 42,129
Unfunded commimenits under hnes of credit 4079 4 494
Total 5 162 989 5 148,740
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For additional information regarding our outstanding lending commitments at December 31, 2020, see Note 8 — “Commitments
and Contingencies” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-E.

Impact of Inflation

The finaneial statements included in this document have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepled in the United States of America. These principles require the measurement of hinancial position and results of operations in
terms of historical dollars, without considering changes in the relative purchasing power of money, over time, due to inflation. Our
primary assets and liabilitics are monetary in nature. As a result, interest rates have a more significant impact on our performance than
the effects of peneral levels of mflation. Interest rates, however, do not necessarily move i the same direction or with the same
magnitude as the price of goods and services, since such prices are affected by inflation.

Exposure to changes in Inferest Rates

Gap Analysis. The matching of assets and liabilities may be analyzed by examining the extent to which such assets and
liabilities are “interest rate sensitive” and by monitoring the Bank's interest rate sensitivity “gap.” An asset or liability 1s said 1o be
interest rate sensitive within a specific tme period il it will mature or reprice within that time period. The interest rate sensitivity gap is
defined as the difference between the amount of interest-earning assets maturing or repricing within a specific time period and the
amount of interest-hearing liabilities maturing or repricing within that same time period. A gap is considered positive when the amount
of interest rate sensitive assets exceads the amount of interest rate-sensitive Liabilities, A gap is considered negative when the amount of
interest rate sensitive liabilities exceeds the amount of interest rate sensitive assets. During a period of rising interest rates, a negative
gap would tend to atfect adversely net interest income while a positive gap would tend to result in an increase in net interest income,
Conversely, during a period of falling interest rates, a negative gap would tend to result i an increase in net interest income while a
positive gap would tend to atfect adversely net interest income.

The table on the next page sets [orth the amounts of our mlerest-eaming assels and interest-bearing habilities outstanding at
December 31, 2020, which we expect, based upon certain assumptions, to reprice or mature in each of the future time periods shown
{the “GAP Table™). Except as stated below, the amounts of assets and Liabilities shown which reprice or mature during a particular
perod were determined in aceordance with the earhier of term to repricing or the contractual maturity of the asset or hability. The table
sels forth an approximation of the projected repricing of assets and hiahilities at December 31, 2020, on the basis of contractual maturities,
anticipated prepavments, and scheduled rate adjustments within a three-month period and subsequent selected time intervals. The loan
amounts in the table refleet principal balances expected to be redeployed and/or repriced as a result of contractual amortization and
anticipated prepayments of adjustable-rate loans and lxed-rate loans, and as a result of contractual rate adjustments on adjustable-rate
loans.
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More than 3 More than | More than 3

3Months or  Months to | Yearto 3 Years to 5 More than 3
less Year Years Years Years Total Amount

Interest-camimg assews: (1)
Investmenl secunmies 5 IZ0IE 5 6065 % 13,130 § 2962 8 14376 % 74,551
Loans receivable 350,365 225873 488,700 25321 47800 1,365,960
Other interest-eamings assets (2) 74,105 - - - - 74,105

Total mterest-caming assets 5 482488 S 231938 % AQLR OS5 27034 S 62176 % 1314616
Interest-bearmg liabilities:
Checking and savings accounts b 10545 5 457156 % - % - 5 - % 467,701
Money market accounts 16,565 288,726 - - - 305,29]
Certificate accounts 60672 136012 97023 31622 - 325320

T'otal interest-beanng liabilities b T2 5 HELEW % 97023 % 31622 5 - b 108321
Interest-cammg assets

less interest-hearing liabilivies £ 354706 S (6400956) § 4MEDT 5 4562 S 62176 % 416,295
Cumulative interest-rate

sensitivity gap (3) 5 354706 5 (2952500 & 109557 5 3019 S 416,295
Cummlative interest-rate gap as a

percentage of total assets at

December 31, 2020 22.13% -18.42% 6, 84% 22067, 2597
Cumulative interesi-eaming assels as

a percentage of cummlative interest-bearing

liabilities at December 31, 2020 304082 69 55% 110,275 132.24% 13740

(1) Interest-eamings assets are inchided m the penod m which the balances are expected to be redeployved and/or repniced as a result of
anticipated prepayvments. scheduled rate adjustments and contractual maturities,
(2} Inchides FHLRB Stock

(3) Interest-rate sensitivity gap represents the difference between total nterest-eaming assets and total mterest-bearmg labilities.

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the method of analysis presented in the foregoing table. For example, although certain
assets and liabilities may have similar maturities or periods to repricing, they may react in different degrees to changes in market interest
rates. Also, the interest rates on certain types of assets and liabilities may fluctuate in advance of changes in market interest rates, while
nterest rates on other types may lag behind changes in market rates. Additionally, certmin assets, such as adjustable rate loans, have
features which restrict changes in interest rates both on a short-term basis and over the life of the asset. Further, in the event of'a change
in interest rates, prepayment and early withdrawal levels would likely deviate significantly from those assumed in calculating the table.
Finally, the ability of many borrowers (o service their adjustable-rate loans may decrease in the event of an interest rate increase.

Net Portfolio Value Analysis. Our interest rate sensitivity also 15 monitored by management through the use of a model which
generates estimates of the changes in our net portfolio value (“NPV™) over a range of interest rate scenarios. NPV s the present value
of expected cash flows from assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet contracts. The NPV ratio, under any interest rate scenario, is defined
as the NPV in that scenario divided by the market value of assets in the same scenario. The [ollowing table sets forth our NPV as of
December 31, 2020 and reflects the changes to NI'V as a result of immediate and sustained changes in interest rates as indicated.
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Change n NPV as % of Portfolio
Interest Rates Net Portfobo Valoe Valuic of Asscts
In Basis Points  (Rate
Shock) Amonts S Change % Change NPV Ratio Change
{in Thousands)
300 b 324291 S 10612 3.38% 0.07%  -7.13%
200 5 321015 % 7.336 2.34% 2.05%  -5.16%
100 b 322227 § 8,548 2.73% 4.75%  -2.45%
Statie 5 313679 % - 7.20%%

{100y b 267937 §  (45742) -14.58% 6.64% -0.56%
(200) b 245004 5 (68.675) -21.89% 549 -1.71%
(300) b 232564 §  (R1,115) -25.86% 4.7%  -2.50%

As is the case with the GAP Table, certain shortcomings are inherent in the methodology used in the above mnterest rate risk
measurements. Modeling changes in NPV require the making of certain assumptions which may or may not reflect the manner in which
actual yvields and costs respond to changes in market interest rates. In this regard, the models presented assume that the composition of
our interest sensitive assets and liabilities existing at the beginning of a period remains constant over the period being measured and also
assumes that a particular change in interest rates is reflected uniformly across the vield curve regardless of the duration to maturity or
repricing of specific assets and liabilities. Accordingly, although the NPV model provides an indication of interest raie risk exposure at
a particular point in time, such model is not intended to and does not provide a precise forecast of the effect of changes in market interest
rates on net interest income and will differ from actual results,

Return on Fquity and Assets

The following table presents certain performance ratios for the yvears ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018,

2020 2019 2018
Retum on Average Assets (ROA) 0.90% 0.75% 1.22%
Return on Average Equity (ROE) 6.82% 5.33% 8.30%
Average Equity 1o Average Assels 13.23% 14.07 % 14.37%
Dividend Payout Ratio' 20.59% 17.22% NM*%

"'The Bank declared an initial cash dividend of $0.03 per conunon stock during the fourth quarer of 2018,
Mot meaningfil.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

In the preparation of our financial statements, we have adopted various accounting policies that govern the application of
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and in accordance with general practices within the banking industry. Our
sigmflicant accounting policies are described in our linancial statements under Note 1- “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.”
While all of these policies are important to understanding the financial statements, certain accounting policies described below involve
significant judgment and assumptions by management that have a material impact on the carrying value of certain assets and liabilities.
We consider these accounting estimates to be critical accounting policies. The judgments and assumptions we use are based on historical
experience and other [actors, which we believe 1o be reasonable under the circumstances. Because of the nature of the judgments and
assumptions we make, actual results could differ from these judgments and assumptions that could have a material impact on the carrving
values of our assets and liabilities and our resulis of operations.

Altowance for Credit Losses. The allowance for credit losses consists of the allowance for loan losses and the reserve for
unfunded lending commitments. The allowance for loan losses represents our estimate of losses inherent in the loan portfolio as of the
balance sheet date and is recorded as a reduction to loans. The reserve for unfunded lending commitments represents our estimate of
losses inherent in our unfunded loan commitments and is recorded in other liabilities on the balance sheet. The allowance for loan losses
is increased by the provision for loan losses, and decreased by charge-offs, net of recoveries. Generally, loans deemed 1o be uncollectible
are charged-off against the allowance for loan losses, and subsequent recoveries, if any, are eredited to the allowance for loan losses. All,
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or part, of the principal balance of loans receivable are charged-off to the allowance for loan losses when it is determined that the
repayment of all. or part, of the principal balance is highlv unlikelv. For a more detailed discussion of our allowance for loan loss
methodology and the allowance for loan losses see the section titled “ Analysis of the Allowance for Loan Losses™ in this “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”™

Other-Than-Temporary Impairment.  Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary-impairment (“OTTI™)
quarterly, and more frequently when economic or market conditions warrant such an evaluation. In determining OTTI under Financial
Accounting Standards Hoard (“FASB™) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC™) Topic 320, Invesimenis — Debr and Equity
Securities, management considers many factors, including: (1) the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less
than amortized cost: (2) the financial condition and near term prospects of the issuer; (3) whether the market decline was affected by
macroeconomic conditions; and (4) whether the entity has the intent to sell the debt security or more likely than not will be required to
sell the debt secunty belore s anticipated recovery, The assessment of whether an OTT1 dechne exists mvolves a high degree of
subjectivity and judgment and is based on mformation available to management at a point in time. OTTI is deemed to have occurred if
there has been an adverse change in the remaining expected future cash flows.

When an OTT] ol debt secunines oceurs, the amount of the OTT] recognized mn earmings depends on whether the Bank mtends
to sell the security or more likely than not will be required 1o sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost basis. If the Bank
intends to sell or more likely than not will be required to sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost basis, the OTTI shall be
recognized in camings at an amount equal to the difference berween the securities’ amortized cost basis and its fair value at the balance
sheet date. If the Bank does not intend to sell the security and 1t 15 not more likely that the Bank will be required 1o sell the security
before recovery of its amortized cost basis, the OTTT shall be separated into the amount representing the credit loss and the amount
related to all other factors. The amount of the total OTTI related to the credit loss is determined based on the present value of cash tlows
expected 1o be collected and is recognized in earnings. The amount of the total OT 11 related to other factors shall be recognized in other
comprehensive mcome, net of apphcable tax benefit. The previous amortized cost basis less the OTT1 recognized in earnings shall
become the new amortized cost basis of the investment.

For held-to-mamnty debt secunties, the amount of an other-than-lemporary impairment recorded mm other comprehensive
income for the noncredit portion of a previous other-than-temporary impairment will be amortized prospectively over the remaining life
of the security on the basis of the timing of future estimated cash flows of the security.

Goodwill and Core Depasit Imangible. Both goodwill and the core deposit intangible asset is reviewed for impairment
annually or when events and circumstances indicate that an impairment may have cccurred. As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic
and a broad decline in the market values of all banking company stock, the market price of the Bank’s common stock and the resulting
aggregaic market capitalization of the Bank declined. During each of the quarterly periods ended March 31, 2020, June 30, 2020,
September, 30, 2020, and December 31, 2020, the Bank concluded that a tnggermg event oceurred due to the declne in the Bank's stock
price and market capitalization as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. In cach quarterly period, management concluded based on the
results of a qualitative goodwill impairment analysis that the fair value of the reporting unit exceeded the carrying value and the goodwill
was not impaired. At May 31, 2020, the Bank performed its annual quantitative zoodwill impairment analysis determuning the fair value
of the reporting unit based on the income approach and market approach. The income appreach vses a dividend discouni analysis. This
approach caleulates cash [ows based on anticipated lnancial resulls assuming a change ol control transaction. This change of control
assumes that an acquirer will achieve an expected base level of earmings, achieve integration cost savings and mcur certam transaction
costs (including such items as legal and financial advisors fees, contract cancellations, severanee and employment obligations, and other
transaction costs), The present value ol all excess cash [lows generated by the Bank (above the minimum tangible capital ratio) plus the
present value ol a terminal sale value 15 caleulated o armive at the e value for the income approach. The market approach is used 1o
calculate the fair value of a company by caleulating median earnings and book value pricing multiples for recent actual acquisitions of
companies of similar size and performance and then applying these multiples 1o our reporting unil. No company or fransaction n the
analysis 15 identical to our reporting umit and, accordingly, the resulis of the analysis are only mdicative ol comparable value. This
technigue uses histonical data to create a current pricing level and 1s thus a trmiling imdicator. Results of the market approach need to be
understoond m this context, especially in periods of rapid price change and marketl uncertainty. The Bank applied the marketl valuation
approach to our then current stock price adjusted by an appropriate control premium and also to a peer group adjusted by an appropriate
control premium. In this analysis, the Bank determuned that none of its goodwill was impaired.  Also, the core deposit intangible was
analyzed and no impairment was recorded.

Tncome Taxes. We account for income taxes in accordance with income tax accounting guidance contained in FASB ASC

Topic 740, Income Taves. This includes guidance related to accounting for uncertainties in income taxes, which sets out a consistent
framework to determine the appropriate level of tax reserves to maintain for uncertain tax positions. We had no material unrecognized
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tax benefits or acerued interest and penalties as of December 31, 20200 and 2019, Our policy is to account for interest and penalties as a
component of other expense.

We have provided for federal and state income taxes on the basis of reported income. The amounts reflected on our tax returns
differ from these provisions due principally (o temporary differences in the reporting of certain items for finanecial reporting and income
tax reporting purposes. The tax effect of these temporary differences is accounted for as deferred taxes applicable to future periods.

Delerred meome tax expense or benelit 1s determined by recogniang delerred tax habilities and assels, respectively, lor the
estimated future tax consequences attnbutable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and
liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to
taxable ncome in the vears in which those temporary differences are expected 1o be recovered or setiled. The effeet on deferred assets
and habihties of a change m ax rates 1s recognized i eamings i the period that ncludes the enactment date, The realization of delerred
lax assets is assessed and a valuation allowance provided for the full amount which is not more-likely-than-not to be realized.

On September 29, 2020, New Jersey Governor Phil Murphy signed into law A.4721, exiending through December 31, 2023,
the 2.5% surtax currently imposed on Corporation Business Tax (CBT) filers with allocated taxable net income over 51 million. As
originally enacted, the surtax rate was scheduled to decrease from 2.5% to 1.5% for privilege periods beginning on or after January 1,
2020 through December 31, 2021 and expire for privilege periods beginning on or after Januvary 1, 2022, The change made by A 4721
takes effect immediately and applies retroactively to privilege periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020. The Bank recorded an
additional 563,000 in income tax expense related to the adjusted surtax during 2020. Effective in 2019, New Jersev has adopted
combined income tax reporting for certain members of a commonly-controlled unitary business group.

On July 1, 2018, New Jersey Governor Phil Murphy signed into law changes to the corporate business tax laws. This legislation
required a combined group to file combined returns for tax vears beginning in 2019 and thereafter. However, due to technical issues
and inconsistencies with existing tax law, it was determined that the tax law change did not have an impact on deferred taxes. In
December 2019, the State of New Jersey issued a clanfyimng technical bulletin related to the impact of the new tax legislation enacted in
Tuly 2018. This technical bulletin provided clarification to the combined income tax reporting for certain members of a unitary business
group. Accordingly, this required a revaluation of some of the Bank's deferred tax assets. In the 4th quarter, the Bank recorded state
delerred tax expense in the amount of approximately $117,000.

The 2017 Tax Act reduced the U.S. federal corporate tax rate from 35% to 21% effective January 1, 2018, Also, on December
22, 2017, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Stafl Accounting Bulletin No. 118 (“SAB 118™), which provides guidance
on accounting for tax effects of the 2017 Tax Act. SAB 118 provides a measurement period of up 1o one yvear from the enactment date
to complete the accounting. Any adjustments during this measurement period will be included in net earnings from continuing operations
as an adjustment to income tax expense in the reporting period when such adjustments are determined. Based on the information
available and current interpretation of the rules, the Bank estimated the impact of the reduction in the corporaie 1ax rate and
remeasurement of certain deferred tax assets and liabilities. The provisional amount recorded in the fourth quarter of 2017 related to the
remeasurement of the Dank's deferred tax balance resulted in additional income tax expense of 340,000, As of December 31, 2019,
management has concluded its assessment and determined no additional adjustment is required.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

See Note |- “Summary of Sigmiheant Accounting Policies”™ in the Notes 1o the Consohdated Finaneial Statements contamed i
this Anmal Report on Form 10-K for a discussion of recently issued accounting standards,

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

See [tem 7- “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Exposures to Changes
in Interest Rates.”

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Stockholders and Board of Directors
The Bank of Princeton
Princeton, NJ

Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of financial condition of The Bank of Princeton (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive
income, changes in stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December
31, 2020, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements™). In our opinion,
the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company
at December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2020, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Basis for Opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on the Company’s consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public
accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“PCAOB") and are
required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.5. federal securities laws and
the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAQB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of

material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures
included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current period audit of the
consolidated financial statements that were communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee
and that: (1) relate to accounts or disclosures that are material to the consolidated financial statements and (2)
involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters
does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not,
by communicating the critical audit matters below, providing separate opinions on the critical audit matters or on
the accounts or disclosures to which they relate.

Allowance for Loan Losses

As described in Motes 1 and 4 to the Bank's consolidated financial statements, the Bank has a gross loans receivable
portfolio of $1.4 billion and related allowance for loan losses of 516 million as of December 31, 2020. The allowance
for loan losses includes a general reserve which is determined based on the results of a quantitative (i.e. historical
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loss rates) and a qualitative analysis of all loans not measured for impairment individually at the reporting date.
The Bank applies a weight factor ranging from low risk to severely high risk to each qualitative factor (as listed in
Mote 1) for each portfolio segment to reflect improving, stable or declining conditions from the historical loss data
to the current conditions.

We identified the judgments made by management in the gualitative analysis of the allowance for loan losses as a
critical audit matter. The Bank estimates the risk of loss on loans collectively evaluated for impairment primarily
based on determination of qualitative risk factors. In doing so, management applies a weight factor to each
qualitative risk factor based on management's best judgment using relevant information available at the time of
evaluation. Auditing these complex judgments involved especially challenging auditor judgment due to the nature
and extent of audit evidence and effort required to address these matters.

The primary procedures we performed to address this critical audit matter included:

» Assessing the design and testing the operating effectiveness of controls over management’s review of the
inputs and assumptions used to determine the qualitative risk factors, including controls addressing:

o Management’s review of the accuracy of data inputs used in the determination of adjustments made
to the various qualitative risk factors.

Management’s review of the qualitative and quantitative conclusions reached related to the
gualitative risk factors and the resulting allocation to the allowance.
* Assessing the reasonableness of management’s estimation process, including evaluating data inputs used
and management's judgments in developing the qualitative risk factors including:

o Comparing inputs and judgments used to historical loan loss experience, current economic data,
impact of governmental forbearance and stimulus programs, including consideration of
contradictory evidence.

o Verifying the relevance and reliability of inputs used in determining the gualitative risk factors
through evaluating the sources of data used, considering contradictory evidence, and testing the
completeness and accuracy of data used.

Testing the mathematical accuracy and the allocation of qualitative risk factors through re-
performing or independently calculating aggregation of qualitative risk factors and application of
gualitative risk factors used in the allowance for loan losses.

Goodwill

As described in Motes 1 and 13 to the Bank's consolidated financial statements, the Bank has goodwill of $8.9
million as of December 31, 2020, which is allocated to the Bank's single reporting unit. Goodwill is tested for
impairment at the reporting unit level annually or when events and circumstances indicate that an impairment may
have occurred. During each of the periods ended March 31, June 30, September 30, and December 31, 2020, the
market volatility resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic resulted in a decrease in the Bank’s stock price and market
capitalization. The Bank determined that such decrease was a triggering event requiring interim goodwill
qualitative impairment analysis. At May 31, 2020, the Bank performed its annual goodwill quantitative impairment
analysis. The annual assessment of goodwill was performed by determining the fair value of the reporting unit
based on the income and market approaches.

We identified the assumptions used by management in the annual assessment of goodwill impairment as a critical
audit matter. Both the income and market approaches required significant management assumptions, including
discount rate, anticipated cash flows assuming a change in control transaction, terminal sale value, and appropriate
control premium. Auditing these significant assumptions involved especially challenging auditor judgment and an
increased extent of effort and included personnel with specialized skill and knowledge. The significant assumptions
were especially challenging to audit due to the inherent uncertainties related to the COVID-19 pandemic.
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The primary procedures we performed to address this critical audit matter included:

* Assessing the reasonableness of assumptions used by management in the goodwill impairment analysis,
including discount rate, anticipated cash flows assuming a change in control transaction, terminal sale
value, and appropriate control premium, by:

o Testing the completeness, accuracy, and relevance of underlying data used in management’s
anticipated cash flows by agreeing such data back to source documents, comparing to historical
results and considering the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic; and
Utilizing personnel with specialized knowledge and skill in valuation to assist in (i) assessing the
appropriateness of the valuation methodologies used and (ii) evaluating the reasonableness of
assumptions used, including discount rate, terminal sale value, and appropriate control premium.

[s/ BDO USA, LLP
We have served as the Company's auditor since 2013.

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
March 26, 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITTON

{Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks
Interest-cammg bank habinces

Total cash and cash equivalents

Securiies avalable-for-sale, at far value (amortized vabue of 573,215 and
SILLAM, respectnely)

Securitics held-to-maturity (far valoe of 5237 and $236, respectively)
Loans recenable, net of allwance for loan Josses of 816,027 and $12 557
at December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, respecuvely

Bank-owned bfe msurance
Premises and equpment, net
Accrued micrest receivable
Restricted mvesment m bank stock
Deferred taxes, net

Goodwill

Core depost mitangible

Operatmg kase right-of-use asset
Other assets

TOTAIL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
LIABILITIES
e posits:
MNon-mterest-bearmg
Interest-bearmg
Total deposits
Accrued mierest pavable
Operatmg kease habidiry
Orther labilines
TOTAL LIABILITIES

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY:
Common stock, $5.00 par value, 15.000,000 authorized. 6,789,812 and 6,761,443 sharcs
wsued and outstanding at December 31, 2020 and December 31, 20019, respectively
Paid-in capital
Retamed eammes
Accumulated other comprehensive meome
TOTAL STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

See notes o consolidated financial statements.
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December 31, December 31,
2020 2019

5 4,690 5 12032

72,739 1,566

77429 72598

75,628 112312

215 222

1,347,459 1.174013

47.862 46,711

12,714 10,777

4,593 3620

1,366 1,246

4460 3027

8853 8853

3030 3,763

15408 14,533

515 2,313

5 1 502 838 5 1454 794

5 215,381 5 141 338

1151885 1096552

1.367.2066 1,237,890

2476 3885

18,987 15 (i

5,291 2154

1,394,020 1258965

33040 33,807

79,708 79215

93370 82273

1.791 G300

208,813 195925

5 1,602 838 5 1454894
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

{Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

INTEREST AND DIVIDEND INCOME
Loans receivable, inchuding fees
Securities available-for-sale:
Taxable
Tax-exempt
Securitics beld-to-maturity
Oither mterest and dividend moconme
TOTAL INTEREST AMND DIVIDEND INCOME

INTEREST EXIPPENSE
Deposits

Borrowmgs

TOTAL INTEREST EXPENSE

NET INTEREST INCOME
Provision for loan kesses

MET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES

NON-INTEREST INCOME

Gam on call’sale of securities available-for-salke
Income from bank-owned life msurance

Fees and service charges

Loan fees, meluding preypayment penaliies
Other

TOTAL NON-INTEREST INCOME

NOM-INTEREST EXPENSES
Salaries and emplovee benefits
Occupancy and equpment
Professional fees

Data processmg and ©ommumications
Federal depost msurance

Advertismg and promotion

Office expense

Other real estate expenses

Acquisition cost

Loss on sale of other real estate owned
Core deposit mtangibke

Oiher

TOTAL WON-TMTEREST EXPENSE

INCOME BEFORE [INCOME TAX EXPENSE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE
NET INCOME

Earnmgs per common share-basic
Earnmgs per common share-dihuted
Dividends declared per conmmon share

For the twebe months ended

December 31,

2020 2019 2018
5 50301 % 56,251 § 51,085
TI9 1,126 1,176
1378 1,337 1,306
11 12 13
267 9] THS
61,676 50717 54,365
12817 17,784 12.962
0 482 304
12526 18266 13356
48 850 41451 41 006
5225 4 B0 (ili]
43,625 36651 40,344
571 31 1
1151 1,230 1225
1,493 1,062 613
1370 o970 755
721 o) 68
4,506 3,392 2,662
16451 15274 14,530
5412 4,260 3387
2,103 1,772 1,939
3085 2407 2,101
497 #1 334
301 3E6 421
276 433 267
- 10 2

G627

- 7 40

TT 2 -
2289 2000 1.773
31,141 27730 25208
17290 12304 17,708
3484 2162 3 000
5 13806 S 10142 5 14,708
3 204 5 1.51 & 222
% ol & 1.47 & 2.14
b3 040 5 026 % 0.03

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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The Bank of Princeton

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Dollars in thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
NET INCOME 5 13806 S 10142 5 14708
Other comprehensive meome (loss)
Unrealized holdings gams (losses) arismg during period on
securites available-for-sale 2126 1,549 {749
Income tax effect on unrealized holdmg (541) (411) 198
Less: reclassification adustment for gam on callsale of
seeuritics availible-for-salk’ (571) (3N (1)
Income tax elfect on rechssilication adpsiment lor gam
on callsale of securities available-for-sale” 147 5 -
Total other comprehensive mecome (loss) 1,161 1.115 (352)
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 3 14967 S 11237 5 14156

1 . . ; " wa . n . . . .
Amounts are meluded m gam on call'sake of securities available-for-sale on the Consobdated Statement of Income

as a separate element withm olal non-iterest meome.

2 . ] . - - x
© Amounts are meluded m meome tax expense on the Consolidated Statement of Income.

See notes 1o consolhidated financial statements
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The Bank of Princeton

CONSOLIDATE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(Dollars in thousands)

Balance, January 1, 2018

Net income

Other comprehensive income

Stock options exercised (97,850 shares)
Directors compensation (6,430 shares)
Dividends declared $0.03 per share
Stock-based compensation expense
Balance, December 31, 2018

Net income

Other comprehensive income

Adoption of ASU Topic 842

Stock options exercised (98,852 shares)
Directors compensation (7,082 shares)
Dividends declared $0.26 per share
Stock-based compensation expense
Balance, December 31,2019

Net income

Other comprehensive income

Stock options exercised (21,520 shares)
Directors compensation (5,388 shares)
Dividends declared $0.40 per share
Dividend reinvestment plan (1,461 shares)
Stock-based compensation expense
Balance, December 31, 2020

Accumlated
other
Common Paid-in Retained comprehensive
stock Capital Earnings (loss) income Total

$ 327756 $ 76350 $ 59,122 $ 67 168,295
- - 14,708 - 14,708
- - - (552) (552)
490 883 - - 1,373
32 168 - - 200
- - (200) - (200)
- 494 - - 494
$ 33278 $ 77,895 $ 73,630 $ (4895) 184,318
- - 10,142 - 10,142
- - - 1,115 1,115
- - (219) - (219)
494 848 - - 1,342
35 165 - - 200
- - (1,280) - (1,280)
- 307 - - 307
$ 33,807 $ 79215 $ 82273 $ 630 195,925
- - 13,806 - 13,806
- - - 1,161 1,161
108 179 - - 287
27 93 - - 120
- - (2,709) - (2,709)
7 24 - - 31
- 197 - - 197
$ 33,949 $§ 79,708 $ 93370 $ 1,791 208,818

See notes o consolidated Onancial statements
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The Bank of Princeton

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Dollars m thousands)

Twelve Months Ended Decembser 31,

2020 2019 2018
CASH FLOWE FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income 5 13806 5 10,142 3 14,708
Adpstneats o recoxlde pel ncone to pet cash provaded by operatig activities.
Provision for kan keses 5225 4,800 (20
Deprecition and amortzation 1,159 792 G638
Stock-based compensation expense 197 7 494
Amortization of prenmuns and sccreton of discouwn on securties 201 243 328
Accretion of net deferred Joan fees and costs (3.021) {1.026) [D60)
Gain on call'sale of secwuriies avaihble-for-sale (571} (30 (1)
Increase mcash surrender vabie of hank-owned Be msurance (1,151) (1,230 (1,225)
Loss on sale writedown of other real estate oowned - 7 540
Deferred meome 1ax expense (926) (62) (3.242)
Amortzation of cote deposi mtangible 727 482 -
Stock-lased dwectors compensation 120 200 200
Operating leases Eability paviments (1.822) {1.465)
Decrease macerued miterest recenable and other assets 2116 1,000 3013
Increase i acered mterest pavable and other Babilities 2036 2505 972
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OFERATING ACTIVITIES 15086 1T 17021
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACLUIVITIES
Purchases of avadable-for-salke securimes {28332) (47.233) (9,145)
Prneipal repayinents of securitics available-for-salke 39259 11,533 12,566
Matertes and calls of secunbes avadable-for-sale 16636 16,375 5545
Proceeds from saks of avalhble-for-sake securtes 116 - -
Matwiies, calls and prncipal repayments of securities beld-to-manty 7 (& 36
Nel merease m loans (175.650) (108.352) (33.195)
Purchase of bans - - (57,3800
Purchase of bank-owned life msurance - - (3,700)
Purchases of premuses and equipment {30EG) {3.982) (9
Proceeds on sake of other teal estale owied - 37 218
Cash from acoussition of bank wanches - 161,282 -
(Purchase) redemprion of restmicted bank stock (120} 2328 (2.506)
NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES (140,250} 31,794 (108611}
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net merease (decrease) merease mdeposits 129376 52604 {21.421)
Met (decrease) merease m overmight bormowmes - (55 400) 55400
Dinadend remwvestment program il - -
Cash dradencs {2705 (1.280) [200)
Proceeds from exercise of stock oplions 287 1342 1373
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 126985 264} 35152
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 4851 46214 (F6A3E)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD 72508 26,384 g2R22
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ENL O PERICL) § TiAZ9 5 TS § 26384

See notes to consobdared financial statements
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The Bank of Princeton

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMEXNT OF STATEMENTS OF CASH FLLOWSE -(Continued)

SUFPLEMENTARY CASH FLOWS INFORMATION:
Interest paid

Tncone taxes paxd

Recognition of opemimg kease nght-of-use nssers
Recogmtion of operating brases Babilities

Fan vahwe of assets acquied

Fawr vahlue of linbilities assmmed

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF NONCASH ACTIVITIES
Transfers from loans receivable, net of OREOQ

{Dolars m thousands)

I'welve Months Ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
H 14,235 3 16578 5 12,749
5 3177 3 3112 5 1,067
$ 5,768 i 17,716 £ -
5 5768 3 17,990 5 -
5 - $ 168 244 5 -
5 - $ 177,797 3 -
5 - 3 - 5 802

See notes w consolidated financial statements
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The Bank of Princeton The Bank of Princeton

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Organization and Nature of Operations Bank does not have any portion of'its business dependent on a single or limited number of customers or industries,

The Bank of Princeton (the “Bank™) was incorporated on March 5, 2007 under the laws of the State of New Jersey
and is a New Jersev state-chartered banking institution. The Bank was granted its bank charter on April 17, 2007,
commenced operations on April 23, 2007 and is a tull-service bank providing personal and business lending and
deposit services. As a state-chartered bank, the Bank is subject to regulation by the New Jersey Depariment of
Banking and Insurance and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC™). The area served by the Bank,
through its 21 branches. is generally an area within an approximate 50 mile radius of Princeton, NI, including
parts of Mercer, Somersel, Hunterdon, Ocean, Burlington, Camden, Gloucester and Middlesex Counties in central
New Jersey, and additional areas in portions of Philadelphia, Montgomery and Bucks Counties in Pennsylvania.
The Bank also conducts loan origination activities in select areas of New York.

On August 4, 20107, the Bank completed a common stock offering and issued 1,725,000 shares of common stock,
at a price to the public of $32.00 per share. The common stock now trades on the NASDAQ Global Select Market
under the ticker symbol “BPRN.”

The Bank offers traditional retail banking services, one-to-four-family residential mortgage loans, multi-family
and commercial mortgage loans, construction loans, commercial business loans and consumer loans, including
home equity loans and hines of credi.

Basis of Financial Statement Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Bank and its wholly-owned subsidiaries: Bavard
Lane, LL.C. Bayard Properties. LLC, |12 Fifth Avenue, LLC, TBOP Delaware Investment Company and TBOP
REIT. Inc. All significant inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP™).

Estimates

The preparation of consolidated finaneial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumphions that allect the reported amounts of assets and habihnes and diselosure ol contimgent
assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Because of uncertainties associated with esumating the amounts, timing
and likelihood of possible outcomes, actual results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are
particularly susceptible to sigmficant change in the near term relate 1o the determination of the allowance for loan
losses, the determination of other-than-temporary impairment of securities, the potential impairment of goodwill,
and the valuation of deferred tax assets.

Management believes that the allowanee for loan losses 1s adequate as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, While
management uses current information to recognize losses on loans, future additions to the allowance for loan
losses may be necessary based on changes in economic conditions in the market area or other factors.

In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the
Bank’s allowance for loan losses. Such agencies may require the Bank to effect certain changes that result in
additions to the allowance based on their judgments aboul information available to them at the time of their
examinations.

Significant group concentrations of credit risk

Most of the Bank’s activities are with customers located within the Mercer County, New Jersey, and surrounding
areas as well as five boroughs of New York City and certain Philadelphia, Pennsylvania metropolitan areas. The
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the loss of which would have a material adverse effeet on its business. No substantial portion of loans is
concentrated within a single industry or group of related industries, except that a significant majority of
commercial loans are secured by real estate. There are numerous risks associated with commercial and consumer
lending that could impact the borrowers™ ability to repay on a timely basis. They include but are not limited to:
the owner's business expertise, changes in local, national, and m some cases international economies,
competition, governmental regulation, and the general financial stability of the borrowing entity.

Transfers of financial assets

Transfers of financial assets, including loan and loan participation sales, are accounted for as sales when control
over the assets has been surrendered. Control over ransferred assers is deemed to be swrrendered when (1) the
asseis have been isolated from the Bank, (2) the transferee obiains the right, free of conditions that consirain it
from taking advantage of that right, o pledge or exchange the translerred assets, and (3) the Bank does not
maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase them before their
maturity. The outstanding balance of loan participations sold was $28.7 million and $30.6 million as of December
31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Cash and due from banks

Cash and due from banks include cash on hand, on deposit at other hinancial imstitutions and the Federal Reserve

Bank of Philadelphia.

Securities

The Bank's investment portfolio mcludes both held-to-maturity and available-for-sale securiiies:

Held-to-Maturity = Investment securities that management has the positive intent and ability to hold until maturity
are classified as held-to-maturity and carried at their remaining unpaid principal balance, net of unamortized
premiums or unacereled discounts. Premiums are amortized and discounts are accreled using the miterest method
over the estimated remaming term of the underlying security.

Available-for-Sale - Investment securities that will be held for indefinite periods of time, including securities that
may be sold in response to changes in market interest or prepayment rates, needs for hiquidity, and changes in the
availability and the vield of alternative investments, are classified as available-for-sale. These assets are carried
at their estimated fair value. Fair values are based on quoted prices for identical assets in active markets, quoted
prices tor similar assets in markets that are either actively or not actively traded, or in some cases where there is
limited activity or less transparency around inputs, internally developed discounted cash flow models. Unrealized
gains and losses are excluded from earnings and are reported net of tax in accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) on the consolidated statements of financial condition until realized, including those
recognized through the non-credit component of an OTTI charge.

The Bank evaluates its secunities portfolio for OTTI throughout the yvear. Each investment, having a fair value
less than the book value, is reviewed on a quarterly basis by management. Management considers, at a mininmum,
whether the following factors exist that, both individually or in combination, could indicate that the decline is
other-than-temporary: (a) the Bank has the intent to sell the security: (b) it is more likely than not that it will be
required to sell the security before recovery; and (¢) the Bank does not expect to recover the entire amortized cost
basis of the security. Among the factors that are considered in determining the Bank's intent are capital adequacy,
interest rate risk protile and liquidity at the Bank. An impairment charge is recorded against individual securities
il the review described above concludes that the decline in value is other-than-temporary. During 2020 and 2019,
it was determined that there were no other-than-temporarily impaired investments.
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The Bank of Princeton The Bank of Princeton

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Loans receivable that management has the intent and ability to hold until maturity or payoff are reported at their
outstanding vnpaid prineipal balances, net of an allowance for loan losses, and deferred fees and cosis. Interest
income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance. Loan origination fees, net of certain direct origination costs,
are deferred and recognized as an adjustment of the yield on the related loans. Premiums and discounts on
purchased loans are amortized as adjustments 1o interest income using the level-yvield method.

The loan receivable portfolio is segmented into commercial real estate (includes multi-family), commercial and
mdustnal, construction, residential first-lien mortgage, home equity/eonsumer loans and Payroll Protection
Program loans (“PPP") puaranteed by 1S, Small Business Admimistration,

For all scgments of loans receivable, the accrual of mterest is discontinued when the contractual pavment of
principal or interest 15 Y0 days past due or management has senous doubts about [urther collectability of principal
or interest, even though the loan is currently performing. A loan may remain on acerual status if'it is in the process
of collection and is either guaranteed or well-secured. When a loan i1s placed on nonaccrual status, unpaid interest
eredited to income in the current year is reversed and unpaid interest acerued in prior vears is charged against the
allowance for loan losses. Interest received on nonaccrual loans, including impaired loans, generally is either
applied against principal or reported as interest imcome, according to management’s judgment as to the
collectability of principal. Generally, loans are restored to acerual stams when the obligation is brought current,
has performed m accordance with the contractual terms for a reasonable period of time (generally six months)
and the ultimate collectability of the total contractual principal and interest is no longer in doubt. The past due
status of all segments of loans receivable is determined on contractual due dates for loan payments.

Allowance for credit losses

The allowance for credit losses consists of the allowance for loan losses and the reserve for unfunded lending
commitments. The allowance for loan losses represents management's estimate of losses inherent in the loan
portfolio as of the balance sheet date and is recorded as a reduction to loans. The reserve for unfunded lending
commitments represents management’s estimate of losses inherent n its unfunded loan commitments and 1s
recorded in other liabilities on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition. The allowance for loan losses
1s increased by the provision for loan losses, and deercased by charge-ofts, net of recoveries. Loans deemed to
be uncollectible are charged agamnst the allowance [or loan losses, and subsequent recovenes, 1l any, are credited
to the allowance. All, or part, of the principal balance of loans receivable are charged off to the allowance as
soon as it 1s determined that the repayment of all, or part, of the principal balance 1s highly unlikely.

The allowance for loan losses 1s maintained at a level considered adequate to provide for probable losses. The
Bank performs, at least quarterly, an evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance. The allowance is based on past
loan loss experience (which is bound by the Bank’s limited operating history), known and inherent risks in the
portlolio, adverse situations that may aflect the borrower’s ability to repay, the esnmated value of any underlying
collateral, the composition of the loan portfolio, current economic conditions and other relevant factors. This
evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires material estimates that may be susceptible to significant revision
as more information becomes available.
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Loans Receivable The allowance consists of specific, general and unallocated components. The specific component relates to loans

that are classified as impaired. For loans that are classified as impaired. an allowance is established when the
discounted cash flows (or collateral value or observable market price) of the impaired loan is lower than the
carrying value of that loan. The general component covers pools of loans by loan segment, including loans not
considered impaired, as well as smaller balance homogeneous loans, such as residential mortgage, home equity
and consumer loans. These pools of loans are evaluated for loss exposure based upon historical loss rates for
each of these loan sepments, adjusted for qualitative Factors. These qualitative risk factors include:

1. Lending policies and procedures, including underwriting standards and collection, charge-off, and
recovery practices:

2. National, regional, and local economic and business conditions, as well as the condition of various
market segments, including the valve of underlying collateral for collateral-dependent loans:

3. Nature and volume of the portfolio and terms of loans;

4. Expenence, ability, and depth of lending management and stafT;

5. Volume and severity of past due, classified and nonaccrual loans, as well as other loan modifications;
6. Quality of the Bank’s loan review system, and the degree of oversight by the Bank’s board of directors;

7. LExistence and effect of any concentrations of credit and changes in the level of such concentrations;

8. Changes in the value of underlying collateral for collateral-dependent loans; and
9. Elfect of external factors, such as competition and legal and regulatory requiremenis.

The Bank determines the allowance for loan losses by portfolio segment, which consists of commercial real estate
loans, commercial and industrial loans, construction loans, residential first-lien mortgage loans, home equity and
consumer loans. The Bank estimates the inherent risk of loss on all loans by portfolio segment, based primarily
on the nisk factors identified above and by applying a weight factor ranging from 4 bps (low nisk) to 24 bps
(severely high risk) to each element for each portfolio segment. The Bank does not apply any qualitative factors
to the loans originated from PPP, based on the 1.5, povernments puarantee and the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and
Leonomic Securities Act (“CARESS™) requirement to classify these loans at 0.0% risk weighting asset in
determining risk-based capital ratio.

Each factor is assigned a value to reflect improving, stable or declining conditions based on management’s best
Judgment using relevant information available at the ume of the evaluanon. Adjustments to the factors are
supported through documentation of changes in conditions in a narrative accompanying the allowance for loan
loss caleulation.

Residential first-lien mortgage loans and home equity loans involve certain risks such as interest rate risk and risk
ol non-repayment.  Adjustable-rale loans decrease the interest rate nisk o the Bank that 1s associated with changes
in interest rates but involve other risks, primarily because as interest rates rise, the pavment by the borrower rises
to the extent permitted by the terms of the loan, therehy increasing the potential for default. At the same time,
the marketability of the underlying

property may be adversely alTected by higher interest rates. Repayment risk can be affected by job loss, divorce,
illness and personal bankruptey of the bomower,

Construction lending is generally considered to involve a high degree of risk due to the concentration of principal
in a limited number of loans and borrowers and the effects of general economic conditions on developers and
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The Bank of Princeton The Bank of Princeton

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Confinued)

builders. Moreover, a construction loan can involve additional risks because of the inherent difficulry in
estimating both a property's value at completion of the project and the estimated cost, including interest, of the
project. The nature of these loans is such that they are generally ditficult to evaluate and monitor. In addition,
speculative construction loans to a builder are not necessarily for projects which are pre-sold or leased, and thus
pose a greater potential risk to the Bank than construction loans to individuals on their personal residences.
Commercial real estate lending entails sigmificant addinional risks as compared with sigle-family residential real
estate lending. Such loans typically involve large loan balances to single borrowers or groups of related borrowers.
The payment experience on such loans is typically dependent on the successtul operation of the real estate project.
The success ol such projects 1s sensitive to changes i supply and demand conditions in the market for commercial
real estate as well as economic conditions generally.

Commercial and industrial lending 15 generally considered higher nsk due to the concentration of principal m a
limited number of loans and borrowers and the effects of general economic conditions on the
business. Commercial business loans are primarly secured by mventones and other business assets. In most

cases, any repossessed collateral for a defaulted commercial business loan will not provide an adequate source of

repayment of the outstanding loan balance.

Consumer loans generally have shorter terms and higher interest rates than other lending but generally involve
more eredil nisk because of the type and nature of the collateral and, in certaim cases, the absence of collateral. In
addition, consumer lending collections are dependent on the borrower's continumg hnancial stability, and thus
are more likely to be adversely affected by job loss, divoree, illness and personal bankrupicy. In most cases, any
repossessed collateral lor a defaulted consumer loan will not provide an adequale source of repayment ol the
outsianding loan balance.

PPP loans have a maturity lemm rangimg between 2 1o 5 vears, bul the borrower can apply lor complele or partial
forgiveness from the L. 5. government afier six months. Once the 6 month term expires, the borrower is required

to commence making principle and mterest payments until matunty,

An unallocated component of the allowance for loan losses is maintained (o cover uncertainties that could affect

management's estimale of probable losses, The unallocated component of the allowance reflects the margin of

imprecision inherent in the underlying assumptions used in the methodologies for estimating specific and general
losses in the portiolio.

A loan 15 considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it 15 probable that the Bank will be

unible to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of

the loan agreement. Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment status,
collateral value and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that
experience msignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classibied as impaired
loans. Management determnes the sigmlicance of pavment delays and payment shorifalls on a case-by-case
basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances summounding the loan and the borrower, including the
length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower’s prior payment record and the amount of the shortfall
in relation o the principal and interest owed. Impaimment 15 measured on a loan-by-loan basis for commercial
real estate loans, commercial and industrial loans and construction loans by either the present value of expected
[uture cash Mows discounted at the loan’s elTective interest rate or the fair value of the loan collateral if the loan
1s collateral-dependent.  An allowance for loan losses is established for an impaired loan il its carrying value
exceeds its estimated fanr value, The estimated fair values of substantially all of the Bank’s impaired loans are
measured based on the estimated far value of the loan’s collateral, less costs 1o sell the property.

For commercial real estate loans, estimated fair values of the real estate collateral are determined primarily

through third-party appraisals. When a real estate-secured loan becomes impaired, a decision is made regarding
whether an updated appraisal of the real estate is necessary. This decision is based on various considerations,
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including the age of the most recent appraisal, the loan-to-value ratio based on the original appraisal and the
condition of the property. Appraised values are discounted to arrive at the estimated selling price of the collateral,
which 15 considered to be the estimated fair value. The discounts also include estimated costs to sell the property.

For commercial and industrial loans secured by non-real estate collateral, such as accounts receivable and
inventory and equipment., estimated tair values are determined based on the borrower’s financial statements,
inventory reports, accounts receivable aging or equipment appraisals or mvoices. Indications of value from these
sources are generally discounted based on the age of the financial information or the quality of the assets.

Large groups of smaller balance homogencous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment.  Accordingly, the
Bank does not separately identifv individual residential first-lien mortgage loans, home equity loans and consumer
loans for impairment, unless such loans are a troubled debt restructuring.

Loans with moditied terms are classified as troubled debt restructurings it the Bank grants borrower concessions
and 1t 15 deemed that those borrowers are expenencing mancial difficulty, Coneessions granted under a troubled
debt restructuring generally mvolve a temporary reduction inomterest rate or an extension of a loan’s stated
maturity date. As part of the Bank's commitment to provide assistance during the COVID-1% pandemie. the Bank
agreed to deler either the prineipal portion or both prineipal and interest payments [or ils customers who requested
the deferral and were not delinguent prior to the government shut down. For reporting purposes, loans modified
under this program were not classified as troubled debt restructuring,

Nonacerual roubled debt restructurings are restored to acerual status if principal and interest payments, under the
modified terms, are current for six consecutive months after modification. Loans classified as troubled debt
restructurings are designated as impaired.

The allowance calculation methodology includes further segregation of loan segpments into risk-rating
categories. The borrower’s overall financial condition, repayment sources, guarantors and value of collateral, 1f
appropriate, are evaluated anmually for commercial loans or when credit deficiencies arise, such as delinquent
loan payments, for commercial and consumer loans,

Credit quality risk ratings include regulatory classifications of special mention, substandard, doubtful and
loss. Loans classified special mention have potential weaknesses that deserve management’s close attention. I
uncorrected, the potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of the repayment prospects. Loans classified
substandard have a well-defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. They include
loans that are inadequately protected by the current sound net worth and paying capacity of the obligor or of the
collateral pledged, if anv. Loans classified doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in loans classified
substandard with the added characteristic that collection or liquidation i full, on the basis of current conditions
and facts, 15 highly improbable. Loans classified loss are considered uncollectible and are charged-off to the
allowance for loan losses. Loans not classitied are rated pass.

Based on management’s comprehensive analysis of the loan portfolio, management believes the allowance for
loan losses is adequate at the reported dates.

Bank-owned life insurance

The Bank is the beneficiary of insurance policies on the lives of certain officers of the Bank. This life insurance
investment is accounted for using the cash surrender value method and is recorded at its net realizable
value. Increase in cash surrender values are recorded as tax exempied non-interest income.
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Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Other real estate owned Restricted Stock

Assets acquired through, or in liew of, loan foreclosure are held for sale and are initially recorded at fair value less
cost o sell at the date of loreclosure, establishing a new cosl basis. Subsequent o foreclosure, valualions are
periodically performed by management and the assets are then recorded at the lower of carrying amount or fair
value less cost to sell. Revenue and expenses from operations and write-downs are included in non-interest
expense.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, Net

Goodwill represents the excess cost over the identifiable net assets of businesses acquired. The Bank’s intangible
asset was derived from core deposits acquired that has a defimtive life and 1s amortized over the estimated life.
Both goodwill and the core deposit intangible asset is reviewed for impairment annually or when events and
circumstances indicate that an impairment may have occurred.  As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic and a
broad decline in the market values of all banking company stock, the market price of the Bank’s common stock
and the resulting aggregate market capitalization of the Bank declined. During each of the quarterly periods ended
March 31, 2020, June 30, 2020, September, 30, 2020, and December 31, 2020, the Bank concluded that a
triggering event occurred due to the decline in the Bank's stock price and market capitalization as a result of the
COVID-19 pandemic. In cach quarterly period, management concluded based on the results of a qualitative
goodwill impairment analysis that the fair value of the reporting unit exceeded the carrving value and the goodwill
was not impaired. At May 31, 2020, the Bank performed its annual quantitative goodwill impairment analvsis
determining the fair value of the reporting unit based on the mcome approach and market approach. The income
approach vses a dividend discount analysis. This approach calculates cash flows based on anticipated financial
results assuming a change of control transaction. This change of control assumes that an acquirer will achieve an
expected base level of camings, achieve integration cost savings and ineur certain transaction costs (including
such items as legal and financial advisors fees, contract cancellations, severance and employment obligations,
and other transaction costs). The present value of all excess cash lows generated by the Bank (above the minimum
tangible capital ratio) plus the present value of a terminal sale value is caleulated to arrive at the fair value for the
income approach. The market approach is used to calculate the fair value of a company by calculating median
earnings and book value pricing multiples for recent actual acquisitions of companies of similar size and
performance and then applying these multiples to our reporting unit. No company or transaction in the analysis
15 wlentical o our reporting umit and, accordingly, the resulls of the analysis are only mdicative ol comparable
value. This technique uses historical data to ereate a current pricing level and 15 thus a tranhing indicator, Results
of the market approach need to be understood in this context, especially in periods of rapid price change and
markel uncertamty. The Bank applied the market valuation approach 1o our then current stock price adjusted by
an appropriate control premium and also 1o a peer group adjusted by an appropriate conitrol premium. In this
analysis, the Bank determined that none of its goodwill was impaired. Also, the core deposit intangible was
analyzed, and no impairment was recorded.

Premises and equipment

Bank premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed on the
straight-line method over the shorter of the lease term or estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Accrued interest receivable and other assets

Accrued interest receivable and other assets include accrued interest receivable, prepaid assets and other assets.
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Federal law requires a member institution of the Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB™) system to hold restnicted
stock ol its district Federal Home Loan Bank according to a predetermined formula. Resiricted stock in the amount
of $1.4 million and 1.2 million is carried at cost at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively,

Management’s determination of whether these investments are impaired is based on an assessment of the ultimate
recoverahility of their cost, rather than by recognizing temporary declines in value, The determination of whether
a decline affects the ultimate recoverability of cost is influenced by criteria such as (1) the significance of the
decline in net assets of the FHLB as compared to the capital stock amount for the FHLB and the length of time
this situation has persisted, (2) commitments by the FHLDB to make payments required by law or regulation and
the level of such payments in relation to the operating performance of the FITLD and (3) the impact of legislative
and regulatory changes on institutions and, accordingly. on the customer base of the IIILE.

The Bank also held $100,000 of stock in Atlantic Community Bancshares, Inc. (“ACBB™) at December 31, 2020
and 2019.

Management believes no impairment charge is necessary related to the FHLB restricted stock or the ACBB
restricted stock as of December 31, 2020 or 2019,

Income taxes

The Bank accounts for income taxes in accordance with income tax accounting guidance contained in FASB ASC
Topic 740, ncome Taves. This includes guidance related to accounting for uncertainty in income taxes, which
sets out a consistent framework to determine the appropriate level of tax reserves to maintain for uncertain tax
positions. The Bank had no material unrecognized tax benefits or accrued interest and penalties as of and for the
vears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019. The Bank’s policy is to account for interest and penalues as a
compaonent of other non-interest expense. The Bank is subject to income taxes in the U. S. and various state and
local jurisdictions. As of December 31, 2020, 1ax years after 2017 are subject 1o federal examination and tax years
after 2015 to state examination. Tax regulations are subject to interpretation of the related tax laws and regulations
and require significant judgment to apply.

Federal and state income taxes have been provided on the basis of reported income or loss. The amounts retlected
on the tax remrns differ from these provisions due principally to temporary difterences in the reporting of certain
items for finaneal reporting and mcome tax reporting purposes. The tax elfect of these temporary differences 1s
accounted for as deferred taxes applicable 1o future periods.

Delerred ineome lax expense or benelil 15 determined by recognizing deferred tax habahities and assets,
respeciively, for the estimated fuiure tax consequences aitributable to differences between the financial statement
carrying amounts of existing assets and habilibes and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and halilities
are measured using enacted tax rates expected w apply o taxable income i the vears in which those lemporary
dilTerences are expected 10 be recovered or settled. The elTect on deferred tax assets and habilities of a change in
tax rates is recogmized in earnings in the period that includes the enactment date. The reahization of deferred tax
assels is assessed and a valuation allowance provided for the full amount which is not more likely than not to be

realized.

Public law No. 115-97, originally known as the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act and now called H. R 1 (the "Tax Act™),
enacted on December 22, 2017, reduced the ULS. federal corporate tax rate from 35% 1o 21% effective January 1.
2018, Also, on December 22, 2017, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 118 (“SAD 1187), which provides guidance on accounting for tax effects of the Tax Act. SAD 118 provides
a measurement period of up to one vear from the enactment date to complete the accounting. Any adjustments
during this measurement period will be included in net earmings rom continuing operations as an adjustment o
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income tax expense in the reporting period when such adjustments are determined. Based on the information
available and current interpretation of the rules, the Bank estimated the impact of the reduction in the corporate
tax rate and remeasurement of certam deferred tax assets and habilites.

On July 1, 2018, New Jersey enacted legislation which adds to the state’s 9.0% Corporation Business Tax rate (i)
a 2.5% surtax for periods beginning in 2018 and 2019 and (11) a 1.53% surtax for periods beginning in 2020 and
2021. These surtaxes apply to corporations with more than 1 million of net income allocated 1o New Jersev and
expire beginming in 2022, Also, for periods beginning in 2017, New Jersey has reduced the dividends-received
deduction from 100% to 95% for certain dividend income received by a corporation from a subsidiary that is at
least 50% owned by the corporation. Effective in 2019, New Jersey has adopted combined income tax reporting
tor certain members of a commonly-controlled unitary business group.

In December 2019, the State of New Jersey issued a clarifying technical bulletin related to the impact of the new
tax legislation enacted in July 2018, This technical bulletin provided clarification to the combined income tax
reporting [or cerlain members of a unitary business group, Accordingly, this required a revaluation of some of
the Bank's deferred tax assets. The Bank recorded state deferred tax expense in the amount of approximately
$117,000 during the vear ended December 31, 2019,

Om Seplember 29, 2020, New Jersey Governor Phil Murphy signed into law A 4721, extending through December
31,2023, the 2.5% surtax currently imposed on Cormporation Business Tax (CBT) filers with allocated taxable net
income over 31 million. As orginally enacted, the surtax rate was scheduled to decrease from 2.5% to 1.5% for
privilege periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2021 and expire for privilege
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022, The change made by A.4721 takes effect immediately and applies
retroactively to privilege periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020,

Off-balance sheet financial instruments

In the ordinary course ol business, the Bank has entered mio off-balance sheet fnancial instruments consisting of
commitments to extend credit and letters of credit. Such financial mstruments are recorded in the statement of
financial condition when they are funded.

Emplovee benefit plan

The Bank sponsors a 401(k) plan into which all employees are eligible to contribute the maximum allowed by the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. The Bank may make discretionary matching contnbutions.  The
Bank made matching contributions to emplovees of $166,000, $163,000 and $130,000, respectively during the
years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018,

Stock compensation plans

The stock compensation accounting guidance set forth in FASB ASC Topic 718, Compensation - Stock
Compensation, requires that compensation costs relating to share-based pavment transactions be recognized in
financial statements. That cost will be measured based on the grant date fair value of the equity or liability
instruments issued. The stock compensation accounting guidance covers a wide range of share-based
compensation arrangements including stock options, restricted share plans, performance-based awards, share
appreciation rights, and emplovee share purchase plans.

The stock compensation accounting suidance requires that compensation costs for all stock awards be caleulated
and recognized over the employees’ service period. generally defined as the vesting period. Tor awards with
eraded vesting, compensation cost is recogmized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for the
entire award. A Black-Scholes model is used to estimate the fair value of stock options. An option is considered
to be forteited. if the grant stock option were not exercised prior to vesting. At the date of grant, the BDank estimates
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the forfeiture rate as part of 1ts initial deternunation of the fair-value of options granted and then adjusts forfeitures
as they occur.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share amounis are caleulated by dividing income available (o common stockholders by the
welghled average common shares outstanding during the penod, and exclude any dilutive efTects ol stock oplions
and warrants. Diluted earmings per share amounts include the dilutive effects of stock options and warrants whose
exercise price 1s less than the market price of the Bank's shares. Diluted earnings per share amounts are caleulated
by dividing meome available to common stockholders by the weighted average common shares outstanding
during the period il options and warranis were exercised and converted nto common stock, using the treasury
stock method.

Advertising costs

The Bank charges the costs of advertising 1o expense as mewrred.

Comprehensive income

Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenues, expenses, gains and losses be included in net
meome. Although certain changes in assels and habilities, such as unrealized gaims and losses on available-lor-
sale securities, are reported as a separate component of the equity section of the consolidated statements of
financial condition, such items, along with net income, are components of comprehensive income. Accumulated
other comprehensive income 1s comprised of net unrealized holding gains and losses, net of taxes, on availahle-
lor-sale securities. Realized gains or losses are reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income when
the underlying security is sold, based upon the specific identification method.

Adoption of New Accounting Standards

In Jamvary 2017, the FASE issued ASU Mo, 2017-04, “Infangibles — Goodwill and oiher (Topic 350/ —
Simpfifving the Test for Goodwill Impairment” These amendments eliminate Step 2 [rom the goodwill
impairment test. The amendments also eliminate the requirements for any reporting unit with a zero or negative
carrying amount to perform a qualitative assessment and, 1f 1t farls that qualitative test, to perform Step 2 of the
goodwill impairment test. An entity still has the option to perform the qualitative assessment [or a reporling unil
to determine 1l the quantitative impairment test is necessary. The guidance is effective for annual or any interim
goodwill impairment tests in fiscal years beginming after December 15, 2009, ASL 201 7-04 should be adopted
om a prospective basis. The Bank completed its acquisition of five branches during the 2% quarter of 2019, when
the Bank recorded 38.9 million in goodwill and $4.2 million in core deposit intangible in connection with the
transaction. The Bank adopted AST 2017-04 on January 1, 2020, AST 2017-04 did not have a matenial impact
on the Bank’s financial statements.

In August 2018, the FASD issued ASU No. 2018-13, Disclosure Pramework - Changes to the Disclosure
Requirements for Fair Value Measurement. This ASU eliminates, adds and modifies certain disclosure
requirements for fair value measurements. Among the changes, entities will no longer be required to disclose the
amount of and reasons for transfers between Level | and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, but will be required
to disclose the range and weighted average used to develop significant unobservable inputs for Level 3 fair value
measurements. ASU No. 2018-13 is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December
15, 2019; early adoption is permitted. The Bank adopted ASU 2018-13 on January 1, 2020, As ASU No. 2018-
13 only revises disclosure requirements, it did not have a material impact on the Bank’s financial statements.
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Accounting Standard Pending Adoption

In June 201 6, the FASB 1ssued ASLU 20016-13, “Financial Instruments - Credit Losses,” which amends the Board's
guidance on the impairment of financial instruments. The amended guidance requires financial assets measured
at amortized cost to be presented at the net amount expected to be collected. The allowance for credit losses will
represent a valuation account that 15 deducted from the amortized cost basis of the financial assets o present ther
net carrying value at the amount expected to be collected. The imcome statement will reflect the measurement of
credit losses for newly recognized financial assets as well as expected increases or decreases of expected credit
losses that have taken place during the period. When determining the allowance, expected credit losses over the
contractual term of the financial asset(s) (taking mto aceount prepayments ) will be estimated considering relevant
mformation about past events, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect the
collectability of the reported amount. The amended guidance also requires recording an allowance for credit
losses for purchased financial assets with a more-than-insignificant amount of credit deterioration since
origination. The initial allowance for these asseis will be added to the purchase price at acquisition rather than
being reported as an expense. Subsequent changes in the allowance will be recorded through the income
statement as an expense adjustment. In addition, the amended guidance requires credit losses relating to available-
for-sale debt securities 1o be recorded through an allowance for credit losses. The calculation of eredit losses for
available-for-sale secunties will be similar to how it 1s determined under existing puidance. In October 2019, the
FASB affirmed its decision to extend the deadline to implement this ASTU, For public entities that are SEC filers,
excluding Smaller Reporting Companies, the ASU is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those

fiscal vears, beginning December 15, 20019, However, for Smaller Reporting Companies, such as the Bank, this
ASU is effective for fiscal vears, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15,
2022, Early adoption will be permitted for all entities for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal
vears, beginning after December 15, 2018, The Bank has formed a CECL committee, which has assessed our
data and system needs, and has engaged a third-party vendor to assist in analyzing our data and developing a
CECL model. The Bank, in conjunction with this vendor, has researched and analyzed modeling standards, loan
segments, as well as external inputs to supplement our historical loss history. We expect to recognize a one-time
cumulative effect adjusiment to the allowance for loan losses as of the beginning of the first reporting period in
which the ASU is effective, but cannot vet determine the magnitude of any such one-time or the overall impact
of the ASUs on our consolidated financial statements.

In March 2020, the FASB issued ASU No, 2020-04, “Reference Rate Reform™ (Topic 848), which provides
optional expedients and exceptions for applving GAAP to loan and lease agreements, derivative contracts, and
other transactions affected by the anticipated transition away from LIBOR toward new interest rate benchmarks.
For transactions that are modilied because of relerence rate reform and that meel certam scope guidance (1)
modifications of loan agreements should be accounted for by prospectively adjusting the effective interest rate
and the modification will be considered "minor” so that any existing unamortized origination fees/costs would
carry forward and continue to be amortized and (11) modifications of lease agreements should be accounted for as
a continuation of the existing agreement with no reassessments of the lease classification and the discount rate or
re-measurements of lease payments that otherwise would be required for modifications not accounted for as
separate contracts. ASU 2020-04 also provides mumerous optional expedients for derivative accounting. ASU
202004 is effective March 12, 2020 through December 31, 2022, An entity may elect to apply ASU 2020-04 for
contract modilications as of January 1, 2020, or prospectively from a date within an interim period that includes
or is subsequent to March 12, 2020, up to the date that the financial statements are available to be issued. Once
elected for a Topic or an Industry Subtopic within the Codification, the amendments in this ASU must be applied
prospectively for all eligible contract modilications [or that Topic or Industiry Sublopic. We anticipate this ASU
will simplify any modifications we execute between the selected start date (vet to be determined) and December
31, 2022 that are directly related to LIBOR transition by allowing prospective recognition of the continuation of
the contract, rather than extinguishment of the old contraet resulting in writing oft unamortized fees/costs, We are
evaluating the impacts of this ASU and have not yel determined whether LIBOR transition and this ASLU wall
have material effects on our business operations and consolidated financial statements.
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The following schedule presents earnings per share data:

Years ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
Net meome applicable 1o commeon stock 3 13,806 ] 10,142 S 14,708
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding 6,774 6,731 6,628
Basic earnings per share § 2.4 b 1.51 5 222
Net income applicable to common stock 3 13,806 3 10,142 5 14,708
Werghted average munber of common shares outstandmg 6,774 6,731 6,628
Dilutive effect on common shares outstanding 94 163 244
Werghted average number of difuted ¢ommon shares outstandmg 6,868 6,896 6,872
Diluted earnings per share g 2.01 b 147 5 214

Options and warrants to purchase 347,093 shares of common stock at a weighted average exercise price of 516.03
were included in the computation of diluted carmings per share for the year ended December 31, 2020, Oprions to
purchase 107,278 shares of common stock at a weighted average exercise price ol 53235 were nol included mn the
computation of diluted earnings per share because the exercise price equaled or exceeded the fair value of our common
stock at December 31, 2020.

Options and warrants to purchase 360,730 shares of common stock at a weighted average exercise price of 51593
were included in the computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2019, Options to
purchase 101,875 shares of common stock at a weighted average exercise price of $32.43 were not included m the
computation of diluted earmings per share because the exercise price equaled or exceeded the fair value of our common
stock at December 31, 2019,

Options and warranis 1o purchase 314 827 shares of common stock at a weighted average exercise price of 51690
were included in the computation ol diluted eamings per share lor the year ended December 31, 2018, Options o
purchase 70,875 shares of common stock at a weighted average exercise price of $32.69 were not included in the
computation of diluted earnings per share because the exercise price equaled or exceeded the fair value of our common
stock at December 31, 2018,
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The following summarizes the amortized cost and estimated fair value of securities available-for-sale at December 31,
2020 mnd December 31, 2019 with gross unrealized gaims and losses thereimn:

December 31, 2020

Gross Gross
Amortized Unre alize d Unre alize d
Cost Cains Losses Fair Value
Availahle-for-sale
Mortgage-backed securibes - LS.
Government Sponsored Enterprises (GSEs) by 24487 5 626 £ (1 b 25112
Obligzatons of state and poliical subdivisions 48,728 1,788 - 50516
Total 5 73215 5 2414 % (1) % T5628
December 31, 2019
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealize d Unrealize d
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Available -for-s ale
Mortgage-backed securites - LS,
Covernment Sponsored Enterprises (GSEs) 5 55677 5 414 % [ 1410y $ 55051
Ohligations of state and polttical subdivisions 55,777 794 (210 56361
Total s 111.454 S 1,208 5 (350) $ 112312
The unrealized losses, categorized by the length of time in a continuous loss position, and the fair value of related
securties  avallable-lfor-sale  as  of  December 31, 2020 and  December 31, 2009 are as  lollows:
Less than 12 Months More than 12 Maonths Total
Fair Unire alize d Fair Unealized Fair Ui anlize o
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
December 31, 2020
Mortgage-tacked securities - U5
Govenmuenl Spowsored Enterpuses (GSEs) 5 2126 ] (1) 5 - 5 - 5 2126 3 (1)
Toutal £ 1126 3 (1) 5 - 5 - i 2126 i (N
Lass than 12 Months More than 12 Maonths Total
Fair 1 nre alize d Failr TUnreallzed Fair 1nre allzed
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
December 31, 2019
Mortgage-tacked securines - 1.5,
Covermment Sponsored Enterprises (GSEs) i 21474 b3 [105) 5 3148 5 (35) 3 24 627 3 { 140)
Obligations of state and political sulsdivisions 12650 (2100 - - 12630 (2100
Tatal £ 34,129 $ [315) 5 3148 5 (35) b 372797 3 [ 3500
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At December 31, 2020, there were two morigage-backed securities in the less-than-twelve-months category and zero
securities in the more-than twelve-month category for the securities available-for-sale portfolio.

I'he Bank does not intend 1o sell these securities and it 1s not more likely than not that we will be required to sell these
securities.  Unrealized losses primarily relate to interest rate fluctuations and not credit-related criteria. No OTTI
charges were recorded for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019,

At December 31, 2019, there were 53 securities in the less-than-twelve-months category and 13 securities in the more-
than twelve-month category for the securities available-for-sale portfolio. Included in the 55 securities in the less than
twelve-months category are 23 morigage-backed securities and 32 mumnicipal debt obligations. Included in the 13
securities in the more-than twelve-monih category are 13 morigage-backed securities.

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of securities available-for-sale at December 31. 2020 bv contracmal
maturity are shown below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities as borrowers may have the
right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties:

Amortized
Cost Fair Value
Due m one year or kss 5 290 $ 290
Due after one vear through five years 5,770 5.841
Due after live years through ten vears 12462 13,090
Due after ten years 30206 31295
Mortgage-backed securities (GSEs) 24487 25112

5 73215 5 75628

The following summarizes the amortized cost and estimated fair value of securities held-to-maturity at December 31,
2020 and December 31, 2019 with gross unrealized gains and losses therein:

December 31, 2020

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealize d
Cost Canins Losses Fair Value
eld-to-maturity:
Mortgage-backed securities (GSES) b 215 b3 22 b3 - h3 237
December 31, 20019
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unre alized
Cost Caains Losses Fair Value
Held-to-maturity:
Mortgage-backed securiies (GSEs) 5 222 % 14 % - % 236

All securities held-to-mamrity are due after ten vears.

Proceeds from the sale of available-for-sale sccunties amounted to 539.3 million for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2020, which included approximately $322 000 in gross reahized gains. Proceeds [rom the calls and
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Note 3 — Investment Securities (Continued) Note 4 — Loans Receivable (Continued)
maturities of securities available-for-sale amounted to $11.0 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2020, The following table summarizes information in regard o impaired loans by loan portfolio segment, segregated by
which included approximately $49,000 in gross realized gains. There were no sales of securities available-for-sale for those for which a related allowance was required and those for which a related allowance was not necessary, as of
the twelve months ended December 31, 2019. Proceeds from the calls and maturities of securities available-for-sale December 31, 2020 and the vear then ended:
amounted to $16.4 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2019, which included approximately $31,000
in gross realized gains. Unpald Average Interest
Principal Recorded Related Recorded Income
There were no securities pledged as collateral for NJ Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (“GUDPA”) deposits Eslanca Inves el Allowacs L L L Kecegnined
at December 31, 2020 or 2019. _ (Dolars i thousands)
With mo related allwrance recorded-
Coumercinl real estate 5 7520 1 TA33 § - 3 1AM 5 m2
Counnercil el axhustral 1156 1037 - G625 17
Note 4 — Loans Receivable Comstcinn - - -
Resubentil frsi-ben mongage 151 144 - 34 17
Loans receivable, net was comprised of the following: Houme equiny Consummer 140 141 - 04 15
Total witl mo related allowance & 8967 $ 8.755 § - 3 SATT 5 361

December 31, December 31, With an alownre recorded:

Conumercal real estate § 2707 § 2005 § 203 3 1146 5 57
. 2020 2019 Connercial and mxhustral 1M 132 '] 50 7
Commercial real estate $ 812,043 $ 853876 Comstuction 370 370 319 116
Commercial and industrial 40,597 43,504 Residentinl first-len morigage ) ~ ~ ~
Construction 263,032 189,789 Home equity/Consuner - - - - .
Residential first-lien mortgage 066,857 89,067 Total with an allwance § 3271 § 2510 5 128 3 1421 5 &1
Home equity/Consumer 9,929 13,753
Payroll Protection Program ("PPP") 175,878 - Totak
Total loans 1,368,336 1,189,989 Conmmercial real estats 1 10227 § 9441 $ 203 3 5590 5 339
Deferred fees and costs (4,850) (3,419) Cormmercial and mdustrial L350 L1689 b 654 »
Allowance for loan losses (16,027) (12,557) :;N:::::i':lf“ —— :zl: ::LII 29 it{; -I*
esade st-len morgage : - ; 7
Loans, net $ 1347459 $_L174013 Houee equiny Conswmner 140 141 - G4 15
l'otal ¥ 12,234 b 11,265 ] 128 3 6808 5 125

The following table presents nonaccrual loans by segment of the loan portfolio:

December 31, December 31,

2020 2019
Commercial real estate $ 1,030 $ 2,071
Commercial and industrial $ 132 -
Construction 370 371
Residential first-lien mortgage 144 -
Total nonaccrual loans $ 1,676 $ 2,442
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The following table summarizes information in regard to impaired loans by loan portfolio segment, segregated by The following table summarizes information in regard to impaired loans by loan portfolio segment segregated by those
those for which a related allowance was required and those for which a related allowance was not necessary, as of tor which a related allowance was required and those for which a related allowance was not necessary, as of December
December 31, 2019 and the year then ended: 31, 2018 and the year then ended:
Unpaid Average Interest
Unpaid Average Interest Principal Recorded Related Recorded Income
Principal Recorded Related Recorded fncome Balance Investment Allowance Investment Recognized
Balance Inve s ime nt Allowance Investment Recognized -
(Dolirs 1 thousands) (Dollars m thousands)
With oo relted allwancs recorded: With no reknted allowance recorded:
Conmnercial real estate § 11240 8 B.605 $ - $ 0.8068 5 s Commercial real estate 5 0.763 5 0811 5 - 5 6821 5 429
Conmereal and mdustrial 2126 - - T66 3 Commercial and mdustrial 615 599 - 417 48
Cous truetion - - - - - Cemstruction - - - 1,176 -
Resiceutial fusl-lien mortgage 607 609 : o = Residentinl first-lien mortgage 630 633 - 638 17
Flome equiy Consumer 203 Lo - ard 2l Home equity Consumer 246 247 - 276 16
Total with no rebired allknvance $ 14,141 $ 9,383 b3 - b3 11 468 b3 417 -
Total with no related allvwance 5 8.254 $ 8,290 5 - 5 9328 5 310
Witls an allowance recowded:
Conmnercml real estate § 2299 5 2173 b3 0 b3 2605 b3 50 With an alkwance recorded:
Conmnereal and mdustiial . - - - . Commercil real estate 5 3.496 5 3350 3 319 s 3220 5 72
Costiuction i L 209 381 - Comumercial and ndustrial 2325 2,325 640 2,159 64
Resideatial first-ien mongage ) ) ) . . Construction 7 487 211 163 15
Home equty'Consimier - - - - - i R .
Total with an allowance § 267§ 254§ 420§ 2086 8 50 Resudental frst-en mongage - - - - -
Home equuiy'Consumer - - - - -
Total Total with an allowance 5 6,308 £ i, 165 b 1.170 5 3,542 b 151
Conmnercial real estate § 13539 5 10,778 5 0 5 12473 5 3T
Conmnercial and mdusirial 2.126 - - TG hZ] Total:
Cotruetion . il w 38 . Commereial real estate §  102%  § 10167 § 39 s 10041 $ 501
Reswdential [wst-ben mortgage 607 65 a2 n , . .
Home equity Consumer 168 160 ) 213 16 Commercil and ndustrial 2540 2924 &40 2576 12
Total 5 16811 § 11927 § 420§ 14458 § 467 Construction 4387 487 21 1339 15
Residentiml first-hen mortgage 630 633 - 038 T
Home equity/Consumer 2 247 - 276 16
Total $ 14,562 $ 14458 5 1.170 5 14870 5 661

76 77



The Bank of Princeton

Note 4 — Loans Receivable (Continued)

The performance and credit quality of the loan portfolio is also monitored by analyzing the age of the loan receivable
by the length of time a recorded payment is past due. The following table presents the segments of the loan portfolio
summarized by the past due status as of December 31, 2020:

The Bank of Princeton

Note 4 — Loans Receivable (Continued)

The following table presents the segments of the loan porifolio summarized by the aggregate pass rating and the
classified ratings of special mention, substandard and doubtful within the Bank’s mternal risk rating system as of

December 31, 2020:

Loans
30-59 60-89 Receivable
Days Days Greater Total Total >90 Days
Past Past than Past Loans and
Due Due 90 days Due Current Receivable Accruing
(Dollars in thousands)
With no related allowance recorded:
Commercial real estate $ 952 $ - $ 1,030 $ 1,982 $ 810,061 $ 812,043 $ -
Commercial and industrial 39 - 132 171 40,426 40,597 -
Construction - - 370 370 262,662 263,032 -
Residential first-lien mortgage 1274 - - 1274 65,583 66,857 -
Home equity/Consumer - - 144 144 9,785 9,929 -
PPP 5 - - 5 175,873 175,878 -
Total with no related allowance $ 2270 $ - $ 1,676 $ 3946 $ 1,364,390 $ 1,368,336 $ -

The following table presents the segments of the loan portfolio summarized by the past due status as of December 31,

2019:
Loans
30-59 60-89 Receivable
Days Days Greater Total Total >90 Days
Past Past than Past Loans and
Due Due 90 days Due Current Receivable Accruing
(Dollars in thousands)
With no related allowance recorded:
Commercial real estate $ 566 - $ 2,064 $ 2630 $ 851,246 $ 853876 $ -
Commercial and industrial - - - - 43,504 43,504 -
Construction - - 371 371 189,418 189,789 -
Residential first-lien mortgage 1,184 - - 1,184 87,883 89,067 -
Home equity/Consumer 42 - - 42 13,711 13,753 -
PPP - - - - - - -
Total with no related allowance $ 1,792 - $§ 2435 $ 4227 $ 1,185,762 $ 1,189,989 $ -
78

Special
Pass Mention Substandard Doubtful Total
(Dollars m deousands)

With no related allowance recorded
Commnercml real estate 5 T9E130 5 10481 5 1958 5 474 5 Bl2mMa
Commercil and mdusiml 38840 613 L1412 405497
Construction 262,662 - 370 263032
Resudentil fost-hen um!g__ltlgu:l 66,857 - 66,857
Home equity Cemsumer’ 2929 - - 95923
PPP 175,878 - - - 175878

Total with no related allwance £ 134729 5 11 0F5 b G470 5 474 £ 1368336

| The Bank does net asym a ek ratmg to resdentml real estate and consumner based koans,

The tollowing table presents the segments of the loan porifolio summarized by the aggregate pass rating and the
classified ratings of special mention, substandard and doubtful within the Bank’s internal risk rating sysiem as of
December 31, 2019:

Special
Pass Mention Subs tandard Doubtful Total
(Dollars m thousands)
With no related allowance recorded:
Comanerceal real estate 5 B30 5 108 3 10059 3 - 5 B33876
Commnerenl and mdustmal 43,004 S00 - - 43504
Construction 189418 - 37 - 189,789
Reswdential frst-hen [Im'l:E‘I_EL‘l 20067 - - - 20067
Heome exqquaty: Consumer’ 13,753 - - - 13,753
PPP - - - -
Total with no related allowance 5 1173951 5 5,608 5 10430 5 S 1189980

| The Bauk does not asien a tek malmg o residemml real estate and comswner based kans,
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Note 4 — Loans Receivable (Continued)

Allowance for loan losses on loans receivables ar and for the vear ended December 31, 2020:

The Bank of Princeton

Note 4 — Loans Receivable (Continued)

Allowance for loan losses on loans receivables at and for the year ended December 31, 2019:

Comme reial R side niial
Comme rekal and Mrsi-len Hume ¢ guliy
Rual estate Imidus trial Covms truction mortgage Coms mmer FFFP Unalbocated Total
{Dollar zy tlxousanmd

Allowance for loan losses:

Bepmuing balince 3 8.168 % 1182 % 2048 5 335 5 TE 5 = £ 76 12557
Prowvisen 2148 21 2007 (31} {17} = 197 525
Charge-afs [T16) [ IE=) (| EEA) = = = = i 0,70y
Recoveres 35 - - - - - - 35
Total £ G635 % 1.015 % 41.069 5 24 5 (3] 5 £ 923 16027

Ending Babaxce:

Indivicnaly evabmared for
mparment L | % 3 % 219 5 - 5 - 5 = L 428

Collectively evalaned for
mps sl 5 9432 5 1.0 5 3E50 5 3M 5 6l 5 5 %23 15559

Recorded investment in loans reccivables at December 31, 2020:

Commereinl Heslide niial
Commnecial wel firs 1-lien Home eguily!
Heal #stale imtlnstrial Constructinn marlgage [ oms nmer Fre Imallarated Taial
[Dallars m thousands)

Loans:

Ending Balance:

Indimadually evahated for
Epairem L3 .41 L L1635 £ 370 % 144 -1 141 5 £ -1 11.264

Collectively evahared [or
BRI BO2,602 19429 226652 66,713 9788 175878 1357072

Ending balhnce §  BlI20M3 5 40,597 £ M2 % 6 BT % plrs 5175878 i % 1368336
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Comame reial Residential
Comme e |l amil Msi-lew Hume ¢ quity/
Real estate imdmstrial Construction mtgage Consmmer FFP Unallocated Taotal
{Dolbrs m thonsands)

Allowande for loan losses:

Begnnmy bohnce 5 7208 H L.3%5 5 1359 5 568 5 10 5 89 ] 11544
Provision 335 1593 185 {213) (28) - (81} A4.300
Charge-offs (2.597) {1.89%) - . - . {4.492)
Recoveries ] 33 - - - - - 308
Tozal § 8168 3 1182 § 2048 5 355 i T8 P - 8 T § 12557

Endmg Bahince:

Tndrvidally evahmied for
i ETwenl ] a1} 5 - 5 205 5 - 5 - - 5 - ] A28

Collec trvely evaleated for
EpaEment 4 TA4E 1 [k % (R 1 355 % THE % = 5 T % 12128

Recorded mvestment in loans receivables al December 31, 2019:

Commame e lal Fesideniinl
Comme i ial amd first-lien Home e quity’
Heal estale imdmsirial Coanstrmclion maigage Consmmer PPP 1 nalborated Tatal
(Dolhrs i thonsands)

Livams:

Endasg Habince:

Indnadually evahmied for
mpaEmsent ] 10.TT8 5 - 5 in 5 L L] 6% - 5 - ] 11927

Collectnzly evaluated for
mpaEmenl RA59E 43504 150418 BRASE 13584 - LITB062

Endmg babnce 5 B53ETG 3 43504 5 1E0.TRO 5 BRL0GT § 13.753 P - 5 § LIESGES

At December 31, 2020, six loans totaling 38.7 million were considered troubled debt restructurings and classified as
impaired. Troubled debt restructurings of $6.5 million consisting of two commercial and industrial loans totaling
$152,000, one commercial real estate loan totaling $6.2 million, and a $140,000 HELOC loan were performing in
accordance with their modilied terms at December 31, 2020. Two loans to the same borrower totaling 52.3 milhon
had deferred their payments resulting from the COVID-19 loan deferral program.

At December 31, 2019, seven loans totaling $9.3 million were considered troubled debt restructurings and classified
as impaired.  Troubled debt restructurings of 7.0 million consisting of two commercial and indusirial loans wilaling
$129.000, one commercial real estate loan totaling $6.3 million, one residential first-lien mortgage for $451.000 and
a $168.000 HELOC loan were performing in accordance with their modified terms at December 31, 2019. Troubled
debt restructurings of $2.3 million consisting of one commercial and indusirial loan totaling 51 million and one
commercial real estate loan totaling 51.3 million were technically in default becanse both loans were 14 days past
due. There were no troubled debt restructurings on non-accrual stats as of December 31, 2019,
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Note 4 — Loans Receivable (Continued)

The following table summarizes information with regards to new troubled debt restructurings for the year ended
December 31, 2020 (Dollars in thousands):

Pre- Post-
Modilication Modification
Outstanding Outstanding

Number of Record HRecord
Contracts Investment Investment
Troubled debt restructurmes:
Commercial and mdustrial 2 5 269 5 268

As indicated above. the Bank modified two commercial and industrial loans totaling 5269000 to the same borrower
during 2020, At December 31, 2020, the outstanding balance was $131,000, resulting from an %138 000 charge-off
recorded during the period. The Bank agreed to a concession by modifving the borrower’s monthly payment to be
interest only. In December 2020, the Bank charged-off approximately 5158000 of the outstanding balance. As of

December 31, 2020, there were no specilic allowanee on these modilied loans.

The following table summarizes information with regards to new troubled debt restructurings for the year ended
December 31, 2019 (Dollars in thousands):

Pre- Posi-
Modification Maodification
Outstanding Outstanding

Number of Record KEecord
Contracts Investment Invesiment
Troubled debt restrucurmgs:
Commercial real estate 2 5 7504 5 7594
Commercial and industrial 2 5 .16l & 1161

As indicated above, the Bank modified four loans totaling 338 million, of which two loans were with the same
borrower one commercial real estate in the amount of $1.3 million and the other commercial and industnal in the
amount of 51.0 million. The remaining commercial real estate loan was in the amount of 56.4 million and the
commercial and indusirial loan was in the amount of $144.,000. The Bank granted a rate concession on this commercial
and industrial loan i the amount of 3 144,000 only. The remaining three loans the Bank granted a rate concession and
extended the loan amortization. Troubled debt restructurings are impaired loans and therefore, in accordance with the
Bank's policy, are individually evaluated for impairment. As of December 31, 2019, there were no specific allowanee
on these modilied loans.

Two loans classified as troubled debt restructurings had payment defaults during 2019,

82

The Bank of Princeton

Note 4 — Loans Receivable (Continued)

Loans to Related Party. Included m otal loans are loans due from directors and other related parties of $6.1 milhon
and $5.6 million at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. All loans made to directors have substantially the
same terms and interest rates as other bank borrowers at their origination date. The Board of Directors confirms that
collateral requirements, terms and raies are comparable 1o other borrowers and are in compliance with underwriting
policies prior to approving loans to individual directors. The following presents the activity in amount due from
directors and other related parties for the vears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019,

2020 2019
(Daollars in thousands)
Onmtstanding related party loans at January 1. 5 5,562 5 9.476
New loans 729 -
Repayments (212) (3,914)
Outstanding related party loans at December 31, 5 6.079 5 3,562

No loans to related parties were nonaccrual, past due, restructured or potential problems at December 31, 2020 and
20149,

Note 5 — Premises and Equipment

The components of premises and equipment at December 31 were as follows (Dollars in thousands):

Estimated
useful lives 2020 01y
Lamd N/A S 1468 £ 1468
Buiklings 40 Yrs. 3646 3579
Leasehold mnprovments 10 Yrs. 11,204 2603
Furmiture, fixtures and egupment 3T Y1 [Tt 5278
Construction in progress 195 1,173
Total before accumulated depreciation
and amortization 23,197 20,101
Accumulated depreciaton and amortization (10483) (9320
Total s 12714 s 10777
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Note 6 — Deposits

The components of deposits at December 31 were as follows (Dollars in thousands):

December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
Demand, non-interest-bearing checking $ 215381 15.75% $ 141,338 11.42%
Demand, interest-bearing checking 288,769 21.12% 212,552 17.17%
Savings 178,932 13.09% 154,756 12.50%
Money Market 305,290 22.33% 294,940 23.83%
Time deposits, $250,000 and over 72,424 5.30% 132,622 10.71%
Time deposits, other 306,470 22.41% 301,682 24.37%
$ 1,367,266 100.00% $ 1,237,890 100.00%

Money market accounts totaling $20.1 million and $47.7 million at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively were
originated through a reciprocal deposit relationship.

2021 $ 191,087
2022 61,382
2023 37,683
2024 56,764
2025 and over 31,978
Total $ 378,894

At December 31, 2020, the scheduled maturities of certificates of deposit were as follows (Dollars in thousands):

The Bank’s time deposits of $100,000 or more represent 11.84% of total deposits at December 31, 2020 and are
included in the table above. Approximately $96.1 million and $35.6 million at December 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively were originated through brokers.

Related party deposits were approximately $4.3 million and $4.4 million at December 31,2020 and 2019 respectively.

Deposit overdrafts reclassified as loan balances were $552,000 and $590,000 at December 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.

Note 7 — Borrowings

The Bank’s borrowings consist of FHLB-NY overnight and short-term advances. The Bank utilizes federal funds
purchased to meet short-term liquidity needs. The FHLB-NY has non-specific blanket collateral on the Bank’s loan
portfolio as of December 31, 2020 and 2019.

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Bank had no outstanding borrowings.

At December 31, 2020, the Bank had a maximum borrowing capacity with the FHLB-NY, subject to certain collateral
restrictions, of $252.6 million, with $195.5 million available. The Bank is also a shareholder in Atlantic Community
Bancshares, Inc., the holding company of ACBB. As of December 31, 2020, the Bank had available borrowing
capacity with ACBB of $10.0 million to provide short-term liquidity generally for a period of not more than fourteen
days. No amounts are outstanding with the ACBB at December 31, 2020.
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Note 8 — Commitments and Contingencies
Operating leases
The Bank has operating leases for nineteen of its branch locations, as well as its operations center. Tuture mininnum

lease payments by vear under the non-cancellable lease agreements for the Bank's facilities were as follows (Dollars
m thousands);

2021 5 2483
2022 2,106
2023 2024
2024 1,758
2025 1.731
Thereafter 13,593

l'otal 5 23605

Rental expense for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 was S2.8 million, $2.1 million and $1.7 million,
respectively.

The Bank has an operating lease agreement with a member of the Bank’s board of directors for a building containing
the Bank's corporate headqguarters and branch, which 1s meluded in the above lease schedule, Al the lense imtiation
date, the lease terms were comparable o similarly outfitted office space in the Bank's market. Base rental payments
of $306,000, £305.000 and 5330000 were made to this related party in each of the vears ended December 31, 2020,
2019 and 2018, respectively. Certain operating expenses, including real estate taxes, insurance, utilities, maintenance
and repairs, related to this property are paid directly 1o the vanous service providers.

Commitments to extend credic

The Bank is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the
financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby
letters of credit. These instruments involve, 1o varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of
the amount recognized on the balance sheet. The coniract, or notional, amounis of these instrumenis reflect the exient
of involvement the Bank has in particular classes of financial instruments.

The Bank’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the counterparty to the financial instrument for
commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit written is represented by the contractual notional amount
of those instruments. The Bank uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as
they do for on-balance-sheet mstruments.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of anv condition
established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may
require payvment of a fee by the counterparty. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being
drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements.

The Bank evaluates cach customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtaied, if
deemed necessary by the Bank upon extension of credit, 15 based on mmnagement’s credit evaluation ol the
counterparty. Collateral held varies, but primarily includes residential and income-producing real estate.

Standby letiers of credit are written conditional commitments issued by the Bank o guaraniee the performance of a
customer to a third party. The majority of these standby letters of credit expire within the next twelve months, The
credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that imvolved in extending other loan
commitments. The Bank requires collateral supporting these letters of credit as deemed necessary. Management
believes that the proceeds obiained through a liquidation of such collateral should be sufficient to cover the maximum
potential amount under the corresponding guarantees.
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Note 8 — Commitments and Contingencies (Continued) Note 9 — Income Taxes
The Bank had the following off-balance sheet financial instruments whose contract amounts represent credit risk at Income tax expense for the years ended December 31 is as Tollows:
December 31 (Dollars in thousands):
2020 2019 2018
i i _ 2020 2019 {Dollars m thousands)
Eer;]pr;nlz;:s; ]III‘Id 5tgndh}f letters of credit 5 1]?.:;‘6?? b uii’;gi Current tax expense:

TS0 OANS-1N-Process WO s - s
Commitments to fund loans 39,868 42,129 Ifd'"ml § 3l58 31638 33917
Unfunded commitments under lines of credit 4.079 4.494 State 1.252 286 325

Total 5 162,989 g 148.740 Total Current 4410 2224 6,242
Deterred mcome tax benefit:
Litigation Federal (532) (114) (3,167)
The Bank, in t | Fbusi be subj il liability under laws and lati State S = L
e Hank, in the normal course of business, may be subject to potential habihity under laws and government regulation .
and various claims and legal actions that are pending or may be asserted apainst it. Liabilities are established for legal Total Deferred (926) (62) (3.242)

claims when pavments associated with the claims become probable and the costs can be reasonably estimated. The Total meome tax expenses S 3484 5 2162 $__3.000
actual costs of resolving legal claims may be substantally higher or lower than the amounis established for those
claims. Based on information currently available, advice of counsel, available insurance coverage and established

liabilities, the Bank has determined that there are no eventual outcomes that will have a material adverse effect on the The tax elfects of temporary dilferences that give rise o significant portions of the deferred tax assets and delemred
Bank's financial position or results of operations. tax liabilities as of December 31 are as follows:
2020 2019
{ Dollar m thousands)
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for loan losses 5 4119 5 3233
MNet operating loss cany-forward 468 515
Organization costs 25 55
Branch acquisition 28 109
Other A1 442
Depreciation - 159
Core deposit mtangihle 197 -
Deferred PPP loans 555 -
Lease liability 48749 3.871
Total deferred tax assets 10,715 8384

Deferred tax habihtes:

Depreciation (342) -
Deferred loan costs (279 (35D)
ROU (4.731) (3.871)
Acquisition accounting adjustments (! (7
Goodwill Amortization (2409 -
Section 481a Ad. (35) -
Unrealized gam on securitics (621) (228)
Total deferred tax liabilities (6.255) (4.45T)
Net deferred tax asset 5 4460 5 3927
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Note 9 — Income Taxes (Continued)

Total income taxes differed from the amount computed by applying the statutory federal income tax rate 1o pre-tax
income as follows:

2020 NS 2018
Amoumt Rate Amount Rate Amoumt Rate
(Dollars mn thousands)
Federal meome tax expense at statutory rate 5 3153l 2108 5 25M4 21006 £ 3719 21,00
Increases (reduction) m taxes resulting from:
State income taxes, net of federal benefi 678 3.0% S04 41% 198 1.1%
Tax-exempt meome, net (B35) -4.00% (B87) =7.2%% (853) -4 8%
Incentrve stock options 22 0. 1% (101} -0 8% (98) -0, 6%
Mon-deductble expenses 10 0.1% 13 0 1% 11 0.1%
nher (2 0.(Fa 45 0 4% 23 0. 1%
Tonal meome taxes apphicable to pre-tax meome 5 3484 20 X% 5 2lal 17 6% 5 3 16, 9%

The Bank had available federal net operating loss carry-forwards of approximately $2.2 million and $2.5 million at
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, which expire between 2028 and 2030, The federal net operating loss
carry-forwards are amounts that were generated by MoreBank, which the Bank acquired on September 30, 2010
These net operating losses are subject to an annual Internal Revenue Code Section 382 limitation of approximately
$222.000.

Based on projections of future taxable income over periods in which the deferred ax assets are deductible,
management believes it is more likely than not that the Bank will realize the benefits of these deductible differences.

On September 29, 2020, New Jersey Governor Phil Murphy signed into law A.4721, extending through December 31,
2023, the 2.5% surtax currently imposed on Corporation Business Tax (CBT) filers with allocated taxable net income
over 51 million. As originally enacted. the surtax rate was scheduled to decrease from 2.5% to 1.5% for privilege
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2021 and expire for privilege peniods beginning
on or after January 1, 2022, The change made by A 4721 takes effect immediately and applies retroactively to privilege
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020, The Bank recorded an additional $63,000 i income tax expense related
o the adjusted surtax durimg 2020 Elective m 2019, New Jersey has adopted combined mceome tax reporting [or
certain members of a commonly-controlled unitary business group.

On July 1, 2018, New Jersey Governor Phil Murphy signed into law changes (o the corporaie business tax lows. This
legislation required a combined group o file combined retums for tax years beginning in 2019 and
thereafter. [owever, due to technical 1ssues and inconsistencies with existing tax law, it was determined that the tax
law change did not have an impact on deferred taxes. In December 2019, the State of New Jersey issued a claritying
technical bulletin related to the impact of the new tax legislation enacted in July 2018, This technical bulletin provided
clarification 1o the combined income tax reporting for certain members of a unitary business group. Accordingly, this
required a revaluation of some of the Bank’s deferred tax assets. The Bank recorded state deferred tax expense in the
amount of approximately $117.000 during the vear ended December 31, 2019
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Note 10 — Revenue Recognition
The Bank adopted ASU No. 2014-09 “Revenite from Contracts with Customers ™ (Topic 606) on January 1, 2018,

Topic 606 does not apply to revenue associated with financial instruments, including revenue from loans and
securities. In addition, certain non-interest income streams such as fees associated with morlgage servicing rights,
financial puarantees, derivatives, and certain credit card fees are also not in scope of the new guidance. Topic 606 is
applicable 1o non-interest revenue streams such as deposit related fees and interchange fees. However, the recognition
of these revenue streams did not

change significantly upon adoption of Topic 606. Substantially all of the Bank’s revenue is generated from contracts
with customers. Non-interest revenue streams in-scope of Topic 6006 are discussed below.

Service charges on deposit accounts consist of account analysis fees (1.e., nel fees eamed on analyzed business and
public checking accounts), monthly service fees, check orders, and other deposit account related fees. The Bank's
performance obligation for account analysis fees and monthly service fees is generally satisfied, and the related
revenue recognized, over the penod m which the service 1s provided. Check orders and other deposit account related
fees are largely transactional based, and therefore, the Bank’s performance obligation is satisfied, and related revenue
recognized, at a point in tme. Payment for

service charges on deposit accounts is primarily received immediately or in the following month through a direct
charge 1o customers” accounts.

Fees, exchange, and other service charges are primarilv comprised of debit and credit card income, ATM fees,
merchant services income, and other service charges. Debit and eredit card income is primarily comprised of net
interchange fees eamned whenever the Banks's debit and credit cards are processed through card payment networks
such as Visa. ATM fees are primarily generated when a cardholder uses a non-Bank ATM or a non-Bank cardholder
uses a Dank ATM. Merchant services income mainly represents fees charged to merchants to process their debit and
credit card transactions, n addiion o account management fees. Other service charges mclude revenue [rom
processing wire transfers, bill pay service, cashier’s checks. and other services. The Bank’s performance obligation
tor fees, exchange, and other service charges are largely satisfied. and related revenue recognized, when the services
are rendered or upon completion. Payment 1s typically received immediately or in the following month.

The following presents non-interest income, segregated by revenue streams in-scope and out-of-scope of Topic 606,
for the twelve months ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 (Dollars in thousands).

Twelve Months Ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018

Mon-mierest Income:
ln-scope of Topie 606

Service charges on deposits accounts b3 1493 5 969 5 542

Fees and charges 151 95 71

Other 69 88 68
MNor-mterest Income m-scope Topic G0G 1,713 1,152 681
MNor-mterest Income out-scope Topie 606 3093 2240 1,981
Total non-interest meome 5 4,506 5 3302 5 2,662
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Note 11 — Leases Note 11 — Leases (Continued)
On January 1, 2019, the Bank adopted FASB ASU No. 2016-02, “Leases (Topic 842).” Leases (Topic 842) establishes Year Ended
a right of use model that requires a leasee to record a right of use (“ROU”) and a lease liability for all leases with December 31,
terms longer 12 months. The Bank has elected the short-term lease recognition exemption such that the Bank will not 2020 2019
recognize ROU or lease liabilities for leases with a term less than 12 months from the commencement date. The Bank (Dollars i thousands)
is obligated under 20 operating leases agreements for 19 branches and its corporate offices with terms extending Lease cost:
through 2039. The Bank’s lease agreements include options to renew at the Bank’s discretion. The extensions are Operating lease $ 2,789 $ 2,149
reasonably certain to be exercised, therefore it was considered in the calculations of the ROU asset and lease liability. Short-term lease cost 100 30
Total lease cost 5 2889 3 2235
The following table represents the classification of the Bank’s right of use and lease liabilities (Dollars in
thousands): Other information:
Cash padd for amowns mchded m the
measimement of lease habihnes:
Statement of Financial Operatmg cash ows [ow operatmg kases 5 1822 3 1,465
Condition Location December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Operating Lease Right of Use Asset:
Gross carrying amount $ 14,533 $ 12,817
Increased asset from new lease 5,768 3,685
Prior lease liability ‘ ) - (274) Future minimum payments under operating leases with terms longer than 12 months are as follows at December 31,
Hindsight practical eixpe?dlent adjustment - (219) 2020 {])t‘:l]ﬂrﬁ - []-“.m\-m-]d;:]- =
Accumulated amortization (1,893) (1,476) == ; - >
Net book value Operating lease right-of-use asset $ 18,408 $ 14,533
2020
Twebee months after ended December 31,
Operating Lease liabilities: 2021 5 2181
Lease liabilities Operating lease liability $ 18,987 $ 15,040 022 2104
2023 1022
2024 1,756
25 1,729
Tlerealter 13.593
For the year ended December 31, 2020, the weighted-average remaining lease terms for operating leases was 12.4 Total fiture operating kease payment 23,685
years and the weighted-average discount rate used in the measurement of operating lease liabilities was 2.95%. The AIMAIS Tepreseniing mierest {4608)
Bank used current FHLB fixed rate advances at the time the lease was placed in service for the term most closely Present value of et future lease payments 5 18987

aligning with remaining lease term to determine the discount rate.

Future minimum payments under operating leases with terms longer than 12 months are as follows at December 31,
2009 (Dollars in thousands):

2019

Twelve months atter ended December 31,

2020 5 2063
2021 2035
2022 1583
023 1537
2024 1269
Thereatier 9501
Total future operatone kase payiment 18.008
AmMMIMT representing mierest _ {2968)
Present vahwe of net futare lease paymens 5 15,040
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MNote 12 = Directors Fee Plan

The Bank adopted The Bank of Princeton 2018 Director Fee Plan (*“Plan™) which was approved at the Annual Meeting
of Stockholders held on April 24, 2018, The Plan allows non-emplovee members of the board of directors 1o elect to
receive up o 100% of ther annual compensation in the form of Bank common stock. During the twelve months
period ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, 5,388, 7,082 and 6,430 shares of common stock have been issued,
respectively. These shares issued were valued at 100,000, $200,000 and $200,000 and recorded in professional fees
for the twelve months period ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Note 13 — Goodwill and Core Deposit Intangible

On May 17, 2019, the Bank acquired five branches which were accounted for under FASB ASC 803, Dusiness
Combinations. The Bank assumed $177.9 million of branch deposit for which it received net cash of $139 9 million.
The difference hetween the liabilities assumed and net cash recerved was allocated on the estimated fair value of the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

In accordance with ASC 805, the Bank has expensed approximately 5627 thousand of direet acquisition cost and
recorded $8.9 millhon of goodwill along with $4.2 million of core deposit intangible assets. The mtangible assets are
related to core deposits and are being amortized over 10 years, using some of the years digits. For tax purposes,
goodwill totaling $8.9 million is tax deductible and will be amortized over 15 vears straight line. The following table
summarizes the fur value of the total cash received as part of the branch acquisition as well as the fair value of
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the effective date of the transaction {Dollars in thousands).

Total Cash Recerved b 159941

Recognized amounts of wentifiable assets and habalities assummed:

Cash 5 1,341
Prevmises, furmiture and equipment 3386
Core deposit intangible 4,245
(¥herassets 31
Deposits - non-interest bearing (3L,84T)
Deposits - mterest beanng (146,102
Fair value of certificate of deposits 186
Ciher habilities (34)
Total mdentifiable net assets 5 (168,794
Goodwill 5 8,853
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Note 13 - Goodwill and Core Deposit Intangible (Continued)

The changes in the carrving amount of goodwill and core deposit intangible assets are summarized as follows
{Dollars in thousands):

Core Deposit
Goodwill Intangible

Balnee at December 31, 2019 5 8853 % 3,703
Amortization expense - {(727)
Bakinee al December 31, 2020 5 2851 % 3036

As of December 31, 2020, the current hiscal yvear and future hiscal penods amortization for the core deposit
intangible is {Dollars in thousands):

2021 5 643
2022 569
2023 492
2024 415
2025 338
Therealler 579
Total 5 3036

MNote 14 = Fair Value Measurements and Disclosure

The Bank follows the guidance on fair value measurements codified as FASB ASC Topie 820, Fair Value
Measuremenr (“Topic 820™).  Fair value measurements are not adjusted for transaction costs. Topic 820 establishes
a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuaton techniques used to measure fair value.

Management uses its best judgment in estimating the fair value of the Bank's financial mstruments, however, there
are inherent weaknesses in any estimation technique. Therefore, for substanually all financial instruments, the fair
value estimates herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Bank could have realized in sales transactions
on the dates indicated. The estimated fair value amounts have been measured as of their respective period-end and
have not been re-evaluated or updated for purposes of these consolidated financial statements subsequent to those
respective dates. As such, the estimated fair values of these financial instruments subsequent to the respective
reporting dates may be different than the amounts reported at cach period-end.

The fair value measurement hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3

measurements). The three levels ol the [air value hierarchy are as [ollows:

Level I: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical,
unrestricted assets or liabilities.
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Note 14 — Fair Value Measurements and Disclosure (Continued)

Level 2: Quoted prices in markets that are not active, or inputs that are observable either directly or indirectly, for
substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3: Prices or valuation techniques that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement and
unobservable (i.e.. supported with little or no market activity).

An asset’s or liabihity’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to
the fair value measurement.

For finaneial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis, the fair value measurements by level within the fair
value hierarchy used at December 31, 2020 were as follows:

{(Level 1)
Quoted Price (Level 2)
in Active Sigmificant (Level 3) Total Fair
Markets for Other Signilicant Value
Identical Observable Unobservable December 31,
Description Assets Inputs Inputs 2020
{dollars m thousands)
Mortgage-backed securities -17.5,
Government Sponsored Enterprise (GSEs) b - 5 25,112 5 - b 25,112
Obbganons of state and polical subdivisions - L5116 50516
securiies avahble-for-salke at far value ] - 3 73,628 5 - ] 75,628

For financial assets measured at far value on a recuming basis, the fair value measurements by level within the far
value hierarchy used at December 31, 2019 were as follows:

(Level 1)

Quoted Price (Level 2)
in Actlive Sig nilicant {Level 3) Total Fair

Markets for Other Significant Value
Idde mtical Ohservable Unobservable December 31,

Description Assets Inputs Inputs {1} R4
{dollars m thousands)
Muortgage-backed secunbes -1.5,

Government Sponsored Enterprse (GSEs) b - 5 55,951 5 - b 55,951
Obhgatons of state and polincal subdnasions - 56,361 - 36,361
Securihes avalkible-for-sale at far vahe % - 5 112312 5 - 5 112312
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Note 14 — Fair Value Measurements and Disclosure (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis, the fair value measurements by level within the fair value
hierarchy used at December 31, 2020, were as follows:

(Level 1)
Quoted Price (Level 2)
in Active Significant (Level 3) Total Fair
Markets for Other Significant Value
Identical Observable Unobservable  December 31,
Description Assets Inputs Inputs 2020
(dollars in thousands)
Impaired loans $ - $ - $ 2,086 $ 2,086
$ - $ - $ 2,086 $ 2,086

For assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis, the fair value measurements by level within the fair value
hierarchy used at December 31, 2019, were as follows:

(Level 1)
Quoted Price (Level 2)
in Active Significant (Level 3) Total Fair
Markets for Other Significant Value
Identical Observable Unobservable December 31,
Description Assets Inputs Inputs 2019
(dollars in thousands)
Impaired loans $ - $ - $ 2,115 $ 2,115
$ - $ - $ 2,115 $ 2,115

The following table presents quantitative information with regards to Level 3 fair value measurements at December
31, 2020.

Fair Value Range
December 31, Valuation Unobservable (Weighted
Description 2020 Technique Input Average)
(dollars in thousands)
Discount 0.0% -29.1%
Impaired loans $ 2,086 Collateral adjustment (11.1%)

' Fair value is generally determined through independent appraisal of the underlying collateral, primarily using comparable sales.
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Note 14 — Fair Value Measurements and Disclosure (Continued)

The following table presents quantitative information with regards to Level 3 fair value measurements at December
31,2019.

Fair Value Range
December 31, Valuation Unobservable (Weighted
Description 2019 Technique Input Average
(dollars in thousands)
Discount 6.0%
Impaired loans $ 2 Cashflow ' adjustment (6.0%)
Discount 0.0% -23.8%
Impaired loans $ 2,113 Collateral ® adjustment (9.2%)

' Fair value for this loan was determined through calculating the present value of future cash flows.

* Fair value is generally determined through independent appraisal of the underlying collateral, primarily using comparable sales.

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Bank in estimating fair value disclosures:

Investment Securities

The fair value of securities available-for-sale (carried at fair value) and held-to-maturity (carried at amortized cost)
are determined by obtaining quoted market prices on nationally recognized securities exchanges (Level 1), or matrix
pricing (Level 2), which is a mathematical technique used widely in the industry to value debt securities without
relying exclusively on quoted market prices for the specific securities but rather by relying on the securities’
relationship to other benchmark quoted prices. Level 2 debt securities are valued by a third-party pricing service
commonly used in the banking industry. Level 2 fair value

measurements consider observable data that may include dealer quotes, market spreads, cash flows, the U.S. treasury
yield curve, live trading levels, trade execution date, market consensus prepayment speeds, credit information and the
security’s terms and conditions, among other things.

Impaired loans (generally carried at fair value)

Impaired loans carried at fair value are those impaired loans in which the Bank has measured impairment generally
based on the fair value of the related loan’s collateral. Fair value is generally determined based upon independent
third-party appraisals of the properties, or discounted cash flows based upon the expected proceeds, discounted for
estimated selling costs or other

factors the Bank determines will impact collection of proceeds. These assets are included as Level 3 fair values, based
upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurements.

Other real estate owned (generally carried at fair value)

Other real estate owned is adjusted to fair value, less estimated selling costs, upon transfer of loans to other real estate
owned. Subsequently, other real estate owned is carried at the lower of carrying value or fair value less cost to
sell. Fair value is based upon independent market prices, appraised values of the collateral or management’s
estimation of the value of the collateral. The discount adjustment from the appraised value is a significant
unobservable input in the determination of the fair value for other real estate owned. These assets are included as
Level 3 fair values.
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Note 14 — Fair Value Measurements and Disclosure (Continued)
The carrving amounts and estimated fair value of financial nstruments are as follows:

December 31, 2020

Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 5 77429 3 77429 b 17429 b - .3
Securities availible-for-sale at far vahe TA618 T5.628 - 75,618
Securities held-to-maturity 215 237 - 237
Loans receivable, net 1347 450 1460646 - . 1 460,646
Restricted mvestments m bank stock | 366 1366 1,366
Accrued mterest recenable 4593 4893 - 4 593
Financial Liabilities:
Deposits 1.367 266 1,375470 - 1375470
Accrued mterest pavable 5 2476 5 2476 b - b 2476 5

The carrving amounts and estimated [air value of lnancial mstruments are as [ollows:

December 31, 2019

Carrying Estimated

Amount Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equralents s 72598 b T2 508 5 72 598 b - 5 -
Securines availble -for-zale at fair vake 112312 112312 - 112312 -
Securities held-to-maturity 122 236 - 236 -
Loans recemvable, net 1174013 1201015 - - 1.201.015
Restricted investments in bank stock 1.246 1.246 - 1.246 -
Accrued mierest recenable 3626 3626 - 3,626 -
Financial Liabilities:
Deposins 1,237 290 1220225 - 1229225 -
Accrued merest pavable s 3885 b 3BEA 5 - b 3883 5 -

Limitations

I'he fair value estimaies are made at a discrete point in time based on relevant market information and informaiion
aboul the fOnancial mstruments. Fair value estimates are based on judgments regarding fulure expecied loss
experience, current economic conditions, risk characteristics of various financial instruments, and other factors.

These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matiers of significant judgment and, therefore,
cannol be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could sigmflicantly affect the estimates. Further, the
foregoing estimates may not reflect the actual amount that could be realized if all or substantially all of the financial
instruments were offered for sale. This is due to the fact that no market exists for a sizable portion of the loan, deposit
and ofl-balance sheel instruments.
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Note 14 — Fair Value Measurements and Disclosure (Continued)

In addition, the fair value estimates are based on existing on and off-balance sheet financial instruments without
attempting to value anticipated future business and the value of assets and liabilities that are not considered financial
mstruments. ther sigmificant assets that are not considered financial assets melude premuses and equipment. In
addition, the tax ramifications related to the reahization of unrealized gains and losses can have a significant effect on
fair value estimates and have not been considered in any of the estimates,

Finally, reasonable comparability between [naneial institutions may not be likely due o the wide range ol permitied
valuation techmques and numerous estimates which must be made given the absence of active secondary markets for
many of the financial instruments. This lack of uniform valuation methodologies introduces a greater degree of
subjectivity to these estimated fair values.

Note 15 — Stock-Based Compensation

In 2007, the Bank adopted The Bank of Princeton 2007 Stock Option Plan (the “2007 Plan™), which was approved by
our board of directors in August 2007 and by our stockholders in October 2007, The 2007 Plan enables the board of
directors to grant stock options to employees, directors, consultants and other individuals who provide services to the
Bank. The shares subject to or related to options under the 2007 Plan are authorized and unissued shares of the Bank.
The maximum number of shares that may be subject to options under the 2007 Plan is 300,000, all of which may be
issued as Incentive Stock Options and not more than 100,000 of which may be issued as Non-Qualified Stock Options.
Vesting periods range from immediate to four years from the date of grant. No incentive stock options may be granted
under the 2007 Plan after October 2, 2017.

In 2012, the Bank adopted The Bank of Princeton 2012 Equity Incentive Plan (the 2012 Plan”), which was approved
by our board of directors in February 2012 and by our stockholders in May 2012, The 2012 Plan enabled the board
of directors to grant stock options or restricted shares of common stock to emplovees, direetors, consultants and other
mdividuals who provide services o the Bank. The shares subject 1o or related o options under the 2012 Plan are
authorized and unissued shares of the Bank. In 2013, the Bank’s board of directors and stockholders approved an
amendment to the 2012 Plan thar increased the maximum number of shares that may be subject to options under the
2012 Plan from 100,000 1o 600,000, all of which may be issued as Incentive Stock Options or as Non-Qualified Stock
Options. Vesting periods range from immediate to four years from the date of grant. At December 31, 2020 there
were 54,038 shares remaining available for futre issuance under the 2012 plan. No incentive stock options may be
granted under the 2012 Plan after April 30, 2023,

In 2014, the Bank adopted an amendment to each of the 2007 Plan and to the 2012 Plan, which amendments were
approved by our Board of Directors, to provide that all outstanding options under the 2007 Plan and the 2012 Plan
will become fully vested and exercisable upon a change in control of the Bank and to further specify the consideration
that may be exchanged with respect to outstanding awards upon any such change in control.

In 2018, the Bank adopted The Bank of Princeton 2018 Equiry Incentive Plan (the “2018 Plan™), which was approved
by our board of directors i February 2018 and by our stockholders in May 2018, The 2012 Plan enabled the board
of directors to grant stock options restricted stock, or restricted stock units to employees, directors, consultants and
other individuals who provide services to the Bank. The 2018 Plan authorizes up to 321,456 shares of common stock.
As of December 31, 2020, 7,454 restrieted stock units (“RSU™) were granted under this plan,
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Note 15 - Stock-Based Compensation (Continued)

The following is a summary of the status of the Bank’s stock option activity and related information for the year ended
December 31, 2020:

Weighted Avg.

Nunider of Weghted Rennming Aparepale
Stock Average Contractual Lt i
Oplions Bercise Price Life Vahie

Balance at January 1, 2020 462,625 5 19.58

Granted - 3

Granted (RS 7454 5

Erercised (21,5200 5 13.31

Forfeited {9,025) 5 2749

Expired (1068 5 1200
Balice at December 31, 2020 30434 5 19.40 410 Years 3 2635,350
Farerable at December 31, 2020 400 460 % 18.72 3.89 Years 3 2460852

The Bank granted 7,454 RSU’s during 2020, with a fair value of $31.16, which reflected the market value of the
Bank’s common stock on the date of the grant. O the 7,454 RSUs granted during 2020, 1,600 RSUs have a vesting
and period of two years and the remaining 5,854 RSU's have three one-year vesting periods.

The following is a summary of the status of the Bank’s stock option and warrant activity and related information for
the year ended December 31, 2019:

Weighted Avg,

Mumdber of Wieighted Remaining Aggregate
Stock Average Contractual Intrinsic
Oplions Brercise Prce Life Vahie

Balance at January 1, 2019 578,152 5 1872

Cranted - k3 -

Frercised (9%,852) 5 1358

Forfeited (0 650) 5 1826

Expued {7.025) 5 21.39
Balance at December 31, 2019 462,625 5 19.58 502 Years 3 5753934
Ewrciable at December 31, 2009 00,469 5 17.7% 4,53 Yeus 3 4,672.507
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Note 15 - Stock-Based Compensation (Continoed)

The expected life of stock options granted 15 generally derived from historical experience. Expeeted volatilities are
general based on the average of three peers’ historical volatihities due o the limited liquidity of the Bank's stock in
the open market. The Bank uses an estimated forfeiture rate due to limited historical data. At the time of the grant,
the Bank had not declared any cash dividend therefore no dividend yield was used. The risk-free rate for periods
within the contractual term of the share option is based on the U.S. Treasury for a comparable term.

The following is a summary of the status of the Bank’s stock option and warrant activity and related information for
the year ended December 31, 2018:

Weighted Avg.

Number of Weighted Remaming Agoregate
Stock Average Contractual Imtnnsic
Options Erwercise Price Life Vakie
Balance at January 1, 2018 624,527 5 16,50
Cranted TOETS 5 3269
Eerised {97,850) 5 14.02
Forfeited {5,150 5 24 57
Expired (13,2500 $ 2301
Balance at Decenbeer 31, 2018 578,152 5 158.72 5.58 Years 5 5,500,742
Ewrcrable at Decenber 31, 2018 462,616 5 16.22 448 Years 5 3537540

The fair value of the 2018 option grants were estimated on the date of the grants using the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions:

Expected Life G years
Expected volatiliy 19.39%%
Forfeimre rate 4.00F
Dividend viekl NA
Risk-free mterest rate 2.66%
Fair vahie 5 B30

Stock option expenses included in salanes and employee benelils expense in the consolidated statements of income
were $278,000 (which includes RSU's expense of $81,000), $261,000 and $408,000 for the vears ended December
31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively. A tax benefit was recognized of 559,000, $55,000 and $87.000 for the years
ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively. Stock option expenses recorded within other expenses were
53,000, 546,000 and $86.000 for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively. A tax benelit was
recognized of 51,000, 310,000 and 518,000 for the vears ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively. At
December 31, 2020, there was approximately $309 000 of unrecognized expense related to outstanding stock options
and RSUs, which will be recognized over a period of approximately 1.58 years.
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Note 16 — Regulatory Matters
Regulatony Capiral

Current FDIC capital standards require these institutions to satisfy a common equity Tier 1 capital requirement, a
leverage capital requirement and a risk-based capital requirement. The common equity Tier 1 capital component
generally consists of retained eamings and common stock instruments and must equal at least 4.5% of risk-weighted
assets, Leverage capital, also known as “core™ capital, must equal at least 3.0% of adjusted total assets for the most
highly rated state-chartered non-member banks. Core capital generally consists of common stockholders’ equity
{including retained earnings). An additional cushion of at least 100 basis points is required for all other banking
associations, which ellectively increases thewr mummum Tier 1 leverage ratio o 4.0% or more. Under the FDICs
regulations, the most highlv-rated banks are those that the FDIC determines are strong banking organizabions and are
rated composite 1 under the Uniform Financial Institutions Rating System. Under the risk-based capital requirements,
as of January 1, 2015, Tier | Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio must equal at least 6.0%, increased from 4.0% (and
mereased (rom 6.0% to 8.0% for the Bank to be considered “well capitalized™) and total capital to nsk-weighted assets
ratio must equal at least 8.0% (10.0% to be considered “well capitalized™). The FDIC also 1s authorized to impose
capital requirements in excess of these standards on individual institutions on a case-by-case basis.

The final capital rules that became effective on January 1. 2015 introduced a requirement for a commeon equity Tier 1
capital conservation buffer of 2.5% of risk-weighted assets which is in addition to the other minimum risk-based
capital standards in the rule. Institutions that do not maintain this required capital buffer will become subject to
progressively more stringent limitations on the percentage of eamnings that can be paid out in dividends or used for
stock repurchases and on the payment of discretionary bonuses to senior executive management. The capital bufter
requirement was phased i over four vears, and became [ully phased-in on January 1, 2019, Al January 1, 2020, the
Bank met all capital adequacy requirements on a fully phased-in basis.

Any banking organization that fails any of the capital requirements is subject to possible enforcement action by the
FDIC. Such action could include a capital directive. a cease and desist order, civil moneyv penalties, the establishment
of restrichions on the institution’s operations, termmation of federal deposit insurance and the appointment of a
conservator or receiver. The FDIC's capital regulations provide that such actions, through enforcement proceedings
or otherwise, could require one or more of a variety of corrective actions,
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Note 16 — Regulatory Matters (Continued) Note 17 = Quarterly Financial Data (unaundited)
The Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios at December 31, 2020 and 2019 are presented below (Dellars in Year Fnded December 31, 2020
thousands): First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
For capital adequacy parposes Tobe vell capitalized under prom {(Dollars in thousands)
Actual (inchiding capital buffer requirenent) corrective action provisloos
(Drollars in thousands)y An i Bati Amauni Ratio Amount Ralio - . . . - -
— - — - l'otal interest income S 15037 $ 15300 S 15486 S 15853
Deceniber 31, 2020:
Total capital {to risk-weighted assets) 5 211165 16.03% S 138351 2 10.50%% s 131762 2 1000 T'otal interest expense 4,533 3,295 2,709 2,287
Tier 1 capital (to rsk-weighted assets) § 195138 14.81% 5 11199 z B.500% 5 105410 = 2.0 Met mierest meome 10,502 12,0035 12,777 13,560
Comuon equity tier 1 capital to nsk-weighted assets)  § 195138 14.81% S 9214 7.00R% S #5646 6.5 Provision for loan losses 650 1,000 L.025 1,650
Tier 1 leverage capital (1o average assels) § 195138 12.45% 5 10Lo0% z 650 5 Thl6l z 5.0 3 . o .
Net interest meome after provision for loan losses 0852 11,005 10,852 11,916
Decemibar 31, 2019; Total non-interest incone 1.491 870 1.275 1170
Toual capital (to risk-weighted asseis) 5 194.675 15.11% 5 13524 z 10.508% 3 128852 z 10.00 Total non-interest expenses 7.583 5054 7,504 7.910
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets) £ 182118 14.13% £ 109524 z B.50Ry 5 105082 z 2.0 | bef. . 3760 3801 1533 5176
Commmon aquiry tier | capital {to risk-weighted assers)  § 182118 14, 13% L (L = T00P% T OETM = .50 neame helone meame [iaxes o o T L
Tier 1 kverage capital (1o average assels) § 182118 1289% $ 91810 - 6.50% § 70623 z 500 Income taxes 726 697 958 1,073
Net Income 3,034 3124 3,545 4,103
The Bank 15 subject to certain restrictions on the amount of dividends that it may declare due to regulato _ _ :
DN 155U Y gulatory Basis eamings per share S 045 $ 046 $ 0% S 06l
considerations. ) ) ) ] )
Dhhated eammgs per share 5 .44 b3 043 & (.52 5 (L6

Year Ended December 31, 2019

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

(Dollars in thousands)

Total mterest meome S 14275 14998 £ 15251 5 15193
Total mierest expense 4,364 4635 4,486 4,781
Net interest income 94911 10363 10,765 10412
Provision for loan losses 4,200 350 125 125
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 5711 10013 10,640 10,287
Total non-mterest meome 785 T20 Lo77 794
Total non-interest expenses 6,341 7316 7.200 6,875
Income before mcome taxcs 155 3426 4517 42006
Income taxes (749 018 a01 817
Net Income 229 2808 3716 3,389
Basis eamings per share 5 003 5 042 § 055 5 0351
Diluted eamings per share S 003 5 04l £ 054 5 049
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Note 18 — Subsequent Events

On March 9, 2021, the Board of Directors announced that is has adopted a stock repurchase program to commence on
the later of April 1, 2021 or the date approval of such program is received from the New Jersey Department of Banking
and Insurance. Under the stock repurchase program, management is authorized to repurchase up to 5% of the Bank’s
outstanding shares of common stock, with a total cost not to exceed $10.4 million. As of today, the Bank had 6,795,779
shares of common stock outstanding and five percent of such amount would be 339,788 shares. The stock repurchase
program does not obligate the Bank to acquire any particular amount of common stock, and it may be limited,
suspended or terminated at any time without prior notice. This program has been approved by the FDIC.

On January 27, 2021, the Board of Directors declared a cash dividend of $0.12 per share of common stock. The
dividend was paid on March 1, 2021 to shareholders of record at the close of business on February 12, 2021.

Note 19 — Risk and Uncertainties

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of COVID-19 as a global pandemic, which
continues to spread throughout the United States and around the world. The COVID-19 pandemic has adversely
affected, and continue to adversely affect economic activity globally, nationally and locally. Actions taken around the
world to help mitigate the spread of COVID-19 include restrictions on travel, quarantines in certain areas, and forced
closures for certain types of public places and businesses. COVID-19 and actions taken to mitigate the spread of it
have had and are expected to continue to have an adverse impact on the economies and financial markets of many
countries, including the geographical area in which the Bank operates. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, market
interest rates have declined significantly, with the 10-year Treasury bond falling below 1.00 percent on March 3, 2020
for the first time. Such events also have adversely affected business and consumer confidence, generally, and the Bank
and its customers, and their respective suppliers, vendors and processors, have been adversely affected. On March 3,
2020, the Federal Open Market Committee reduced the targeted federal funds interest rate range by 50 basis points to
1.00 percent to 1.25 percent. This range was further reduced to 0 percent to 0.25 percent on March 16, 2020. On March
27, 2020, the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act) was enacted to, among other
provisions, provide emergency assistance for individuals, families and businesses affected by the COVID-19
pandemic. These reductions in interest rates and other effects of the COVID-19 pandemic will likely adversely affect
the Bank's financial condition, results of operations, liquidity and capital in future periods. It is unknown how long
the adverse conditions associated with the COVID-19 pandemic will last and what the complete financial effect will
be to the Bank. It is reasonably possible that estimates made in the financial statements could be materially and
adversely impacted in the near term as a result of these conditions, including expected credit losses on loan receivables.

On March 22, 2020, the federal banking agencies issued an “Interagency Statement on Loan Modifications and
Reporting for Financial Institutions Working with Customers Affected by the Coronavirus”. This guidance
encourages financial institutions to work prudently with borrowers that may be unable to meet their contractual
obligations because of the effects of COVID-19. The guidance goes on to explain that in consultation with the FASB
staff that the federal banking agencies conclude that short-term modifications (e.g. six months) made on a good faith
basis to borrowers who were current as of the implementation date of a relief program are not Troubled Debt
Restructurings (“TDRs”). Section 4013 of the CARES Act also addressed COVID-19 related modifications and
specified that COVID-19 related modifications on loans that were current as of December 31,2019 are not TDRs. The
Bank is actively assisting customers by providing short-term modifications in the form of deferrals of interest,
principal and/or escrow for terms ranging from one to six months. On December 27, 2020, the 2021 Consolidated
Appropriations Act (“CAA”) was signed into law, providing for, among other things, further suspension (ending on
the earlier of January 1, 2022 or 60 days after the date the national emergency concerning COVID-19 terminates) of
the exception for loan modifications to not be classified as TDRs if certain criteria are met. As of December 31, 2020,
the Bank had 14 loans with a balance of $45.0 million remaining on deferral. Since December 31, 2020, there have
been no new borrower request to have their loan modified using the guidelines set forth in the CARES Act.
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Note 19 — Risk and Uncertainties (Continued)

I'he Company has elected that loans temporarily modified for borrowers directly impacted by COVID-19 are not
considered TDR, assuming the above criteria is met and as such, these loans are considered current and continue to
accrue interest at its original contractual terms. The Bank determined. based on stress testing indicators, prudent
underwriting policies and loan concentration diversification including but not limited industries that were impact by
the pandemic. such as hospitality and restaurants, the Bank currently expects to be able to manage the economic risks
and uncertamties associated with the pandemie. All of these factors were considered in our allowance for loan loss
methodology in determining cur allowance for loan losses as of December 31, 2020. At this time, we are unable to
prediet with any certainty the potential adverse effect these loans may have on the Bank, whether these borrowers will
be able to resume making pavments once the delerral penod expires, and 1l they are able (o resume payments, whether
they will reqquire a change in the terms of the loan to be able to do so.

The CARES Act included an allocation of 5349 billion for loans to be issued by financial institutions through the
Small Business Administration (“SBA™). This program is known as the Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP™). PPP
loans are forgivable, in whole or in part, if the proceeds are used for payroll and other penmitted purposes in accordance
with the requirements of the PPI. These loans carry a fixed rate of 1.00% and a term of two years, if not forgiven. in
whole or in part. Payments are deferred for the first six months of the loan. The loans are 100%% guaranteed by the
SHA. The SBA pays the originating bank a processing fee ranging from 1% 1o 5%, based on the size of the loan. The
SBA began accepting submissions for these PPP loans on Friday, April 3, 2020. As of December 31, 2020, the Bank
held approximately 1,477 loans totaling $1735.9 million in PP loans with $3.5 million in deferred fees remaining to
be accreted over the lile of the loans. Al December 31, 2020, the Bank had $202.5 nullion of available borrowing
capacity from our correspondent banks. In addition, the Federal Reserve has implemented a hiquidity facility available
to financial institutions participating in the PPP. As such, the Bank believes it has sufficient liquidity sources to fund
all pending PPP loans and to continue to provide this important service to local businesses if addinonal funds are
appropriated for the PPP.

Item 9. Chanoes in and Disagsreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(1) of the Exchange Act. Internal control over financial reporting
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States,
which is commonly referred to as GAATP. The effectiveness of anv system of intemal control over financial reporting
15 subject o mherent himitations, including the exercise of judgment in designing, mmplementing, operating and
evialuating the Bank's internal control over financial reporting. Because of these mherent hmitations, internal control
over financial reporting cannot provide absolute assurance reparding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP and may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that our intermal control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or other factors, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management, with the pariicipation of the Bank's President and Chiel Financial Officer, evaluated the
effectiveness of the Bank's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2020 using the criteria in
“Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013)" issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commuission (“COSO 2013™). Based on this assessment, management determined that. as of December 31,
2020, the Bank s internal control over financial reporting was effective to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
U. 5. generally accepted accounting principles.
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Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Management, with the participation of the Bank's President and Chiel’ Financial Oflicer, evaluated the
effectiveness of the design and operation of the Bank’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-
15(¢) promulgated under the Exchange Act) as of December 31, 2020, Based on this evaluation, the Bank™s President
and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the Bank's disclosure controls and procedures are effective as of
December 31, 2020 (o ensure thal the mlormation required 1o be disclosed by the Bank m the reports that the Bank
files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods
specified in FDIC rules and forms.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
There was no change in the Bank’s internal control over financial reporting identified during the quarter
ended December 31, 2020 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Bank’s internal

control over financial reporting.

Item 9B, Other Information

None.

PART Il

Item 10. Directors. Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this liem is set forth under the headings, “MATTER NO. 1 ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS,” “EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND COMPENSATION - Executive Officers,” “SECTION 16(A)
BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE,” “CODE OF CONDUCT,” “BOARD OF
DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES” in the Bank’s definitive proxy statement to be filed with the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation not later than 120 days alter December 31, 2020 in connection with the solicitabion of proxies
tor its 2021 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and incorporated by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The mlormation required by this [tem 15 set forth under the headings, “"MATTER NO. 2 ADVISORY VOTE
TO APPROVE OUR NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICER COMPENSATION,” “BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND

Exccutive Compensation,” "EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION,” “EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
AND COMPENSATION Employment Agreements,” “BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES -
Compensation As It Relates to Risk Management,” “EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION - 2020
Compensation of Directors” in the Bank's definitive proxy statement to be filed with the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation not later than 120 days after December 31, 2020 in connection with its 2021 Annuwal Meeting of
Stockholders and incorporated by relerence.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Manapement and Related Stockholder

Matters

The information required by this Item is set forth under the headings, “EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN
INFORMATION,” “EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND COMPENSATION — Stock Option Plans.” and “SECURITY
OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT™. in the Bank’s delinitive proxy
staternent Lo be filed with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation not later than 120 days alter December 31, 2020
in connection with its 2021 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and incorporated by reference.
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required by this Ttem is set forth under the headings, "MATTER NO. 3 CERTAIN
RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS “BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES
Director Independence.” in the Bank’s delimtive proxy stalement o be [led with the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation not later than 120 days after December 31, 2020 in connection with its 2021 Anmual Meeting of
Stockholders and incorporated by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The mormaton required by this [tem 1s set forth under the headings, “PROPOSAL TO RATIFY THE
SELECTION OF BDO USA, LLF AS THE BANK'S INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING
FIRM FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2021, in the Bank’s definitive proxy statement to be filed with
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation not later than 120 days after December 31, 20200 in connection with its
2021 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and incorporated by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

() The followmg portions of the Bank’s consolidated fnancial statements are set forth i ltem 8 - “Finaneial
Statements of Supplementary Data”™ of this Annual Report:

i Consolidated Statements of Finanecial Condition as of December 31, 2020 and 2019

ii.  Consolidated Statements of Income for the vears ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018

. Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the vears ended December 31, 2020, 2019
and 2018

v, Consolhidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders” Equity for the vears ended December 31,
2020, 2019 and 2018

v, Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018
vi.  Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(h) Financial Statement Schedules

All financial statement schedules are omitted as the information, if applicable, is presented in the consolidated
linancial stalements or noles thereto.

{¢) Exhibits
Exhihit
No. Description

3.1 (I} Certificate of Incorporation, as amended.

32 Amended and Restated Bylaws

4.1  (A) Specimen form of stock certificate.

4.2 (1) Descnption of Capital Stock

10.1  (B) The Bank of Princeton Amended and Restated 2007 Stock Option Plan*

10.2  (B) The Bank of Princeton Amended and Restated 2012 Equity Incentive Plan*

103 (A) Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement for 2007 Stock Option Plan®

104 (K) Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement for 2012 Siock Option Plan*

10,5 (A) Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement for 2007 Stock Option Plan*

10,6 (K) Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement for 2012 Stock Option Plan®

10,7 (A) MoreBank 2004 Incentive Equity Compensation Plan®

10,8 (A) Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement®

10,9  (A) Form of Nonqualified Stock Oprion*®
10,10 {A) Form of Opron for the Purchase of Shares of the Par Value of $1.00 Per Share of MoreBank*
1011 Intentionally Omatted
10,12 () Employment Agreement between the Bank and Edward J. Dietzler dated as of December 6, 2018#%
10,13 (E) Employment Agreement between the Bank and Daniel J. O"Donnell dated as of December 6, 201 8*
114 ((3) The Bank of Princeton Amended and Restated Equity 2018 Equity Incentive Plan®

10.15 (K} Branch Purchase and Assumption Agreement, dated February 2, 2019, between the Bank and Beneficial

Bank (and its successor in interest)
10,16 (H) Employment Agreement between the Bank and George S. Rapp dated as of Janvary 25, 2019*
10.17  (H) Employment Agreement between the Bank and Stephanie Adkins dated January 235, 20019*
10,18 (F) Employment Agreement between the Bank and Christopher Tonkovich dated February 25, 201 9*
10,19 (1) The Bank of Princeton 2018 Director I'ee Plan®
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10.200 (D) Amendment to Employment Agreement between the Bank and Edward 1. Dietzler dated as of December 18,

2019*

10,21 (T3 Amendment to Employment Agreement between the Bank and Danmiel J. O'Donnell dated December 18,
2019*

10,22 (C) 2020 Management Incentive Plan®

10.23 ividend Remnvestment and Stock Purchase Plan

21.1 Subsidianes of the Registrant

31 Rule 13a-14(a) Centification of the Principal Executive Officer

312 Rule 13a-14(a) Cenification of the Principal Financial Officer

321 Section 1350 Certifications

*  Management contract or compensatory plan. contract or arrangement.

(A) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit o registrant’s Form 10, General Form for Registration of Securities, filed
with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation on May 2, 201 1.

(B) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.1 or 10.2, as applicable, 1o registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K,
filed with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation on October 20, 2014,

(C) Ineorporated by reference to Exhibit 10,1 to the Bank’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the FDIC on
March 23, 2020.

(I3} Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 4.2, 10.20, and 10.21 as applicable 1o registrant’s Anmual Report on Form
10-K, filed with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation on March 16, 2020,

(E) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 101 and 10.2 to registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation on December 7, 2018,

(F) Incorporated by reference 1o registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K fled with the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation and dated February 25, 2019,

((5) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to registrant’s Current Beport on Form 2-K filed with the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation and dated March 25, 2019,

(H) Incorporated by reference 1o Exhibits 10.1 and 10.2 w registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and dated January 235, 20109,

(I3 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit B to registrant’s proxy materials filed with the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation on March 26, 2018,

(1} Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-0), filed with the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation on November 9, 2020.

(K) Incorporated by reference to amendment on Form 10-K/A to registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed
with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation on March 25, 2019,

Item 16. Form 10-K Summary

MNone.
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SIGNATURES Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by

the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
Pursuant 1o the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly

caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized as of March 26, 2021, Signature Capacity Date
The Bank of Princeton {5/ Richard Gillespie Chairman of the Board March 26, 2021
Richard Gillespie
J/s/ Edward Dietzler
By:  Edward Dietzler /s Stephen Distler Viee Chairman of the Board March 26, 2021
President and Chief Executive Officer Stephen Distler
{ Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ Stephen Shueh Director March 26, 2021
The Bank of Princeton Stephen Shueh
s/ Robert N. Radolhi [hrector March 26, 2021
/s/ George 5. Rapp Robert N. Ridolfi, E=q
By:  George S, Rapp
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer /s/ Judith A. Giacin Director March 26, 2021
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) Judith A. Giaem
/s/ Martin Tuchman Director March 26, 2021

Martin Tuchman

s/ Foss Wishnick Ihrector March 26, 2021
Ross Wishnick

President, Chief Executive Officer, March 26, 2021
s/ Edward Dietzler hrector
Edward Dheteler (Principal Executive Officer)

Executive Viee President, Chief Financial March 26, 2021
/s Georze 8. Rapp OlMeer
Greorge S, Rapp (Principal Financial and Accounting

Officer)
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Name of Subsidiary

SUBSIMARIES OF REGISTRANT

Exhibit 21.1

Jurisdiction of
Incorporation
or Formation

Bayard Lane, LLC

112 Fifth Avenue, LLC

Bayard Properties, LLC

TBOFP REIT, Inc.

TBOP Delaware Investment Company
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NI
DE

The Bank of Princeton

CaINErn vl

RULE 13A-14(AM15D-14{A) CERTIFICATIONS OF THE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

[, Edward Ietzler, certify that:

Date:

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of The Bank of Princeton:

. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a

material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report.

. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other inancial information included in this report, fairly

present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of,
and for, the periods presented in this report.

The registrant’s other certifving officer and [ are responsible for establishing and mamtaiming disclosure controls

and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 13d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, o ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
ncluding s consolidated subsidianies, 1s made known o us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting (o be designed under our supervision, Lo provide reasonable assurance regarding the rehability
of financial reporting and the preparation of inancial statements for extemnal purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure conirols and procedures and presented i this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Isclosed m this report any change mn the registrant’s internal control over fnancial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect. the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting: and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed. based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting. to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
linancial reporting which are reasonably likely o adversely alfect the registrant’s ability o record,
process, summarize and report financial nformation; and

b any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other emplovees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting

March 26, 2021 /& Edward Dietzler

Edward Dhetzler
President and Chiel Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
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Exhibit 31.2
RULE 13A-14(A)15D-14(A) CERTIFICATIONS OF THE
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, George 5. Rapp, certify that:

Date:

1. I'have reviewed this annual report om Form 10-K of The Bank of Princeton;

. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a matenal

fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report.

3. Based on my knowledge, the fmancial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in

all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report,

The registrant’s other certifving officer and [ are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and

procedures {as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(¢)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(1) and 15d-15(1)) for the registrant and have:

a)

b)

cl

d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision. to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidianes, 15 made known o us by others within those entities, particularly durning the penod in
which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepied
accounting principles:

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the ellectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as ol the end of the pernod covered
by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has matenially allected, or 15 reasonably hkely o matenally allect, the registrant’s mternal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and [ have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
perfoming the equivalent [uncuons):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of intemal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisirant’s ability 1o record, process, summarize and
report linancial information; and

by any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal control over finanecial reporting

March 26, 2021 /s/ George S. Rapp

George S. Rapp
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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( Primcipal Financial and Accounting Ofhicer)

Exhibit 32.1

SECTION 1350 CERTIFICATIONS

In connection with the Annual Report of The Bank of Princeton (the “Bank™) on Form 10-K for the period
ended December 31, 2020 as filed with the Federal Deposit and Insurance Corporation on the date hereof (the
“Report”), the undersigned certily, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopled pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report [ully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Secunties and Exchange
Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition
and results of operations of the Bank.

fs/ Fdward Dietzler

Edward Dietzler

President and Chief Executive Officer
{Principal Executive Officer)

[s/ Greorge 8. Rapp

George 5. Rapp

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
{ Principal Finaneial and Accounting Officer)

Mareh 26, 2021
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Richard J. Gillespie
Chairman

Edward J. Dietzler
President
Chief Executive Officer

Judith A. Giacin

Stephen K. Shueh
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Stephen A. Distler
Vice Chairman

Ross E. Wishnick
Vice Chairman

Robert N. Ridolfi, Esq.

Martin Tuchman



WhoWeAre

Edward J. Dietzler
President
Chief Executive Officer

Daniel 3. O'Donnell, Esq.
Executive Vice President
Chief Operating Officer

& General Counsel

George S. Rapp
Executive Vice President
Chief Financial Officer

Christopher M. Tonkovich
Executive Vice President
Chief Credit Officer

Stephanie M. Adkins
Executive Vice President
Chief Lending Officer

Established in 2007, The Bank of Princeton opened its first branch for business

on the 23rd of April. Since then the Bank has grown to include twenty-four branch
locations and a comprehensive Operations Center that serve the Mercer, Burlington,
Camden, Gloucester, Hunterdon, Middlesex, Monmouth, Ocean, and Somerset
counties in New Jersey along with four branches in the Montgomery County and
Philadelphia markets in Pennsylvania.

18

Marketing

Barbara A. Cromwell, SVP

Human Resources
Anna Maria Miller, SVP

Retail Administration

Debra L. Von Gonten, SVP
Rose Russo, AVP
Amy Zuccarello, AVP

Information Technology

Matthew T. Clark, SVP
Kyndle E. Alig, VP
John Critelli, AVP

Operations & Compliance

Karen D. Pfeifer, SVP
Angela Bancroft, VP
Jamie Wilson, VP
Justin Naidoo, AVP

Security & Facilities

Keith R. Bitzel, VP
Ryan M. Cavicchio, AVP

Loan Administration

Mary Beth Gorecki, SVP
Lukasz Gargas, VP
Michelle Goldstein, VP
Amela Muslic, VP

Stanley Plytynski, VP

Lana Tremblay, VP

Denise Youn, VP

Steven Beck, AVP

Theresa Harris-Norfleet, AVP
Ann Marie Hennelly, AVP
Eileen McBride, AVP
David Mulryne, AVP
Wanda Szymanski, AVP
Thomas Waszkiewicz, AVP

Finance

Jeffrey T. Hanuscin, SVP
Carmen Lloja-MacKenzie, AVP
Rosemary Tumino, AVP

1o

Commercial Lenders

Arthur M. Birenbaum, SVP
William McCoy, SVP

Kris Muse, SVP

Paul Bencivengo, VP
William McDowell, VP
Michele Lewis-Fleming, AVP

Market Managers

Princeton Region

Roseanne Maresma, AVP, RRM*
Henrry Polanco, Bayard Lane
Daniel Pereira, Lakewood
Patricia Kilgannon, Montgomery
Wendy J. Evans, Monroe
Darshana Jadav, Nassau Street

Central Region

Nedgine Douge, AVP, RRM*

Paul Sabol, Bordentown

Donna Craddock, Browns Mills
Shannon Bennett, Chesterfield
Jeralyn H. Lang, Cream Ridge
Barbara Brehaut, Hamilton
Lourdes Pagan, Quakerbridge Road

Southern Region

Kelly Zane, AVP, RRM*
ShaQuanna Moss, Arch Street
Sera Yu, Cheltenham

Sokha Eng, Chestnut Street
Christina Lerro, Deptford

Mi Kyung Kim, North Wales
Carole McGuirl, Sicklerville

Western Region

Karin van Garderen, AVP, RRM*
Jonathan Collins, Lambertville

Yvette Windsor, Lawrenceville

Keisha Patrick-Davey, New Brunswick
Nathalie Cassion, Pennington

Miriam Colén, Piscataway

Rhoda Sundhar, Princeton Junction

*Regional Retail Manager

Bank Wisely.



The greatness of a commu ty

is most accurately measured by the

compassionate actions of its members.

— Coretta Scott King

-

—

101 Foundation
Aim2Place
Arm in Arm
Arts Council of Princeton
Big Brothers Big Sisters

of Mercer County
Bordentown Historical Society
Calvary Chapel Gloucester County
Catholic Charities Diocese of Metuchen
Catholic Charities Diocese of Trenton
Central Jersey Housing Resource Center
Chapin School Princeton
Chesterfield Township School

District Parent-Teacher Association
Clarifi

Thank You to Our Community

Housing Initiatives of Princeton
Hunterdon Healthcare Foundation
| Believe in Pink
Isles, Inc.
Jamesburg Parent-Teacher Association
Jewish Family & Children’s Service
of Greater Mercer County
JFCS Mobile Food Pantry
Joint Effort - Princeton
Safe Streets Weekend
KinderSmile Foundation
Korean American Association
of Greater Philadelphia
Lambertville Area Education
Foundation

Philadelphia Chinatown
Development Corporation

Planned Lifetime Assistance
Network of NJ

Police Unity Tour Inc., Chapter 10

Princeton Family YMCA

Princeton Mercer Regional Chamber

Princeton Public Library

Princeton Senior Resource Center

Princeton University Summer
Chamber Concerts

Project Freedom

Puerto Rican Action Board

Rebuilding Together Philadelphia

Send Hunger Packing Princeton

Partners

for the Difference You Make.

Corner House Foundation
Delaware River Steamboat Floating
Classroom, Inc., SPLASH
Delaware River Towns Chamber
of Commerce & Visitors Bureau, The
Downtown Bordentown Association
Elijah’s Promise
Foundation for Bordentown
Traditions, Inc.,, The
Friendly Sons & Daughters of
St. Patrick of Mercer County, The
Girls on the Run
Global Connections Foundation NJ Corp
Gloucester Township Fire District #5
Grant Chapel AME Church
Greater Philadelphia Asian
Social Services Center
Greater Philadelphia Coalition
Against Hunger
Grounds for Sculpture
Habitat for Humanity of Burlington
County and Greater Philadelphia
Habitat for Humanity Philadelphia
Habitat for Humanity,
Raritan Valley Chapter
Hamilton Area YMCA
Hamilton Educational Foundation
Hamilton Township Board of Education
Hatzola EMS of Central Jersey
HomeFront
Hopewell Valley Arts Council
Hopewell Valley Veterans Association
Hopewell Valley YMCA

Lambertville-West Amwell Youth
Baseball & Softball Association
Lawrence Township Education
Foundation
Lawrenceville Main Street
LifeTies, Inc.
Mainstage Center for the Arts
Meals on Wheels in Greater
New Brunswick
Mercer County Community
College Foundation
Mercer County Turkey Trot
Mercerville Fire Company
Middlesex County Regional
Chamber of Commmerce
Monroe Township Girls Softball
Montgomery Baseball League
Montgomery / Rocky Hill Rotary Club
Montgomery Township -
Economic Development Commission
Montgomery Township
Education Foundation
Montgomery Township Volunteer
Fire Company No.1
Montgomery Township Volunteer
Fire Company No. 2
Morven Museum & Garden
Mount Carmel Guild of Trenton
Notre Dame High School
Parkinson Alliance, The
Pennington Public Library
Pennington Volunteer Fire Company
Philabundance

121

Society of Saint Vincent de Paul

Sourland Conservancy

Spread the Joy

Thomas Edison State University
Foundation

Town Clock Community
Development Corporation

Trenton Area Soup Kitchen, The

Trenton Catholic Academy

Trinity Church

United Nations Association
of the United States of America,
Southern New Jersey Chapter

United Way of Hunterdon County

Veterans of Foreign Wars Post #3525,
District #18

West Windsor Arts Council

West Windsor - Plainsboro
Regional School District

Yeshivas Ohr Hatorah

YMCA Camp Mason

YWCA Princeton

Bank Wisely.



